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FINAL FINANCIAL RESULTS

The profit attributable to owners of Wong’s International
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) for the year ended
31 December 2019 amounted to HK$266.3 million, as
compared to HK$1,421.7 million for the last financial
year. The significant decrease was mainly due to
decrease in share of profits of joint ventures in the sum
of HK$897.1 million. Earnings per share for the year
were HK$0.56 as compared to HK$2.97 for the last
financial year.

The revenue of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
HK$3,781.2 million, as compared to HK$4,013.5 million
for the last financial year. Operating profit for the year
ended 31 December 2019 was HK$245.2 million or 6.5%
of revenue, as compared to HK$524.8 million or 13.1%
of revenue for the last financial year. The decrease in
operating profit was driven by reduction in demand as
a result of the current trade tension between Mainland
China and the US.

DIVIDENDS

The Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.035
(2018: HK$0.04) per share for 2019. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.03
(2018: HK$0.055) per share on or before Friday, 24 July
2020 to the shareholders of the Company. Payment of
such proposed final dividend is subject to approval
of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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DIVIDEND POLICY

For the purpose of maintaining a reasonable return
on investment and rewarding shareholders for their
continued support, the Board has adopted a Dividend
Policy for distribution of dividend to the shareholders
in accordance with the Group’s profit performance.
The dividend payout ratio will be based on the profit
attributable to the shareholders excluding share of profit
and loss of joint ventures/associated companies and
change in fair value of investment properties which have
been recorded in the consolidated income statement
after considering various prevailing factors at the time
of declaration of dividend, including but not limited
to financial performance and projected profitability,
liguidity position and capital efficiency, compliance
with financial covenants, dividends received from
subsidiaries, future growth and commitments, potential
investment opportunities, relevant provisions under
the Company’s bye-laws, laws of Bermuda and other
applicable rules and regulations. The Company may
also distribute special dividend from time to time in
addition to the ordinary dividend.

Depending on the situation from time to time, dividend
recommendation and payment shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to the
approval of shareholders, where appropriate. There is
no assurance that dividends will be recommended or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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REVIEW OF BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Electronic Manufacturing Service Division
(“EMS Division”)

Revenue for the EMS Division for the year ended 31
December 2019 was HK$3,559.9 million, as compared
to HK$3,946.2 million for the last financial year. The
segment profit attributable to the EMS Division was
HK$159.2 million, a 24.2% decrease as compared
to HK$209.9 million for the last financial year. The
decrease in the segment profit was attributable to
reduction in demand as a result of the current trade
tension between Mainland China and the US.

Property Holding Division

The Property Holding Division reported revenue of
HK$221.2 million, as compared to HK$67.3 million for
the last financial year. The segment profit attributable
to the Property Holding Division was HK$197.9
million as compared to HK$1,290.7 million for the last
financial year. The decrease was mainly attributable
to decrease in share of profit of joint ventures, which
mainly comprised of one-off fair value gains between
the “development cost” and the “current market value”
arising from the leased portion reclassified from stock of
completed properties to investment properties.

On 24 December 2018, the Group entered into a
provisional sale and purchase agreement with a third
party purchaser whereby, the Group agreed to sell
6/F of One Harbour Square at the consideration of
HK$238,082,000. The transaction was completed during
the financial year.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



7

ITRE|ES

Chairman’s Statement

RBEERMBEIR

R-E—HAFE+_A=+—8 A£EZ
RITIE B4 % A/ %3,311,600,000T (= F
— J\£ : 5 %3,231,300,000) ° $R1TE R
#A%E A #1,936,200,0007T (ZZF— N\F ¢
7%2,161,200,0007T) ° R=F—NF+=AH
—t+t— B RekReSEYREHRT
1738 A7 %1,185,200,0000T (Z & — )\ &F :
75 #948,100,0007T) °

R-E—NAEF+-_A=+—H A&EEZ
RITE R FE A B E751,000,0007T © M
R-ZZE—NF+_A=+—BAAEE
1,213,100,0007T ° A& B # 7% B R1TE
ERIBITHET  BEHASEEREZEELY
(RBEHPCREeTFE -

AREEBR-_Z—NAF+-_A=+—HZFE
EAGELEA016(ZZF—\F :0.25) « )F
BEABLENGTER ZRABEFERIAL
o AEFHEAIBAARTERLEEARE
BREMRSEEYREBRTEREE -

SNE K EL b B E

AEBRNBOHEGUEXTET  KEAR
FXBIEZLARTT - B% - BEIRAR%E
B REBEWEERERIMNEL PER - B
PR E IR 2 FRBUOR — B - AR BAE
ARBEERDNEERER - WiEYER
RiEHREEBRBER -

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total
of HK$3,311.6 million (2018: HK$3,231.3 million)
of banking facilities. Total bank borrowings were
HK$1,936.2 million (2018: HK$2,161.2 million). Cash
and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits
were HK$1,185.2 million at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$948.1 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net bank
borrowing of HK$751.0 million, as compared to
HK$1,213.1 million at 31 December 2018. Sufficient
banking facilities and bank balances are available to
meet the cash needs of the Group for its manufacturing
operations as well as Property Holding Division.

Net gearing ratio for the Group as at 31 December
2019 is 0.16 (2018: 0.25). The net gearing ratio was
calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net
debt is calculated as total bank borrowings and lease
liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and short-term
bank deposits.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Most of the Group’s sales are conducted in United
States dollars and costs and expenses are mainly in
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Japanese
Yen and Chinese Renminbi. Consistent with its prudent
policy on financial risk management, the Group does not
use any foreign exchange hedging products. The Group
recognises the currency risk in the fluctuation of Chinese
Renminbi and will closely monitor and actively manage
the risk involved.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and equity attributable to owners of the parent,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

PLEDGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

Details of the pledges on the Group’s assets are set out
in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed
approximately 3,558 employees. The Group adopts a
remuneration policy which is commensurate with job
nature, qualification and experience of employees.
In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and
employee related insurance benefits, discretionary
bonuses are also rewarded to employees based on
individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also
provides in-house and external training programs to its
employees.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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PROSPECTS

Current market conditions are unusually difficult. Already
affected by the China-US trade war, demand for the
Group’s products is now facing another considerable
uncertainties posed by the COVID-19 outbreak starting
in early 2020.

At the start of the outspread, we responded to the
government decree of delaying work resumption after
the Chinese New Year. The spread of the COVID-19 is
impacting the supply chains and has caused disruption:
limited access to employees due to quarantines, factory
closures or manufacturing slowdowns and limited
access to logistics to move goods. The Group’s factories
have taken all necessary steps for the recovery of the
normal level of production capacity under adequate
health and safety measures. The Group’s manufacturing
operations in January and February of 2020 were
gravely impacted and sales of the EMS business for
those two months decreased by approximately 50%
compared to the corresponding period in 2019.

To cope with the US tariff situation, the Group has set up
a manufacturing facility in Hai Duong Province, Vietnam
to cater mainly for the needs of US customers. This
new production facility, which has started production in
March 2020, will also provide an additional alternative
to the Group’s customers, and is expected to bring new
sales opportunity to the Group.

The Directors expect that the current market and
operating conditions as well as the uncertainty as to
the intensity and the duration of the COVID-19 outbreak
globally will adversely affect the operating result of the
EMS business for the first half of 2020. The Group is in
crisis management, assessing impacts and response
as fast as we can to mitigate the disruption. However,
with the continuous efforts to expand customer base,
control costs, enhance operating efficiency and provide
value added services including product design and
technology services to the customers, the Directors are
confident that the EMS business will be able to resume
its growth momentum after the COVID-19 outbreak has
subsided.
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PROSPECTS (continued)

Most floors of Two Harbour Square, owned by a joint
venture between the Company and Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited, and the portion of One Harbour
Square owned by the Company have been leased out,
and they will provide the Group with a steady source of
rental income.

AWARD & RECOGNITION

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the eighth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
extend my sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers
and business partners for their continued confidence
in and support to the Group. | would also like to pay
a special tribute to all of our employees for their loyal,
diligent and professional services to the Group.

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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2019 2018 Changes
ihr=s ERES AnX Epai
Notes % Y% % point
BIEXE Operating results
1E B AT ¥ Employee benefit expenses
Wz=B D to revenue % 12.1 12.0 0.1
Hth & B 3 Other operating expenses to
Wz=B D revenue % 4.8 5.2 -0.4
LB N 2 Operating profit % 6.5 13.1 -6.6
FFEE Net profit % 7.0 35.4 -28.4
e e Bl ¥ Return on equity (%) 1 5.3 295 -24.2
B REMR Financial health
FEEHBER
Ak Net debts to total equity % 2 16.0 25.2 -9.2
BB
Ankt Borrowings to total equity % 3 38.7 44.8 -6.1
—E-NE —B-)\F 25
2019 2018 Changes
Bt =& Financial ratio
N N iE A
Bt E (%) Current ratio (Times) 4 1.5 1.5 N/A
BREE Per share data
7 #£0.56 7T B#2.977T
FRR AT Earnings per share HK$0.56 HK$2.97 -81.1%
B & Notes:
1. BmBRE = FHB s 1. Return on equity % = net profit/total equity
2. FEEHBEZE L = (BER-HEEE 2 Net debts to total equity % = (total borrowings — total lease
RE-FeRBEeEEWRTE - SHERITER liabilities — total cash and cash equivalent — short-term bank
SRR deposits)/total equity
3. BERHegEmast - BER BiEs 3. Borrowings to total equity % = total borrowings/total equity
4. RBELLR = RBEE/RBAEE 4. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
B¥TT BETx  A¥Tr  BETx  AET
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
£ RESULTS
W Revenue 3,781,156 4,013,546 3,817,543 3,529,374 3,800,911
2B E Operating profit 245,157 524,818 315,612 366,711 227,203
B PTSRERI A E Profit before income tax 304,569 1,473,119 513,190 518,482 642,878
Fris®i Income tax (38,242) (51,370) (33,283) (50,257) (44,645)
FEFE Profit for the year 266,327 1,421,749 479,907 468,225 598,233
IR Non-controlling interests - - - - -
A A ESFE Profit attributable to
owners 266,327 1,421,749 479,907 468,225 598,233
BEEKEE ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES
BEE Total assets 8,183,236 8,267,682 6,719,963 6,307,567 4,615,994
BwaE Total liabilities 3,177,012 3,447,493 3,203,471 3,322,272 1,981,384
FBREBEAZ  Equity attributable to
Eos owners 5,006,220 4,820,185 3,516,488 2,985,291 2,634,606
IR RS Non-controlling interests 4 4 4 4 4
BEzkaE Total equity and liabilites 8,183,236 8,267,682 6,719,963 6,307,567 4,615,994
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The Directors present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2019 which were approved by
them at the board meeting held on the date of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are the development,
manufacture, marketing and distribution of electronic
products as well as property holding.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the year and
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out on pages 88 to 227 of this Annual Report.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

A detailed analysis of the Group’s revenue and profit
by operating segments are set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared an interim dividend and
now recommend a final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 as follows:

BT

HK$'000

BERFERE - AEREE0.0357T Interim dividend of HK$0.035 per share paid 16,747
FRAREIRE - BER Proposed final dividend of HK$0.03 per share in issue

B EITAD B ¥0.037T 14,355

31,102
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review of the Group for the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future development and
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to
10 of this Annual Report. A discussion of the financial
risks and the management of the risks of the Group
are provided in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 10 and the
Financial Highlights on pages 11 and 12 of this Annual
Report.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility
through minimizing the impacts to the community,
environment and natural resources while safeguarding
the health and safety of the public. The Group actively
controls and endeavors to reduce emissions, waste
and inefficient use of resources and energy. Health,
safety and the environment are the top priorities in the
design of our products, processes and services. Our
manufacturing facilities are constantly managed and
monitored using international environmental systems.

Relationships with employees

The Group considers that employees are valuable
assets of the Group and is committed to building an
amicable and rewarding relationship with its employees.
Employees are remunerated with salary packages
commensurate with their job nature, qualification,
experience and performance. Training is provided to
employees to enhance job performance and progression
within the Group. The Group also works its best to
cultivate a harmonious workplace which enhances
employee performance and company-employee
relationship. In addition, the Group strives to provide a
safe and healthy work environment.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Community engagement

The Group takes pride in participating in community
events and volunteer activities as a key component
of our commitment to corporate responsibility. The
engagements provide opportunities for the Group
and our employees to contribute in improving local
communities. Such activities include making donations,
paying visits to elderly homes and participating in
flag-selling activities etc. Certain companies in the
Group have been awarded the Caring Company Logo by
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service in recognition
of their active participation in community activities and
good corporate citizenship.

Relationships with customers and suppliers

The Group strives to be global strategic business
partners of our customers by providing products
and services that meet or exceed our customers’
requirements for quality, reliability and value. In
accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build
long-term and mutually beneficial relationships with our
suppliers, which play a crucial role in providing high
quality products and ensuring reliable delivery to our
customers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board of Directors, the
Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the business and operation of the Group
during the year.

Subsequent events

The subsequent event is set out in Note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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FEEFRMER MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
REBZAEEELECAGRENIEEST The percentages of purchases and sales attributable
DEIT to the Group’s largest suppliers and customers are as
follows:
BoX
%

FRIEEE Purchases 15
— A ER — the largest supplier 35
—hREEEEHTE — five largest suppliers combined
HEH Sales
—BRAREP — the largest customer 36
—hREFPEHFE — five largest customers combined 70

BEE HBME ATHRE(HESFAAZE  No Directors, their associates or shareholders (which to

BARRDNBIRAS%A L) RARFEEZEAERY  the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the

BmER LB EERES 2R - Company’s share capital) were interested at any time
during the year in the above suppliers or customers.

TERBHRE FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
NEBBERFEZ¥4E BENBERYIP  The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
%138 ° five years are summarised on page 13.

Lip= NS PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

FTEMBARFBHEH NG AP EIHKRE  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
BsEat o Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in share capital during the year are set out in
Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December
2019 calculated under the Company’s Bye-laws and the
Bermuda laws, amounted to HK$587,405,000 (2018:
HK$587,738,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no pre-emptive rights upon the issue of shares
which are imposed by the Company’s Bye-laws or
Bermuda laws.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2019, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in book values of property, plant and

equipment during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group for charitable and other
purposes during the year amounted to HK$151,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel
Mr. Wan Man Keung
Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP
Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JpP

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David

In accordance with Bye-law 112 of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, Dr. Li Ka
Cheung, Eric and Mr. Alfred Donald Yap shall retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The existing Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are not appointed for a specific term but is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company in accordance
with the provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors the annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”)
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and considers them as independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (former name: Wong Chung
Mat, Benedict), aged 68, joined the Group in 1975. He
has been a Director of the Company since June 1990.
In February 2003, he was appointed Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr. Wong is
the Chairman of the Administrative Committee of the
Company and a director of various other companies
of the Group. He is also a director of Salop Investment
Limited which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He obtained a Master of Science degree in
Operations Research from Ohio State University and was
conferred an Honorary Fellowship by the City University
of Hong Kong. He has over 45 years’ experience in the
electronics industry. Mr. Wong is the father of Ms. Wong
Yin Man, Ada; and brother of Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny, Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt,
Chung Chui and Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia, and
brother-in-law of Ms. Woo Sin Ming, who are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, aged 42, joined the Group
in 2002 and was appointed Director of the Company
in October 2005. She is the Chairperson of the
Risk Management Committee and a member of the
Administrative Committee of the Company. She is also
a director of certain other companies of the Group.
She is responsible for Central Sourcing and Supply
Management, Finance and other departments of the
Group. She is currently a director of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company
Limited and a member of the Enterprise Support Scheme
Assessment Panel under the Innovation and Technology
Fund. She obtained a Bachelor degree in Industrial
Engineering and a Master of Science in Engineering
Management from University of Southern California.
Ms. Wong is the daughter of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben;
and a niece of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny, Mr. Wong
Chung Yin, Michael, Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui, Ms. Wong
Chung Yan, Claudia and Ms. Woo Sin Ming, who are
substantial shareholders of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel, aged 71, joined the Group
in 1985. He has been a Director of the Company since
June 1990. He is also a member of the Administrative
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk
Management Committee of the Company. He was
formerly the Group’s Financial Controller. In July 2007,
he ceased to be the Group’s Financial Controller and
became a financial adviser of the Group. He is also a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and obtained a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences, a Master of Arts degree in China Development
Studies and a Doctor of Philosophy degree from the
University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, he
had approximately 10 years’ experience with a major
international firm of accountants.

Mr. Wan Man Keung, aged 68, first joined the Group
in January 1988. After leaving the Group for about 14
months, he rejoined the Group in June 1993. In January
2004, he was appointed as a Director of the Company.
He is also a member of the Administrative Committee of
the Company and a director of certain other companies
of the Group. Mr. Wan is responsible for sales and
marketing and overall business development of the
Group. He obtained a Bachelor degree in Mechanical
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and
has over 44 years of experience in the electronics
manufacturing industry.

Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund, aged 65, joined the
Group in April 1992 and subsequently promoted to
Senior Vice President — Sales and Marketing in January
2012. He was appointed Director of the Company in
November 2015. Mr. Hung is also a member of the
Risk Management Committee of the Company and a
director of certain other companies of the Group. He
has over 42 years of working experience in electronics
manufacturing industry and now has the overall
responsibility of serving a portfolio of customers at
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Prior to joining the Group,
he held various managerial positions in manufacturing,
planning, sales & marketing departments in multinational
and listed companies. Mr. Hung obtained a Diploma
in Industrial Engineering from the Hong Kong
Baptist University and a Master degree in Business
Administration from the City University of Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, GBS, OBE, JP, FCPA (Practising), FCA,
FCPA (Aust), FCIS, LLD, DSocSc, HonDSocSc (EdUHK), BA, FAIA (Hon),

CGA (Hon), HonHKAT, RFP (Hon), aged 66, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in April 1999.

He is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Dr. Li is the honorary chairman of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited and an independent non-executive
director of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited, Transport International Holdings Limited, Hang
Seng Bank Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings)
Company Limited and Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited.
He was an independent non-executive director of Bison
Finance Group Limited (formerly known as RoadShow
Holdings Limited) (resigned on 12 December 2017). Dr. Li
is presently a member of The 13th National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
was a former member of the Legislative Council of Hong
Kong, former chairman of its Public Accounts Committee,
past president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and former adviser to the Ministry
of Finance on international accounting standards of the
People’s Republic of China.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, GBM, JP, aged 81, joined the Company
as an Independent Non-executive Director in October
1999. He is also the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company. Dr. Yu is the chairman of the HKI Group of
Companies and a director of a number of manufacturing
and investment companies. He is an independent
non-executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings
Limited, Tongda Group Holdings Limited and Fu Shek
Financial Holdings Limited. Dr. Yu had served as a
member of the Standing Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and the
Preparatory Committee for the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region acting as its Hong Kong affairs
adviser. He is currently a member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese General Chamber of
Commerce and permanent honorary president of the
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, JP, aged 81, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in September 2004. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee of
the Company. He is presently a common consultant
for both K.C. Ho & Fong and Yap & Lam, Solicitors
and Notaries. Mr. Yap is a former president of The Law
Society of Hong Kong and The Law Association for
Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA). He is also a former
Hong Kong Affairs Adviser and has served on various
public and community organizations. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of eSun Holdings
Limited and Hung Hing Printing Group Limited.

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David, aged 69, joined the
Company as an Independent Non-executive Director
in November 2015. He is a chartered engineer and
a member of The Institution of Engineering and
Technology, United Kingdom. He possesses 43
years of extensive experience in technology transfer,
technical management in research and development as
well as strategic business development for high-tech
companies. Mr. Cheung was a former member of the ICT
R&D Centre Technology Review Panel of the Hong Kong
Applied Science and Technology Research Institute
(ASTRI). He is currently a non-executive director of
Ecoinno (H.K.) Limited and a member of the Electrical
Engineering Departmental Advisory Committee of the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung obtained
a Master of Engineering from McMaster University,
Canada, a Master of Science in Engineering from the
University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of East Asia, Macau.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management

Mr. Chan Tin Lun, Byron, aged 52, joined the Group
in January 1997. He is currently Vice President and
responsible for the Group’s Technical Marketing in
USA. Mr. Chan is also a director of Wong’s International
USA Corporation and Wong’'s Electronics USA, Inc.,
both are subsidiaries of the Company engaged in the
development of the Company’s original design and
manufacturing business in the North America market.
He has more than 30 years of experience in the field of
electronics manufacturing. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Chan has worked in various leading international
manufacturing companies in USA. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering
from the University of Colorado, Boulder.

Mr. Tan Chang On, Lawrence, aged 70, joined the
Group in 1986 and, in February 2003, he was appointed
Director of the Company. In July 2014, he resigned
as Director of the Company but remains serving in the
U.S. Office of the Group and oversees the marketing
and sales of electronic products in the North America
and overseas markets. Mr. Tan is also a director of
certain companies of the Group. He graduated from
Ohio University with a BSEE in 1972 and then went to
University of Michigan at Ann Arbor and got his MSEE in
1974. After graduation, he joined a major corporation in
the United States for about 12 years before joining the
Group.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Senior Management (continued)

Ms. Wong Kit Yee, Kitty, aged 46, joined the Group
in August 2007 and is currently Executive Assistant
to the Chairman and Assistant Vice President of the
Group. She is responsible for overseeing Administration
in Corporate Office in Hong Kong, formulating and
implementing strategies and business plans for the
development of the Group’s property leasing and
management. Ms. Wong is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. Ms. Wong accumulated
extensive experience in various functions of office
management. She obtained a Bachelor degree of
Business Administration from the Open University of
Hong Kong.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, has become an honorary
chairman of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited upon its
merger with Li, Tang, Chen & Co. on 1 January 2020.

Dr. Yu Sun Say, Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company, is an independent non-executive director
of Fu Shek Financial Holdings Limited whose shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
since 19 February 2020.

Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David, Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, was appointed as a
non-executive director of Ecoinno (H.K.) Limited and
a member of the Electrical Engineering Departmental
Advisory Committee of the City University of Hong
Kong on 30 September 2019 and 1 December 2019,
respectively.
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14
Capacity

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests or short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were
as follows:

Long positions in shares of the Company

WILERITRG

Bk

ZEREAR Approximate
Number of percentage of the

ordinary shares issued shares

F A
Wong Chung Mat, Ben

B&
Wong Yin Man, Ada

T
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel

m K98
Wan Man Keung

BH%A
Yu Sun Say

EmEA ARIESER 2 = (M)
Beneficial owner and interest of

controlled corporation (Note)

EmBEEA

eneficial owner

\

9]

EmBEEA

eneficial owner

\

9]

EmBEEA

eneficial owner

\

o8]

EmBEEA

Beneficial owner

136,828,569 28.60%
1,000,000 0.21%
1,837,500 0.38%
1,000,000 0.21%

500,000 0.10%
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EERFETHRAE 2EH (F)

RAEDARG 277 (F)

B

FTEARAEERER (BBEFLBEGD) RARQF]
136,828,569 I FF AR - R FRMBB/IAT &
[BESEIE

(a)  1,000,0008% 0% 15 BB EEBARA -

(b) 135,828,569 & 17 FASalop Investment
Limited¥$8  MZARABRTEREEEER
B Rz e

BRAXMBEEEN R-F—-NF+ A
=t—H ARFEFHTBTBRABHLR
EXAZBEATHER AR HE M
BOEE (EERESF B ERMIEXVE) 2
Bt - RO R ESFPHEAACENES
KEIR IR F 35216 R E B fF 2 ok fft A2
BEIORR - HARBREETRIMNEGARA]
KR Ffr 2 SR BOR A

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVES (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Note:

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be
interested in 136,828,569 shares in the Company. These shares were
held in the following capacity:

(a) 1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
personally.

(b) 135,828,569 shares were held by Salop Investment Limited,
which was wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Wong Chung
Mat, Ben.

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2019,
none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company
or their respective associates had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

BEARNBESHEBTHRABMA - B -Z So far as is known to the Directors or chief executives of
—hFE+-A=+—8 " T AL (KQAE the Company, as at 31 December 2019, persons (other
BERTBITHABRIN RAAQRKML than the Directors or chief executives of the Company)
HEER M R A BN ESF LB EEA  who had interests or short positions in the shares or
FIGIEMTEF 2 LEMAZ KA  underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

U register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:
REATRGZHR Long positions in shares of the Company
LB BOTREO
Bal
TERREE HE LEREA Approximate
Name of a4 Number of percentage of the
substantial shareholders Capacity ordinary shares issued shares
EnfEAA (M)
Salop Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1) 135,828,569 28.39%
EEINGIER)
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee (Note 2) 119,307,699 24.93%
TR ERBBA EERZR2ERTZ
EEINGIER))
Wong Chung Ah, Johnny Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 90,163,532 18.84%
founder of a discretionary trust (Note 3)
EnA A (H53(c))
Kong King International Limited Beneficial owner (Note 3(c)) 87,928,532 18.38%
EFEA (ME3(c))
Mountainview International Limited Trustee (Note 3(c)) 87,928,532 18.38%
FAK ERA ARLRIHE 2 5 (H5T4)
Wong Chung Yin, Michael Beneficial owner and joint interest (Note 4) 78,526,001 16.41%
FEEE: RARE 2 ER REEER (i)
Woo Sin Ming Joint interest and interest of spouse (Note 4) 78,526,001 16.41%
TAR ERA AR ENEE 2 5 (o)
Wong Chung Yan, Claudia Beneficial owner and interest of controlled 38,320,881 8.01%
corporation (Note 5)
%A A (M5(0))
Floral Inc. Beneficial owner (Note 5(b)) 35,073,052 7.33%
AR REFZEMA (H56)
Everitt, Chung Chui Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
BR%A A (fte)
Sycamore Assets Limited Beneficial owner (Note 6) 31,379,167 6.56%
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Salop Investment Limited & — & £ BB L
2EBMEREBH AR - FLHMESREE
TRABZ ] — 8T -

HSBC International Trustee Limited#248 /& (18
BEH RS KM A RQ F119,307,6990%
O FEEED -  ZERHBRAUTENEHA

87,928,532/ Bk 5 mKong King
International LimitediR 1% — 18 & #&
Z5 # H > MHSBC International
Trustee Limited BZEFLZEFTA °
BLE T XMEES(c) °

(a)

31,379,167 B% 15 FH Sycamore Assets
LimitediRiE —H2EEEH/E M
HSBC International Trustee Limited
RZETZETEA - BRHET MG -

T ARG SERR A (BRESRBEKRD) RA
AA)90,163,532 P HHEHE - ZERMD
BEBRATHMEHR

1,000,0008% A% £ /1 £ &8 42 55 A8 {E A
FA -

(a)

1,235,000 A E B EZET
PERELtTEE -

87,928,532k ik fa BHKong King
International LimitediR % — B 212
AEE mMIBRELERE R GRE
BHERBERD) ZEE2IRA
HSBC International Trustee Limited
8] A1=5E A ° Kong King International
LimitedfEMountainview International
Limited2 5% A - m#Z 27 Al H
HSBC International Trustee Limited
2EWA - TAE/EE - Kong King
International Limited * Mountainview
International Limited HSBC
International Trustee Limited®& B #17
A AR —#87,928,532% % 19 < #
%o B2 EXHE2(a) -
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes:

Salop Investment Limited was a company wholly-owned and
controlled by Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben. Please refer to the
Note under the section headed “Interests of Directors and chief
executives”.

HSBC International Trustee Limited was deemed (by virtue
of the SFO) to be interested in 119,307,699 shares in the
Company. These shares were held in the following capacity:

(a)

87,928,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which HSBC
International Trustee Limited was the trustee. Please
refer to Note 3(c) below.

31,379,167 shares were held by Sycamore Assets
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which HSBC
International Trustee Limited was the trustee. Please
refer to Note 6 below.

Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny was deemed (by virtue of the
SFO) to be interested in 90,163,532 shares in the Company.
These shares were held in the following capacity:

(a)

1,000,000 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny personally.

1,235,000 shares were held by Ms. Luk Kit Ching, wife
of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny.

87,928,532 shares were held by Kong King International
Limited under a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Wong
Chung Ah, Johnny was regarded as the founder (by
virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee
Limited was the trustee. Kong King International Limited
was wholly-owned by Mountainview International
Limited, which was wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited. Each of Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny,
Kong King International Limited, Mountainview
International Limited and HSBC International Trustee
Limited was deemed to be interested in the same block
of 87,928,532 shares. Please refer to Note 2(a) above.
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BAXFRBEEN  R-F

(&)
FRBEEREEZFHERLZLIHE R (RE
BHREEEG) RA A F R —#£78,526,001
RO EEER ZEROBEATEH
BA -
(a) 50,458,0410% i% 17 B8 T B AL 2% & 8 A
BE-
(b) 28,067,9600% f& 17 M T B K5 £ &
HERATLRREE -
TRBZIHGE A (REZFHFRKBEKRG) R
N2 F)38,320,88 1R AR D IS B i o :ZFARD
BBUNTHMEE
(a) 3,247 829 % 10 B £ £ B 2 + 1@ A
A -
(b) 35,073,0520% B {5 BaFloral Inc.#%4 -
Mz ARABHTLRRLT2EHER
fredl| o F B &+ KFloral Inc.& 8
A AR — 35,073,052 i% 1 2
)f /\ °
FRABZEIHE A (BREZELHERBAEKRG) R

RNAE31,379, 167 B R iF B EzE - ZEFR
{3 fiSycamore Assets LimitediRiE —IEZ2# (2
ARE MEBMETHEE R (REZHERD
E&0) Z{=5E 2 8l# A - HSBC International
Trustee Limited8] 7% & 5 A ° Sycamore
Assets Limited EBHSBC International Trustee
Limited2 &% A - £ &£ # &+ + Sycamore
Assets Limited 2HSBC International Trustee
Limited® B # R &15 6 R —#£31,379, 167k i%
M2z - B2H EXHE2(D) °

—NWEFE+=A

E—l—*EI CBRWAHBEMEMALTRAR
RERMDHBAERD P HEAALENESF K

HE

S DI FE 33616 IRE B 17 2 e 8k M A 2 #E

WIYORE °
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

4.

6.

Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael and his wife, Ms. Woo Sin
Ming, were deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to be interested in
the same block of 78,526,001 shares in the Company. These
shares were held in the following capacity:

(a) 50,458,041 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael personally.

(b) 28,067,960 shares were held by Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael and Ms. Woo Sin Ming jointly.

Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia was deemed (by virtue of the
SFO) to be interested in 38,320,881 shares in the Company.
These shares were held in the following capacity:

(a) 3,247,829 shares were held by Ms. Wong Chung Yan,
Claudia personally.

(b) 35,073,052 shares were held by Floral Inc., which was
wholly-owned and controlled by Ms. Wong Chung Yan,
Claudia. Each of Ms. Wong Chung Yan, Claudia and
Floral Inc. was deemed to be interested in the same
block of 35,073,052 shares.

Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was deemed (by virtue of the SFO) to
be interested in 31,379,167 shares in the Company which were
held by Sycamore Assets Limited under a discretionary trust,
of which Mrs. Everitt, Chung Chui was regarded as the founder
(by virtue of the SFO) and HSBC International Trustee Limited
was the trustee. Sycamore Assets Limited was wholly-owned
by HSBC International Trustee Limited. Each of Mrs. Everitt,
Chung Chui, Sycamore Assets Limited and HSBC International
Trustee Limited was deemed to be interested in the same block
of 31,379,167 shares. Please refer to Note 2(b) above.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of
any other persons who, as at 31 December 2019, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 2 June 2010. No option has been granted
under the Scheme since its adoption date and up to 31
December 2019.

SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A summary of the Scheme disclosed in accordance with
the Listing Rules is as follows:

1. Purpose

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize and
acknowledge participants who have contributed or
will contribute to the Group.

2. Participants

The participants are Directors of the Company
(including Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive Directors) and full
time or part time employees of any member of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

3. Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not
exceed 20% of the issued shares of the Company
from time to time.
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SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted to
any participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) under the Scheme and any
other schemes of the Company in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the issued shares of
the Company, unless approved by shareholders.

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Board
to each grantee at the time of making an offer, and
in any event such period of time shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised

Unless otherwise determined by the Board at its
sole discretion, there is a minimum period of 1
year for which an option must be held after its date
of grant before such an option can be exercised.

Amount payable on acceptance of the
option and the payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of an option must be
paid by the grantee to the Company within 21
days from the date on which an offer letter is
delivered to the grantee.
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ERETESE (&) SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(continued)
8. HEETHEEZEE 8. Basis of determining the exercise price
TEEEHESSSRMNBET & The exercise price shall be such price determined
REAER T AMFER Tz &E®E by the Board in its absolute discretion but in any

event shall not be less than the higher of:

(a) BHORELHEB(MEBEAEZH (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in
H)REXMEBERERMHR.. the daily quotations sheets issued by the
WmE Stock Exchange on the date of grant which

must be a business day;

(b) MOREERML A HFISES (b) the average closing price of the shares as
HREEZFMTSHRERAR S stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
FHWHE R by the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the date of the
grant; and
(c) MWIHHEE- (c) the nominal value of the shares.
9. ZTEIZEXNH 9. Life of the Scheme
ZatElERBE T —ZTFRAZHE The Scheme shall remain in force for 10 years
—TE-TFERA—B(BFEZAB) E10 commencing on 2 June 2010 up to and including
FHIBMER A - 1 June 2020.
REROIEFZRH ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES

OR DEBENTURES

BrEEIRRESTEIGN - AR T - HEHEBARF - E  Apart from the share option scheme, at no time
HESEE S AP ERAREEARNBESIY  during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries, its
EARHE - BEAR ﬂZ%%‘EIEﬁEﬁU\ associated corporations, or its specified undertaking

BREERE 2 %%/\i—hﬁﬂﬁ%kﬁ a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
sk H MO AE ST EMmAABE 2 «  chief executives of the Company or their respective
MR, &S MR A & o associates to acquire benefits by means of acquisition

of shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its associated corporations or any other body
corporate.
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B 4 89 10 =

FARARRBIMEFLRZBBEHE  REE
RERIDARTEZBIRETBIRRIN -

iR K48 A &

BRAKBRARBNFE ZFBENESY
BHRRMEET

REA  RRAFIZ2EMBRARETRETFAE
RARI(EREF]) REREFEEBRA
Al ([EEXEFEE]) MWong's Kong King
International (Holdings) Limited ([ WKK
Holdings]) 2 2 EMB AR TR BREE TR
HERAR ([ERNEREEF)BERE TR
WREG (HEIZEXSH]) °

RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H " WKK
Holdingsz B & 1TIR A MR £ B EE -
FRBRAEERTAREED G EZERH
H46.08% ~ 3.24%5.81% M @= - £ B
A CTEGEERTEMEEHEARR
AMITESESREITEMETEAREEZRA -
FTARARAEERETAREENARRAEE
KRR - AR TITERBREETFATEMEE
FRMEERTEMAEEGLEIEHENAD
AI(ERR EMHAA) - HRTAKLEE -
FRMAERTEMMEEZBEA - HRE
FHARAIE14A12(2) ()G BRIE AL ©
i BB ETRBNFEI4AT  ZEXHER
KRR BERS °

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the
Company during the year, save for the share option
scheme which subsisted at the year end.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Wong’s Electronics Company Limited
(“Wong’s Electronics”) and WEHC Limited (“WEHC”),
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, purchased
certain equipment and accessories from WKK Electronic
Equipment Limited (“WKK Electronic”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Wong’'s Kong King International
(Holdings) Limited (“WKK Holdings”) (collectively, the
“Transactions”).

As at 31 December 2019, the issued share capital of
WKK Holdings was legally and beneficially owned as
to 46.08% by Mr. Senta Wong, 3.24% by Mr. Wong
Chung Ah, Johnny and 5.81% by Mr. Wong Chung
Yin, Michael. Mr. Senta Wong, Mr. Wong Chung Ah,
Johnny and Mr. Wong Chung Yin, Michael are brothers
of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben, the Executive Director
and substantial shareholder of the Company. Both
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael are substantial shareholders of the Company.
As WKK Electronic is a majority-controlled company
(as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr. Senta Wong,
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael, it is an associate of Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben,
Mr. Wong Chung Ah, Johnny and Mr. Wong Chung Yin,
Michael and is therefore a connected person under
Rule 14A.12(2)(b) of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
Transactions constituted connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of the Transactions are set out below:

X2 E5l
Types of Transactions

RE

Consideration

—T-AFMOAZtRH

26 April 2019

—E-nFASAZ+HNB

28 June 2019

“F-NAFNAAZTH

20 September 2019

—E-NF+ZHA=+—8

31 December 2019

ZERHGZREBE/BEATHTAURE

SRR

(a) MREB30%RZNFET&
B sz 1

(b) MRIE4A0%Z 5 —
Ao PR ST A )32

(c) REBKFRLTERBEI( - (c)

FTREFRATRERST
BERELREMY

Purchases of equipment and
accessories by Wong'’s
Electronics from WKK Electronic

ITREFRAETRABEZET
BERENMEMF

Purchases of equipment and

accessories by Wong’s Electronics from

WKK Electronic

IRETEERNIRAEEE
BERENMEMF

Purchases of equipment and

accessories by WEHC from WKK Electronic

IREFTEERNIRAEEE
BERENMEMF

Purchases of equipment and
accessories by WEHC from
WKK Electronic

27,360,040H [&]
(2L 4975 %1,997,2837T)
JPY27,360,040
(or approximately HK$1,997,283)

27,360,040H [&]
(2L 4975 %1,997,2837T)
JPY27,360,040
(or approximately HK$1,997,283)

68,845,220H [&]

(8L 4975 #5,025,7017T)
JPY68,845,220

(or approximately HK$5,025,701)

HEERI 81 79,755,320H
(K75 ¥65,742,3837T)

HEERI 82 : 66,600,220H
(K75 ¥64,795,2167T)

Purchase order 1: JPY79,755,320
(or approximately HK$5,742,383)

Purchase order 2: JPY66,600,220
(or approximately HK$4,795,216)

The consideration for the Transactions were/will be

satisfied by cash in the following manner:

RERRBETE  (a)

an initial deposit of 30% of the consideration upon

confirmation of purchase orders;

a further deposit of 40% of the consideration upon

delivery of the equipment and accessories; and

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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KREERS - AARIAIEET EHRAZAE
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The aggregate consideration of the Transactions was
JPY269,920,840 (or approximately HK$19,557,866),
which was determined after arm’s length negotiations
between the parties and on an order-by-order basis.
The Transactions arose from the Group’s requirement
to source production facilities to be installed at its
manufacturing facilities in Vietnam and China. The
terms of the Transactions were considered as fair and
reasonable and the Transactions were entered into on
normal commercial terms, in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group.

Further details of the Transactions were disclosed
in the Company’s announcements dated 15 October
2019, 13 December 2019 and 31 December 2019 in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
except that the original acquisition cost of the equipment
and accessories of WKK Electronic was not being
disclosed to the Company, which is required under Rule
14A.68(5). And due to unintentional overlook by the
Company, there was a delay in publication of the first
announcement for about four months after the disclosure
obligation under Rule 14A.35 was first triggered. The
Company has taken measures to enhance its internal
control in this relation.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Where any transaction mentioned in Note 40 to
the consolidated financial statements constitutes a
connected transaction, the disclosure and approval
requirements, if any, under the Listing Rules have been
complied with.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
Transactions”, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had, whether directly or indirectly, a material interest
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

There is no service contract, which is not determinable
by the Company or its subsidiaries within 1 year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation), with any Director proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

PERMITTED DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES AND
INSURANCE

The Bye-laws of the Company provide that every
Director or other officer of the Company and the
liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being shall
be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
his office, to the extent permitted by the laws.

The Company has also taken out and maintained
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance throughout the
year, which provides appropriate cover for certain legal
actions that may be brought against its Directors and
officers.
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EEERES

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

RZZE—NAF+_A=+—H EREEZ As at 31 December 2019, the details of the significant
investments are set out below:

ABEMT

BEERRLS

& 7 B 3L ith 26 BFERMEE Proportion of TE%¥K
NGRS i Place of Number of ownership  Principal
Name of company incorporation shares held interest  activities
Talent Chain EBREMAHESE TE R

Investments Limited BVI 357 35.7% Investment holding

BREEBRAR (ME) &F TNEA MERR
Crown Opal Investment  Hong Kong N/A 35.7%  Property holding

Limited (Note)

M3t © WERIEE AR QA ATalent Chain Investments

LimitedZ M1 B A A °

RZE—NALF+_A=+—8  RTalent
Chain Investments Limited 2@ B&&E B R
NAE) 2 E FRE A B2 498,400,0007T ¢
ZeRHBBARNEEBREESY  MAAEE
A5 ¥2,691,800,0007T © BN AEEBEEE
32.9% °

REBEE-_FTE-—NF+_A=T—HILF
E HifE - fE{hTalent Chain Investments
Limited X B B EBR AR 2 M B REK
104,900,0007T ' ZeRBEEEREEE D
EMEA -

Talent Chain Investments Limited & &
BRI EBERAAZCEERBFEMRE
# M) Two Harbour Squarefd £1EF o &£
EREAEE 2 REZTRKE AEEHE
AR AR ZYETRR < #m - LEHA
A& -

Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited is a subsidiary of Talent Chain

Investments Limited.

As at 31 December 2019, net investment in Talent Chain
Investments Limited and Crown Opal Investment Limited
was HK$2,498.4 million, which amount exceeds 5% of
the total assets of the Group, and the fair value was
HK$2,691.8 million, which represents 32.9% of the total
assets of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the share of
profits of Talent Chain Investments Limited and Crown
Opal Investment Limited, which included in the share of
profits of joint ventures, was HK$104.9 million.

The investment of Talent Chain Investments Limited and
Crown Opal Investment Limited is holding a commercial
building in Kwun Tong, Two Harbour Square. It is the
Group’s preference to hold its interest in its attributable
share of the property project as much as possible for
leasing purposes after taking into account the Group’s
financial requirements.
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BELFMBAUNE+=FEETZ2HBEET
RZE-—NAEFE+ZA=+—8B BFFTA
S£EBE /A & %E0pen Vantage Limited &
Talent Chain Investments Limited2Z B
75 #1,166,800,0007T BB A EEBR =T
—jli—l—*ﬂ =T —HREEIZ8% ZEFR

HREERREE - ZFEHRIR_EZN
¢§\E T-NF - FHEEBT-_A=1—H
L RFEE AR -

ERZEALCENTBEERBMBHENEGS
B 75 FR R M 5220 o
RAARHPRR—_E—FHEFE+—A=-+mMA

&79? Eiﬂ'fﬂ‘fﬂiﬂ?éﬁﬁ NGNS
K - AA AR MTalent Chain Investments
Limitedi2 5B /NIT 5 E B - |RIZ E R
A EERAR T*IEEE”% i
BERZ M RB

KEERRMNEBEREL

ARIFREEARBREEEZ BITEK
Fo3B S H#R ﬁé%%ﬁﬁwamm i 7
RBB1FE SRERZ RTERREME
CQIRIE DS ,Zv?/m\ﬁﬂ%#ﬁi%ﬁﬁufmm R

A AEBETEKHERERER -

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

Based on the disclosure obligations under Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, as at 31 December 2019, the
loans advanced to Open Vantage Limited and Talent
Chain Investments Limited, the joint venture companies
of the Group, amounted to HK$1,166.8 million, which
amount exceeds 8% of the total assets of the Group as
at 31 December 2019. The advances are unsecured
and interest-free. The advances were made during the
financial years ended 31 December from 2008 to 2019.

The summarised financial information of the joint venture
companies are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 24 November 2015 and 15 December 2015, the
Company issued an announcement and a circular
respectively in relation to the provision of additional
financial assistance to Talent Chain Investments Limited
which constituted a major transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details were set out in
the announcement and circular.

GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year or
on demand are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements. Bank loans and other borrowings
repayable within a period of more than 1 year are set out
in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements. No
interest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
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ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL MATTERS

The Group’s performance on environmental and social
matters is set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of this Annual Report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices of the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
the Company believes that the number of shares of the
Company which are in the hands of the public is above
the relevant prescribed minimum percentage.

AUDITOR
The financial statements for the year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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The Company is pleased to present the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant environmental, social
and governance issues. The report has been prepared
with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide in Appendix
27 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange ESG Guide”). In the opinion of the Directors
of the Company, for the year under review, the Company
has complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set
out in the Stock Exchange ESG Guide.

It is the commitment of the Group to manufacture and
supply good quality products, while caring about the
community, environment and natural resources and
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. The
Group has set up business standards and ethical
practices which enable us to fulfill our commitments
to our stakeholders, including employees, customers,
suppliers, shareholders and the communities. We
realize that dialogues with stakeholders as well as their
feedback and concerns are crucial for the continuous
enhancement and growth of the Group. Our stakeholder
engagement involved obtaining input from our key staff
members of various divisions and making reference
to the ongoing communication with other external
stakeholders. Materiality assessment was conducted
through evaluation of such input by the management.
The ESG areas and aspects stated in this Report are
considered as material and have significant impact on
the Group. With the awareness of such ESG areas and
aspects, there is opportunity for improvement through
enhancement of our operations.
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This Report covers the core activities of the Group
which involve operations of the two manufacturing
factories located in Shenzhen and Suzhou under our
wholly-owned subsidiaries, namely Welco Wong's
Technology (Shenzhen) Limited and Welco Technology
(Suzhou) Limited, respectively. The production of our
new manufacturing facility in Vietnam has not yet started
by the end of 2019 and therefore not being covered in
this Report. Furthermore, in respect of the social aspect,
the Company’s principal office in Hong Kong is also
involved. Additional information in relation to the Group’s
corporate governance is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report of this Annual Report.

HEREREE

Our ESG areas of concern

TESMEERESRMIKR
¢ Workplace Quality and
Employee Relationship

KRB HI LR B
e Emissions and Energy » Employment
Conservation A8 T AR
K - Labour Standards
e Water Consumption R R IE|
BEEY B . Development and Training
e Waste Management e ds ik
EREMER Health and Safety
e Other Use of Resources MEP@J
e Operating Practices
HiEEER
» Supply Chain Management
EmEE
_ » Product Responsibility
TAARF R SEERBEE AR RE)S
Also covered in the Corporate Anti-corruption
Governance Report of this ?ila_ﬁxﬁ

Annual Report

e Community Investment
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to minimize the impacts to the
environment and natural resources and continuously
improve the environmental sustainability of the business.
Qur vision is to bring good quality products to the
customers around the world while actively control and
endeavor to reduce emissions, wastes and inefficient
use of resources and energy. An Environmental, Health
and Safety Committee (“EHSC”) has been established
to oversee environmental, health and safety matters.
Our manufacturing facilities are constantly managed
and monitored under international environmental quality
systems (ISO14001 and OHSAS 18001).

Our Environmental Policy includes:

- Educate and motivate all our employees to be
accountable and responsible for environment
protection.

- Prevent pollution through evaluation of
manufacturing processes and materials to
eliminate or minimize environmental impact due to
hazardous substances or wastes.

- I[dentify hazards in all activities, and take
appropriate actions to control risks and avoid
serious injuries.

- Conserve all resources through efficient usage.

- Comply with all relevant environmental laws and
government requirements.

- Review the effectiveness of the environmental
management system through regular audits for
continuous improvements.

- Meet international hazardous substance
regulations and green requirements from specific
customers.

Share and address compliance concerns with all
interested parties.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Emissions and Energy Conservation

We have taken rigorous efforts to enhance and upgrade
the environmental facilities and improve the capabilities
in processing and reducing wastes and emissions
related to hazardous elements in the manufacturing
process.

Our air emissions were generated mainly by company
vehicles. In 2019, our NO,, SO, and PM were 1,731.8
kgs (2018: 1,424.39 kgs), 1.62 kgs (2018: 1.73 kgs) and
120.55 kgs (2018: 98.53 kgs) respectively. Comparing
with the result in 2018, the increase was mainly due to
increase of the travel distances. Relevant departments
are assigned to monitor and conduct maintenance
regularly to ensure the vehicles are in good conditions.

Our greenhouse gas emissions were contributed mainly
by electricity consumptions, company vehicles and
carbon emissions from the production machines. In
2019, our greenhouse gas emission was 18,803 tons
(2018: 19,480 tons) and electricity consumption was
32,093,800 kwh (2018: 33,346,962 kwh). Comparing
with the result in 2018, greenhouse gas emission and
electricity consumption were decreased by 3.5% and
3.8% respectively. The Company considered great
importance on energy efficiency to minimize the
greenhouse gas emission

We conducted regular environmental testing through
government certified laboratories with respect to
international standards and government laws and
regulations.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Emissions and Energy Conservation (continued)

Actions we have taken to reduce air emissions, emission

of CO,,

energy consumption; and improve energy

efficiency include:

Replaced facility equipment and machinery
including elevators and chillers for efficiency
improvement.

Installed timers and light sensors to control the air
conditioning and lighting in common corridors and
offices for energy saving.

Installed variable frequency device to circulating
water pumps in air conditioning system for
efficiency improvement.

Replaced various general lights to LED lights.
Adjusted and optimized the operating parameters
of the central air-conditioning chiller for higher

efficiency.

Cleaned the heat exchanger of the air-conditioning
equipment for higher heat exchange efficiency.

Adjusted outlet pressure of compressed air to
save energy.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Water Consumption

We endeavor to conserve water effectively in the
operations and implemented water conservation
programs as follow:

- Replaced water supply device of the cooling tower
to reduce the consumption of tap water.

- Installed water meter to strengthen water
consumption control in canteen.

- Used waste water to replace pure water for toilet
flushing.

- Promoted and motivated employees to support the
water-saving program.

In 2019, water consumption was 277,383 tons (2018:
294,589 tons) which was decreased 5.8% by comparing
with the result in 2018.

Waste Management

In 2019, hazardous wastes and non-hazardous wastes
were 699 tons (2018: 209 tons) and 1,038 tons (2018:
1,086 tons) respectively. Comparing with the result
in 2018, hazardous wastes were increased mainly
due to introduction of new customers whose products
needs ultrasonic aqueous cleaning to clean the
PCBAs. With the aim to create a sustainable society,
we conduct strict classification of hazardous wastes
and non-hazardous wastes, and hazardous wastes
are stored in special areas, handled by well-trained
employees in accordance with working instructions and
disposed through accredited vendors.

Waste reduction and recycling have been promoted and
implemented in the factories. We recycled solder dross
from the wave soldering machines to reduce the amount
of hazardous wastes. We returned some of the chemical
containers and packaging to the suppliers to reuse and
recycle. We used recycles boxes to reduce the use of
packing materials.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Other Use of Resources

Package materials are used to protect our products
in order to minimize the risk of damage during
transportation. In 2019, package materials used was
1,660 tons (2018: 1,865 tons) which was lower than the
usage in 2018.

We aim to minimize the impacts to the environment
while our electronic manufacturing business consume
significant amount of energy and resources. By
implementing lean manufacturing, automation and
optimizing logistics within the factories, we strive
to improve our resources and energy efficiencies,
productivity and to reduce the use of raw materials.
Environmental targets and plans are conveyed to the
employees to maintain an environmental cautious
workplace.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F



RIE -HERERREE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR (&) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
RS WIBE Key Performance Indicators

HERE Quantitative disclosure

BRENER —E-NE —T-)N\F
Key
Performance
Indicators 2019 2018

RS (RT)
Air emissions (kgs)

AR

- NO,
wmal

- 80, A1.1 1.62 1.73
LRk

~PM A1.1 120.55 98.53

mERBEYER (W)
Greenhouse gas emission (tons) Al.2 18,803 19,480

A1 1,731.80 1,424.39

U B AR = REEBEN
(REAE A& TR PRS0
Greenhouse gas emission per revenue
(tons per revenue HK$'million) A1.2 5.34 4.94

BEEZEY (M)
Hazardous waste (tons) A1.3 699 209

BRREUNEEEEY
(REAB A& TR E £
Hazardous waste per revenue
(tons per revenue HK$'million) A1.3 0.20 0.05

mEREZEY (HE)
Non-hazardous waste (tons) Al.4 1,038 1,086

RSB EEERY
(REBY A& T e 8 E S AS0)
Non-hazardous waste per revenue
(tons per revenue HK$'million) Al.4 0.29 0.28

fERERE-EEE (TRK)
Energy consumption — Electricity (kwh) A2.1 32,093,800 33,346,962

B E BN RBER B
—REE (KA ETWaNEEE TR

Energy consumption per revenue A2.1 9,113 8,450
— Electricity (kwh per revenue HK$'million)

FKE (W8)
Water consumption (tons) A2.2 277,383 294,589
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Rk () ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
RABEE WIS (&) Key Performance Indicators (continued)
HEWHE(E) Quantitative disclosure (continued)
HRERER —E-hEF —T-N\F
Key
Performance
Indicators 2019 2018

5 U 24 % i ¥ K B
(FGEER BTG FEKENEE)
Water consumption per revenue

(tons per revenue HK$'million) A2.2 78.76 74.65
BEMEMERE (88)
Packing material use (tons) A2.5 1,660 1,865

BREEMNBEMERE
(ZEE¥aETRENERMER)

Packing material use per revenue

(tons per revenue HK$'million) A2.5 0.47 0.47

EmEE General disclosure
ARERER =]

Key Performance

Indicators Section
UK BEP R B0 b R PG AE R HER R En A RE IR
Description of measures to mitigate A1.5 Emissions and Energy
emissions and results achieved Conservation
HAEIR R ERBERENNIE  RIEEEENEELAFER BEEYE IR
Description of how hazardous and A1.6 Waste Management

non-hazardous wastes are handled,
reduction initiatives and results achieved

fa it g TR B A a5t B R TS AR HER I B 40 BE TR

Description of energy use efficiency A2.3 Emissions and Energy
initiatives and results achieved Conservation

R A BT B R ATE KR FA7K

Description of water efficiency initiatives A2.4 Water Consumption
and results achieved

I ERRBHIRT R RAEIRNERNTE LD RRER R
EREHATENTH

Description of the significant impacts A3.1 The last paragraph
of activities on the environment and for Environmental Protection

natural resources and the actions taken
to manage them

M3E : FaERTYE RS FRERE P Wz #TT  Note: Revenue of Electronic Manufacturing Service division is used to

A o evaluate the above performance.
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SOCIAL
Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
Employment

We consider that employees are our valuable assets and
are committed to building an amicable and rewarding
relationship with the employees.

Our policy upholds a fair and equal treatment in areas of
recruitment and promotion, compensation and dismissal,
working hours, diversity and other benefits and welfare.
We adopt a remuneration policy which is commensurate
with job nature, qualification and experience of
employees. In addition to the provision of annual
bonuses and employee related insurance benefits,
discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to employees
based on individual performance. Remuneration
packages and policies are reviewed periodically to
ensure that compensation and benefits are in line with
the market-competitive pay level. We arrange with
some hospitals in China to ensure our expatriates can
receive immediate medical services when working
outside their home countries. The Group is committed
to maintaining good corporate governance, achieving a
highest standard of integrity, probity and accountability
by enforcing whistle-blowing policy. Employees at all
levels are expected to conduct themselves with integrity,
impartiality and honesty which enable our stakeholders
to have trust and faith in the Group to take care of their
needs and to fulfill its social responsibility.

In the areas of recruitment and promotion, compensation
and dismissal, statutory laws and regulations are strictly
complied with. Overtime is on voluntary basis and is
compensated according to the local laws.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Employment (continued)

We value diversity, equal opportunity and
anti-discrimination in our workforce regardless of
gender, race, age, marital status and nationality. To
promote the gender sensitivity concept in the daily work
of our staff, the Company has joined the gender focal
point network (“GFP Network”) for listed companies set
up by the Labour and Welfare Bureau and the Women’s
Commission of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region Government since 2016. Under the GFP
Network, our designated representatives will serve as
the contact and resource persons for communication
and collaboration on gender-related matters between
the Company and the Government with a target to
enhance our gender awareness and understanding of
gender mainstreaming.

Labour Standards

We prohibit the employment of child labour in pursuance
of the International Labor Organization Conventions,
national laws or any other applicable law or standard.
We also prohibit all kinds of forced or compulsory labour
under any conditions, including bonded, forced and/
or compulsory prison labour to work. We also follow
the highest standard regarding the social insurance
requirements for the employees’ contributions.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Development and Training

We allocate ample resources to staff training and
development with the aim of sustaining a competent,
professional and ethical staff force that will contribute to
the success of the Group.

Our commitment to staff development is also aligned
with the expectation that authorized institutions should
engage and deploy personnel with sufficient skills,
knowledge and experience for the discharge of their
duties. There are reinforcement and refresher training
programs to ensure that employees are in possession
of the latest information and skills for carrying out
their duties with the highest standards, for examples,
leadership training, team building and supervisory
skills, safety and sales product and technical training,
etc. In addition, we also sponsor and provide time-off
for employees who take external training programs
relevant to their duties and responsibilities. We have
internal certified trainers to train relevant employees for
required technical certifications. Employees may also
join external training programs on certifications required.
We also recruit some graduates each year to take up
first level jobs and develop them to the upper levels, e.g.
technicians, buyer, planner, etc.
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SOCIAL (continued)

Workplace Quality and Employee Relationship
(continued)

Health and Safety

We are committed to providing and ensuring healthy
and safe working conditions and environment free
from danger and hazards to our employees. It is
our principle that occupational safety and health of
employees should be given the first and foremost
consideration at work. We implement our safety
management system in accordance with the OHSAS
18001 standard. Health and safety issues concerning
our employees are escalated to the EHSC for decisions
and actions. In addition, certain specific positions, such
as nurse and safety officers, are employed to ensure
that the workplace is safe and that safety device and
protections are adequate to avoid any possible injuries
arising from our work. An examination of whether the
workplace is contaminated by particles is conducted by
a government-recognized third party on an annual basis.
We also arrange relevant workers to take body check
periodically. Furthermore, we provide our employees
with regular intensive training programs to alert their
safety awareness.

To provide relief on job pressure, we organize and
encourage employees to participate the recreational
activities organized by the Group such as annual dinner,
Christmas party, birthday gathering, interest class and
outing from time to time.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

We have suppliers from different regions globally. A
supplier management system is established for selecting
and qualifying suppliers to ensure the quality of the
purchased materials complies with the relevant laws
and regulations. Based on adequate qualification,
suppliers are subject to assessment and on-site audits
on product quality as well as capabilities and quality
consistency tests made by our quality department.
The Group only makes purchases from suppliers listed
in Approved Vendor List. Special requirements on
business ethics, health and safety environment and
public responsibilities are confirmed by suppliers before
approval.

Product Responsibility

Bringing high quality and safe products to our
customers around the world is our main objective. Our
Policy includes:

- Achieve total customer satisfaction through total
commitment to quality.

- Operate our system to fulfill customers’
requirements, international laws and regulations as
well as management’s direction.

- Comply with all relevant legislative requirements
on environmental occupational health and safety.

Product quality and safety are ensured by defining
correct manufacturing process and process controls.
Regular product inspections by both internal and
external professional parties also constitute an important
part of the overall safety program. Reliability tests
are conducted to evaluate product risks. Our quality
systems are in compliance with international standards
like ISO 9001, TS 16949 and ISO 13485 standards.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Operating Practices (continued)
Anti-corruption

Our Code of Conduct provides guidelines to all of
our staff to meet the high standards of integrity and
honesty in their daily operation internally and externally
in order to prevent and detect any kinds of bribery
and corruption prohibited by local laws and internal
regulations. This is also to ensure that the Group
operates to the high standards of business behaviour
and ethics in our engagement with customers,
business partners, shareholders, employees and the
business community. Employees are required to sign
an undertaking not to engage in any acts of corruption
when being employed. Business partners are notified
of the Group’s Supplier General Rules of Conduct to
ensure their integrity in the dealings with the Group. We
conduct periodical training in respect of these policies
to employees and refreshing training to employees
involved in purchasing and engineering every year. We
also conduct regular seminars on integrity every year.
We have zero tolerance towards noncompliance of the
Group’s anti-corruption policy.

In addition, in order to achieve the highest standards of
openness, probity and accountability, we have adopted
a whistle-blowing program to encourage disclosure
of any misconduct or irregularities to the Compliance
Officer directly in a confidential way. All reported cases
are handled with care by the Group and are investigated
in a fair and proper manner.
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SOCIAL (continued)
Community Investment

The Company and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wong’s
Electronics Company Limited, were awarded the Caring
Company Logo by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service for the eighth consecutive year. These serve
as recognition of the Group’s active participation in
community activities and good corporate citizenship.
The Group also participated in various events organized
by voluntary organizations to support and enhance
family functioning, and endeavor to contribute to the
building of a humane and caring society in Hong
Kong. We support fund raising for providing immediate
assistance to those suffered from misfortunes and to
promote environmental protection in community.

Over the years, we have been taking an active role in
various volunteering works, charity events and education
donation with an aim to create shared value and support
the people in need. Besides engaging our employees to
participate in those community and charity events, we
encourage them to bring along their family members.
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During 2019, we continued to visit SAGE Mrs. Wong Yee Jar Jat Memorial Home for the Elderly and
celebrated with them the Lunar New Year Festival. We also made donations of Aspara Machine to

them and had a mooncake sharing with the elderly.

BMPEREHETHINEERE  ERRBEHRAZTFE -9 -
We participated in the Operation Smile
Fundraising Dinner to benefit children with cleft lips and cleft palate.
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We made donations of We participated in China School Visit
Smart Grower Machine to — Xingxian Mountain
Yan Chai Hospital. Poverty Alleviation Study Tour.

l'o‘_‘ rmuﬁm P —

PRESENTATHN CEREMONY OF (KOS T4 Jﬂﬁm SCHEME 2019

BAEEEIXLER PN _T-NFIIERMEBOIXRGHEFTEREZLBIEZSE
=BEERMANEEMEEETEMAMENE N -
A Caring Certificate under the Industry Cares
Recognition Scheme 2019 was awarded to the Company by the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries in recognition of
our efforts in corporate social responsibility.
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We made donation to The Community Our staff participated in
Chest — Dress Casual Day 2019. the Yan Chai Charity Walk 2019.

BPNE LIRS AL ZR  ARER LBIE -
Our volunteers visited the Elderly Centre in
Shenzhen and showed our care to the elderly.
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A variety of employee competitions were organized by our
Shenzhen Factory during 2019, including Job Knowledge and Sports Competitions.
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Singing Contest 2019 and Mid-Autumn
Festival Celebration of our staff in Shenzhen.

FINBET2ERBRTREE -
Autumn Picnic and Party Time
of our staff in Suzhou.

B ZEEF=-HA=-+HH Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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The Company is committed to the establishment of
good corporate governance practices and procedures.
The corporate governance principles of the Company
emphasize a quality Board, effective risk management
and internal control, transparency and accountability to
all shareholders.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2019, the Company has complied with
the code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except that (a) the
positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
occupied by the same person, which deviates from code
provision A.2.1; (b) none of the existing Independent
Non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term but every Director is now subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company under Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of
the Company, which deviates from code provision A.4.1;
(c) the Company does not have the present intention to
establish a Nomination Committee in view that the Board
itself shall discharge all duties expected to be dealt with
by a Nomination Committee, which deviates from code
provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4.

During the year of 2019, the Board had reviewed and,
if required, made necessary changes to the corporate
governance practices of the Company in order to ensure
continued compliance with the CG Code. Details are
disclosed in this Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry to all
Directors, all Directors confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE

The Board has a schedule of matters reserved for
its approval. Pursuant to the schedule, the Board is
mainly responsible for formulating corporate strategies,
approving business plans and supervising the
Company’s financial and management performance.
Matters which may be discussed in Board meetings
include the formulation of the Group’s strategies
and policies; approval of significant business,
management and financial matters, annual budgets,
major acquisitions, disposals and capital commitments;
approval of matters relating to the Company’s
constitution and share capital, and change of board
members and auditors; establishment of board
committees; review of corporate governance and the
maintenance of appropriate risk management and
internal control systems.

The Company has established an Administrative
Committee which has all the general powers delegated
by the Board to deal with administration and daily
operation of the Company save as those matters set
out in the schedule of matters reserved to the Board
mentioned above. The Administrative Committee
currently comprises four Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Chairman of the
Administrative Committee), Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada, Dr.
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Wan Man Keung.

The Administrative Committee also delegates specific
tasks to the management, which includes the
preparation of accounts; implementation of strategies
and policies approved by the Board; day-to-day
monitoring of budgets; implementation of specific
business and work projects; implementation of corporate
governance, risk management and internal control
procedures and other compliance matters. Management
presents reports to the Administrative Committee (and
other delegated Board Committee) for its review and
guidance whenever necessary.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

In order to ensure equal, timely, effective, accurate
and proper disclosure of inside information under
the requirements of Part XIVA of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance and the Listing Rules, the Company
has identified a team of officers and executives with
knowledge and expertise to assist the Board for
assessing the nature and materiality of potential inside
information and determining whether public disclosure
is required subject to Board approval. The procedures
and documentation in this relation are under review of
the Company’s Internal Compliance Control Department.
Continuous training shall be provided to officers and
relevant employees (who are likely to be in possession
of inside information) for handling and reporting
potential inside information. Also, to minimize the risk of
unauthorized or inconsistent disclosure, only designated
persons are authorised to discuss the Company’s
corporate matters with investors, analysts, the media
and other members of the public.

The Board currently comprises five Executive Directors
and four Independent Non-executive Directors.
The biographical details of the Directors (including
relationships among the members of the Board) are set
out on pages 20 to 23 of this Annual Report.

The Board held four regular Board meetings in 2019
at approximately quarterly intervals to discuss the
overall strategy, operation, financial performance,
dividend policy, risk management and internal control
systems, corporate governance practices and Directors’
remuneration.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



TEREBREE

Corporate Governance Report

EEERTHEES (#)

MR ESFETHEREMARA-F
BRBEFRGZESFHFRRNT :

—hE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ADMINISTRATIVE
COMMITTEE (continued)

The attendance of the Directors at the four regular Board
meetings and the 2019 annual general meeting of the
Company was as follows:

EESERLEER
Attendance at
Board meetings

BRRASHESR
Attendance at
general meeting

HITESE Executive Directors
FAKEE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben

(EERITBARE) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 1/1
TEHLT Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 4/4 1/1
fRFEF LT Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 4/4 1/1
mR A Mr. Wan Man Keung 2/4 1/1
Ak K JIB % 4 Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 4/4 1/1
BIYKBITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREHET Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 4/4 1/1
BERAE LT Dr. Yu Sun Say 3/4 1/1
BEREBEEE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 4/4 1/1
REBEE Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 4/4 1/1
B BTt ESN  RER - FEREHMESE  Save as mentioned above, the Chairman held a separate

HEZT  EFEEBYIFNTEERINETT

B—XEE -

RBETESEERA  ESQEREEMEMN
FERUZEERE TIWMIER - IBEEE
ERREABREET REFSSIRELZ
FIEEHERABHER I ERLE - EF
BETREDNEREFRBEEAARAZRL
HAEH - TBEEEEREARAARANES
KERLERRT - HBEFE  EFTAM
SINFREXRER  BRBEARAXN -

meeting with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of other Directors during the year.

Before holding of a Board meeting, the Board is
supplied with all necessary information to enable it
to consider the matters to be discussed. A formal
agenda is followed in all Board meetings. All business
transacted at the Board meetings is documented in the
minutes of such meeting. Some Board decisions are
made by way of written resolutions of all Directors. All
Board members have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary. If necessary, Directors also
have access to external professional advice at the
expense of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as Directors of a listed company.
The Company introduces and recommends relevant
training courses and reading materials to the Directors
from time to time.

Each of the Directors has provided to the Company a
record of training received during the year of 2019. The
means of such training are as follows:

FINFRN Means of Training
BITES Executive Directors
FREREE IR Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben training course
(F/EFITHABH) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

FEHLZT 2RI Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada training course
PRFEE T #3I:R%2  Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel training course
R EE BIEMAE Mr. Wan Man Keung reading material
gEoK B2 A4 HE3IER 2 Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund training course

BIUKHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREET 48 L1555, BEwE,  Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric e-training/forum/
= ES e programme/
BIEM R reading material/
g,/ rEe/ seminar/sharing/
bss uJ\I%k/ training course/
ME g, TIES webinar/workshop
BHEAE LT #3IFR%2  Dr. Yu Sun Say training course
EREBRE BE#e 2 E5],  Mr. Alfred Donald Yap forum/programme/
F’ﬁuﬁﬁﬂ/ reading material/
HIIRE training course
RSB A FEskE® W&t €,”  Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David forum/seminar/

EHIERTE

training course
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Group’s Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer and has occupied these
two positions since February 2003. In allowing the
two positions to be occupied by the same person, the
Company has considered the following:

(a) Both positions require in-depth knowledge and
considerable experience of the Group’s business.
Candidates with the suitable knowledge, experience
and leadership are difficult to find both within
and outside the Group. If either of the positions is
occupied by an unqualified person, the Group’s
performance could be gravely compromised.

(b) The Company believes that the supervision of the
Board and its Independent Non-executive Directors
can provide an effective check and balance
mechanism and ensures that the interests of the
shareholders are adequately represented.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company is satisfied that its Independent
Non-executive Directors comprise a good mix of
industrial, technology, financial and legal expertise
to advise the Board and the management team on
strategy formulation and other financial or regulatory
requirements. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing
Rules, each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
has provided an annual confirmation of independence
to the Company. The Company considers all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. However, every Director of the Company is now
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting of the Company under
Bye-law 112 of the Bye-laws of the Company. As such,
the Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in
the CG Code.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Yu Sun Say
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap, and one Executive Director,
namely Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel.

Pursuant to the CG Code, an advisory model has
been adopted by the Remuneration Committee under
which the Remuneration Committee shall perform an
advisory role to the Board, with the Board retaining
the final authority to approve Executive Directors’ and
senior management’s remuneration. The principal
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on the Company’s policy and
structure for all Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration, reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, and making
recommendations on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
and consider the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management for recommendation
to the Board.

The attendance of the Remuneration Committee
members at this meeting was as follows:

e =&
Attendance
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
BRAEL (£E) Dr. Yu Sun Say (Chairman) 1/1
EXEBRE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 1/1
HTES Executive Director
R EE L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 1/1
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The Company’s remuneration policy is to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate employees
to run the Group successfully. The emoluments of
Directors are based on the anticipated time and effort
required from each Director, duties and responsibilities
with the Company, the Company’s remuneration policy
and market benchmark.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company does not have the present intention to
establish a Nomination Committee in view that the Board
itself shall discharge all duties expected to be dealt with
by a Nomination Committee.

In addition, the Policy and Procedure for Nomination
of Directors have been set out in writing and adopted
by the Board to serve as a guideline in order to ensure
that there is a formal, considered and transparent
procedure for the appointment of new Directors with
suitable experience and capabilities to maintain
and improve the competitiveness of the Company.
According to the Policy, where a need is identified
and arises for the appointment of a new Director to
the Board, a list of potential candidates should be
complied based on recommendations from existing
Board members, management team, other individuals
who know the candidates and, if it deems appropriate,
a professional search firm. The Board shall conduct an
initial evaluation of the potential candidates based on
the character, integrity, commitment, knowledge and
ability, accomplishment in his own field, professional or
personal reputation, particular experience or expertise
relevant to the current needs of the Board, and in case
of a new Independent Director candidate, whether
he would be considered as independent. Adequate
consideration should also be given to the diversity
perspectives under the Board Diversity Policy. The
Board shall then select and recommend one or more
candidates for interview. Lastly, the best available
candidate shall be recommended for consideration by
the Board as a whole.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
has reviewed the policies and practices on corporate
governance; and considered the eligibility of those
retiring Directors to be re-elected at the annual general
meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company.
Amongst the four Board meetings held during the year,
two were related to matters concerning nomination of
Directors.

The attendance of the Directors at these two Board
meetings was as follows:

HEE
Attendance
HITES Executive Directors
FRKEE Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(FEFTHAEE) (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) 2/2
Byt Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada 2/2
PRFEEE L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 2/2
R 8 S A Mr. Wan Man Keung 1/2
BEoK B AL Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 2/2
BYEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors
FREF T Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric 2/2
BBRAELT Dr. Yu Sun Say 1/2
ERERE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
R A Mr. Cheung Chi Chiu, David 2/2
EEEgRESZ T BOARD DIVERSITY

ARPIRABFEREZ T 285 - W
EHENEEeXNBEAMBRAEETE 2R
BRESBARAB 2K - BRRI  BEFE
ERMNETSKEZTEEE - ZABRER
EXF IR R E R Z BRI —HE0E -

The Company recognises the benefits of having a
diverse Board and believes that a balanced Board
composition will contribute towards the performance
of the Board and success of the Company. In view of
this, a Board Diversity Policy has been adopted by the
Board. Such Policy should be read in conjunction with
the Policy and Procedure for Nomination of Directors
mentioned above.
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BOARD DIVERSITY (continued)

The Board Diversity Policy provides that, in designing
the Board’'s composition, Board diversity shall be
considered from a number of aspects in supporting the
attainment of the strategic objectives and sustainable
development of the Company. Selection of candidates
will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity,
cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. The Board will also
take into account factors based on its own business
model and specific needs. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the prospective
candidate will bring to the Board.

The Board considers that considerable diversity exists in
the existing Board of the Company in terms of its broad
experience, knowledge and personal background. The
Company shall continue to maintain its Board diversity
and, when there is any vacancy to fill, to promote the
specific objective of gender and age diversity without
compromising the quality of the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests
of shareholders and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

A Terms of Reference has been adopted for the purpose
of setting out the corporate governance duties to be
performed by the Board, including (but not limited to)
development of the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations
on changes and updating, review of the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board
has conducted an annual review of the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, respectively.

The Board has established a comprehensive risk
management system based on identification,
analysis, evaluation and management of risks on an
ongoing basis. Each department under the Group is
required to own and manage its own risks. A number
of management committees reporting to the Risk
Management Committee have been established to
monitor different aspects of risk management for the
Group. Such work serves to provide an independent
checking of the effectiveness of the risk management
system of individual departments. The independent
Internal Compliance Control Department (“ICC”) of the
Company is delegated with the internal audit function
to conduct regular internal reviews and testings of
the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems covering financial, operational, compliance,
risk assessment and risk response implementation
controls. The respective management teams and
committees which comprise relevant executives of
the Group meet regularly to review the findings and
opinions of internal audits conducted by the ICC and
make relevant recommendations. The executives from
the management teams and committees also ensure
the control weaknesses are effectively communicated
to the relevant departments and monitor the follow-up
actions in response to their recommendations. The ICC
regularly reports its major findings and advice to the
Risk Management Committee and the Audit Committee
and assists them to evaluate the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems,
respectively. The Risk Management Committee and the
Audit Committee report back to the Board for forming its
own view on an annual basis.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(continued)

The Audit Committee annually reviews the adequacy of
resources and qualifications, experience and training of
the staff responsible for accounting, financial reporting
and internal audit functions to ensure that ongoing
control process are in place and functioning effectively.

The purpose of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss and to manage rather than eliminate risks of
failure in operational system in order to achieve the
Group’s objectives. For the year of 2019 under review,
the Board, through the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit Committee, has reviewed the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems, respectively
and considered them effective and adequate.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises three
Executive Directors, namely Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada
(Chairperson of the Risk Management Committee), Dr.
Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel and Mr. Hung Wing Shun,
Edmund.

The principal duties of the Risk Management Committee
include the oversight of the Group’s overall risk
management framework; approval of risk policies
and tolerances and reviewing the breaches thereof;
review and assessment of the effectiveness of the
risk management systems; and advising the Board on
risk-related issues.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Risk
Management Committee held five meetings to oversee
the risk management framework; assess materiality of
risks; monitor and update the Group’s risk policies;
discuss risk reports on key risks; and review the
effectiveness and adequacy of the risk management
system.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
(continued)

The attendance of the Risk Management Committee
members at the five meetings was as follows:

HEE

Attendance
BITES Executive Directors
TEHLLE(FE) Ms. Wong Yin Man, Ada (Chairperson) 5/5
BRFEEH L Dr. Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 5/5
Bk I 5 A= Mr. Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 5/5
P 5T Note:
ANEEBRBETRABNERFE LI ZEKREEELZESE  Relevant executives of the Group also attended the Risk Management
i Committee meetings above.
EREESE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Dr. Yu Sun Say and
Mr. Alfred Donald Yap.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include
the oversight of the Group’s financial reporting and
internal control systems; review of the Group’s financial
information; and review of the relationship with the
external auditor of the Company. Commencing from
the year of 2019, certain amendments to the Terms of
Reference of the Audit Committee become effective in
order to align the recent changes to the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Audit
Committee met separately with the external auditors
twice and held two meetings to review the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group;
discuss the auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including review of the 2018 final
results and 2019 interim results of the Group; review
the external auditor’'s engagement letters; recommend
the re-appointment of the external auditor; and review
the accounting, financial reporting and internal audit
functions and their staffs.
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EREEG(E) AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
ZMABECBEREZESZBHEER The attendance of the Audit Committee members at the
RN two meetings was as follows:
HE=E

Attendance
BYKBITES Independent Non-executive Directors
TREFLT(EE) Dr. Li Ka Cheung, Eric (Chairman) 2/2
BRAE L Dr. Yu Sun Say 2/2
ERELE Mr. Alfred Donald Yap 2/2
Z AT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

BHE-_Z—hhF+-A=+—HItFE 2 For the year ended 31 December 2019, the
ek ERTOMNIBAX BREM B SR K B @RS/ remuneration paid or payable to the external auditor,

FreMe®mHmT PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:
@58 (B )
Amount (HKS)
Z R Audit services 2,750,000
BB Non-audit services
—Wis R AE A RTE — tax and related services 662,000
3,412,000

BEENZEMETBEBRER2EST DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BEEERZEMGRRAEFGFAS SRR The responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for

CEFRENANERESES7TE 2 [ Bt  preparing the consolidated financial statements of the

HENmEIA Group are set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report”
on pages 80 to 87 of this Annual Report.
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BRERBEBRRFBHAE ([RE4 5K Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
SNER special general meeting (“SGM”)
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1. Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth (1/10)
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and its principal office at 17/F, C-Bons
International Center, No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for the attention of the
Company Secretary of the Company, to require
a SGM to be called by the Board of Directors for
the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

2.  The written requisition must state the purposes of
the general meeting, signed by the shareholder(s)
concerned and may consist of several documents
in like form, each signed by one or more of those
shareholders.

3. If the requisition is in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board of Directors to convene a SGM
by serving sufficient notice in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid, the shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, a SGM
will not be convened as requested.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholder(s) to convene a
special general meeting (“SGM”) (continued)

4.

The notice period to be given to all the registered
shareholders for consideration of the proposal
raised by the shareholder(s) concerned at a SGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as
follows:

(i) at least twenty-one (21) clear days’ and not
less than ten (10) clear business days’ notice
in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company, which cannot
be amended other than to a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error; and

(ii) at least fourteen (14) clear days’ and not less
than ten (10) clear business days’ notice in
writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director

1.

The Company holds an annual general meeting
(“AGM”) every year, and may hold a general
meeting known as a special general meeting
whenever necessary.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not
less than one-twentieth (1/20) of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having the right to vote
at the general meeting; or (ii) not less than 100
shareholders, can submit a written request stating
the resolution intended to be moved at the AGM,;
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for shareholders to make proposals
at general meeting other than a proposal of a
person for election as director (continued)

3.

The written request/statements must be signed by
the shareholder(s) concern and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal office at 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary
of the Company, not less than six (6) weeks before
the AGM in the case of a requisition requiring notice
of a resolution and not less than one (1) week
before the general meeting in the case of any other
requisition.

If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board of Directors of
the Company (i) to include the resolution in
the agenda for the AGM; or (ii) to circulate the
statement for the general meeting, provided that
the shareholder(s) concerned have deposited a
sum of money reasonably determined by the Board
of Directors sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating the statement submitted by the
shareholder(s) concerned in accordance with
the statutory requirements to all the registered
shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition
is invalid or the shareholder(s) concerned have
failed to deposit sufficient money to meet the
Company’s expenses for the said purposes, the
shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution
will not be included in the agenda for the AGM; or
the statement will not be circulated for the general
meeting.

B—HEEBRRREEZESEEAMNEF A separate document containing the procedures for
XM TREFIERA R4 -

a shareholder to propose a person for election as
a director is also published on the website of the
Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to
the Board of Directors by shareholders

There are no provisions in the Bermuda Companies Act
1981 or in the Bye-laws of the Company that provide for
a procedure by which shareholder(s) may put forward
an enquiry to the Board of Directors of the Company.
A shareholder may, of course, at any time send their
enquiries in writing to the Board of Directors of the
Company at the following address or via the following
facsimile number or email address:

Address: 17/F, C-Bons International Center,
No. 108 Wai Yip Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company
Secretary or Chairman of the Board)

Fax: (852) 2797 8076

Email: enquiry@wih.com.hk

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company in the year of 2019. The current Bye-laws
of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

WONG’S INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Wong’s
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 88 to 227,
which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2019;

the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

BB BEITEERPT
ERPRAFAEH 2

B 5 +852 2289 8888 {H#A: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com

PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888 Fax: +852 2810 9888
www.pwchk.com
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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BRETEE

RE FRISRBERMNFEEHAE  RBR
BAMGAMBRANEARAEENSE
A mEFHEAERMIFTBEAS MR
KREAERRETREN BT TEHE
LERREHEFNER -

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial

statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BPEEATRANBERETSESRL

Key audit matter identified in our audit is summarised as

mr follows:

s TFEEBEME e  Estimated provision for inventory

HRETER BMNEMAEERERETER

Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
FEEBRGT BATE FRUEEEEEAHGERBMTBRENEIE

Estimated provision for inventory

PIRMAR & B SR I s 24 R iR 4(d) ©
Refer to Note 24 and Note 4(d) to the consolidated
financial statements.

BREERN-_ZE-NFT+A=T—HBENTFERE
#319,000,0007T - EEEXKEERBHLFER
REBHFEERER —ERTENRE L - HAHE
ERULBETERBEEE S LS EHE - A&
WSEZERBHERERMER A ERIBERIELT
EEBELER AER -

The Group held inventory of HK$319 million as
at 31 December 2019. It consistently applies
a specific provisioning methodology for slow
moving inventory based on products life cycle
and inventory ageing. We focused on this area
because the estimation of provision involved
high-level of judgement based on historical
experience of evaluating the possible utilisation
of the aged raw materials by making reference to
products life cycle.

BCPRIEE o

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s
key controls over the inventory provision estimation
process.

RMNOEEFEEEENER - Uil (AheiE) 88
EREFENMRAER URERERFHAREFSIES
M R - BFETEAAERE2ZEMBRUETR
%EEME@%EE%/\%%%%% MR aR K fhEt - I IR AT
s °

We examined the basis of the methodology with respect
to inventory provisions and evaluated, amongst others,
the outcome of management’s estimations in prior years,
analysis and assessment made by management with
respect to slow moving and obsolete inventory. We also
evaluated the assumptions and estimates applied by
management to determine the possible utilisation of aged
raw materials by making reference to the products life
cycle without contradictory evidence noted.

BRAPARAFAAERBNFERKONERE - TERA-Z
—NFET A=+ -HNFERENEEEETNEmES
EMAETERE -

We tested the accuracy of the ageing profile of the
inventory used in the calculation. We performed a
recalculation of the inventory provision using the ageing
profile of the inventory as at 31 December 2019 and the
products life cycle determined by management.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section
90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

—NF+—H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31 December 2019

2_F

=

—E-hE ZE-N\F
2019 2018
P 5 BT AT
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’'000
W= Revenue 5 3,781,156 4,013,546
H A A Other income 6 9,826 18,952
ZR o M B Changes in inventories of finished
FEZE goods and work in progress (830) (44,974)
P A 2 RE KB # Raw materials and consumables used (2,741,393)  (2,982,447)
EREMEFE KA Cost of stock of completed properties (132,015) -
EERAMAX Employee benefit expenses 7 (456,772) (483,100)
FrEREEST Depreciation and amortisation charges 8 (69,204) (55,930)
Hi e ) Other operating expenses 8 (182,790) (207,436)
REMEAAEEEY Change in fair value of investment
properties 16 28,375 239,003
H s — %58 Other gains — net 9 9,502 29,070
EUWE SRR ZBMERE  Impairment losses on trade receivables 8, 26 (698) (1,866)
=B A A Operating profit 245,157 524,818
BMEKA Finance income 11 20,588 12,612
B & B A Finance costs 11 (65,461) (64,064)
FEIGE & R RIEE Share of loss of an associate 19 (636) (2,227)
B A& & EFE Share of profits of joint ventures 20 104,921 1,001,980
B P 18 B4 AT R 8 Profit before income tax 304,569 1,473,119
P15 1 5 2 Income tax expense 12 (38,242) (51,370)
BRATEB &R Profit after income tax 266,327 1,421,749
RREHEE AEGFE Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 266,327 1,421,749
FER S Non-controlling interests - -
266,327 1,421,749
KARER AEL Earnings per share attributable to
FESREF owners of the Company during
the year
AR Basic 14 HK$0.56 HK$2.97
e Diluted 14 HK$0.56 HK$2.97

&R o

these consolidated financial statements.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



SmEEEBAR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_FT—NF+=-H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31 December 2019

—E-AE —T-N\F
2019 2018
B 5 BT T BT T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEMNB Profit for the year 266,327 1,421,749
HttZ2EWA : Other comprehensive income:
AJEEFT 7R Items that may be reclassified to
B sHE - profit or loss:
ReEnEHH—FE Cash flow hedge - fair value
AREE(EE) W (losses)/gains for the year (2,360) 2,319
WeMELHF Cash flow hedge — deferred
—EERIELEMEN income tax recognised 389 (383)
BEEHmEEE - Currency translation differences:
—XrEE (35,098) (85,241)
VNG — Associates (37) (33)
HiET8FH Item that will not be reclassified
BmZHE - subsequently to profit or loss:
BERAnEBEEAREAM Changes in fair value of financial
TEHUANEHEE assets at fair value through other
NS comprehensive income 22 113 1,172
FEHM2EERS Other comprehensive loss
ess for the year, netoftax (36,993) | (82,166)
FEXEHBALE Total comprehensive income
for the year 229,334 1,339,583
BEAL - Attributable to:
RRRERA Owners of the Company 229,334 1,339,583
FEIE AR = Non-controlling interests — -
FEZEHBARE Total comprehensive income
for the year 229,334 1,339,583

FO5E227H 2 MiE Az A MR 24  The notes on pages 95 to 227 are an integral part of

RS -

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-F—HhF+-H=+—H As at 31 December 2019

—ZE-hE ZZE-N\F
2019 2018
B &E BT T BT T
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
FREBEE Non-current assets
Y EN Y Property, plant and equipment 15 220,157 308,617
REME Investment properties 16 2,534,016 2,506,097
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets 17 125,796 -
T & £ 3 Ko £ 3 s AR #E Leasehold land and land use rights 18 - 16,831
BeEnamigE Investments in associates 19 26,062 28,235
BEPENER Interests in joint ventures 20 2,505,012 2,410,801
BRARBETAEM Financial assets at fair value through
FHRANCREE other comprehensive income 22 4,349 4,195
EEMSHERE Deferred income tax assets 23 27,642 21,179
7l & M E b EU AR R Deposits and other receivables 27 20,537 13,607
TEEHRTA Derivative financial instruments 31 76 -
HREIHRE Restricted cash 29 14,369 14,652
5,478,016 5,324,214
REBEE Current assets
LA Inventories 24 319,234 500,926
ETKMEFE Stock of completed properties 25 236,350 368,365
JEWE 5 BR X Trade receivables 26 876,131 942,014
BFIE - B2k Prepayments, deposits and other
H fth FE U BR X receivables 27 74,858 94,951
BRARBEGTAEM Financial assets at fair value through
ZHBANEREE other comprehensive income 22 126 166
JE Wit 22 A RI OB Amounts due from associates 28 14 11
& BT B TS AL Current income tax recoverable 1,727 520
HRHIHRE Restricted cash 29 11,580 -
FEHIRITER Short-term bank deposits 29 641,886 500,395
RERBFASEEY Cash and cash equivalents 29 543,314 447,737
2,705,220 2,855,085
DERFELHEZ Non-current assets classified as held
FERBEE for sale 30 - 88,383
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 2,705,220 2,943,468
WEE Total assets 8,183,236 8,267,682
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-FE—NF+—-H=+—H As at31 December 2019

—E-hE —EB-)N\F
2019 2018
B 5 BET T BETIT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
s EQUITY
BEREQTEEA Equity attributable to owners of the
P15 Company
A&7 Share capital 35 47,848 47,848
H Other reserves 36 481,572 504,948
REE & H| Retained earnings 36
— R B — Proposed dividend 14,355 26,317
—HAt — Others 4,462,445 4,241,072
5,006,220 4,820,185
FEIE RS Non-controlling interests 36 4 4
woE=m Totalequity 9,006,224 4,820,189
=L LIABILITIES
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
PTHESRMITA Derivative financial instruments 31 4,217 1,801
fEETE R R HMEMERZ  Accruals and other payables 33 15,844 11,381
MEAaE Lease liabilities 17 30,583 -
BEEFFSHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 23 72,293 98,671
8% Borrowings 34 1,226,565 1,422,432
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,349,502 1,534,285
RBEE Current liabilities
FERTE B AR Trade payables 32 673,649 761,875
FEETE R R HEMERE  Accruals and other payables 33 187,838 227,398
BREaE Contract liabilities 5 147,465 129,993
MEAaRE Lease liabilities 17 19,756 -
EHIMEHMAE Current income tax liabilities 89,181 55,191
B Borrowings 34 709,621 738,751
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 1,827,510 1,913,208
wew| Total liabilites 3,177,012 3,447,493
HEZNREE Total equity and liabilities 8,183,236 8,267,682

FEMBRRENR_-_Z_TF=A_+hH
EE=ef ERRENSE X h FNIIESEK

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on

REE 25 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:
T A TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
TEFRTHARE EF Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
HO5E27THE M AZGAMBEHRE 4  The notes on pages 95 to 227 are an integral part of
BES S ° these consolidated financial statements.
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F— N F+=H=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

SERERBER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

ARAEBNERL
Attributable to owners of the Company
R RIVEE Bt FERER @5t
Non-
Share Share Other  contralling
capital premium reserves interests Total
(F3t35) (F3£36) (F3£36) (F3£36)
(Note 35) (Note 36) (Note 36) (Note 36)
BRI BT BB BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=5-/\#-A—-H As at 1 January 2018 47,848 153,025 3,315,615 4 3,516,492
2AHA Comprehensive income
FEME o Poftforteyear S o T 1A
At 2EHA Other comprehensive income
BRABEFALRZERA Changes in fair value of financial
WeREEALBER assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income - - 1,172 - 1,172
ERREEE Currency translation differences - - (85,274) - (85,274)
Renghn Cash flow hedge - fair value gains for
-FELABERE the year - - 2,319 - 2,319
Remetn Cash flow hedge - deferred income tax
-BRREEMSEH recognised - - (383) - (383)
RprEERLE Total other comprefensiveloss o - saee) - (82,166)
SRAARR Total comprefensivoincome SR L L S 7. 1830583
BEEAZRS Transactions with owners
ERARAREAZRE Dividend paid to owners of the Company - - (35,886) - (35,886)
BRONGGEE Total transactions with owners . S (e - (35886)
RZE-\E+-A=1-H As at 31 December 2018 47,848 153,025 4,619,312 4 480,189
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HE-F—NF1+ZH=+—HIF/E Forthe year ended 31 December 2019

ALRRE AL
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bz ROEE  HtRe  FERER @zt
Non-
Share Share Other  controlling
capital premium reserves interests Total

(W&z35)  (WHsEse)  (Mase)  (MYEE36)
(Note 35)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)  (Note 36)
BRI ERTR ARTR ERTR ERTR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000

RZE-hE-A-H As at 1 January 2019 47,848 153,025 4,619,312 4 4,820,189
BEERNBREERE 6% Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16

28€ (W) (Note 2.1.1) - - (235) - (235)
LEIN-B-nE-B-H Restated as at 1 January 2019 47,848 153,025 4,619,077 4 4,819,954
2ERA Comprehensive income
FEAR . Poftfortheyear S o medr L
Et2EMA Other comprehensive income
BARBEALLZARA Changes in fair value of financial

MEREELRBEED assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income - - 113 - 113

ERBEER Currency translation differences - - (35,135) - (35,135)
Rengdn Cash flow hedge - fair value losses for

~EENAEEER the year - - (2,360) - (2,360)
Remein Cash flow hedge - deferred income

-ERABLAER tax recognised - - 389 - 389
RbcEEERE Total other comprefensiveloss S - (%69%) - (36,993)
EEMARE Total comprehensive income S . TR
BEEAZRS Transactions with owners
ERERAREEALRE Dividend paid to owners of the Company - - (43,064) - (43,064)
ERENLORE Total transactions withowners S - (soey - (43,064
RZE-NE+ZB=1-H As at 31 December 2019 47,848 153,025 4,805,347 4 5,006,224

FIBEX2THZ Mt RZIFE M B MEZZHE  The notes on pages 95 to 227 are an integral part of
ER S © these consolidated financial statements.
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Fap I:IIE Y72 /Jlb %

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

HE-_FT—NFF+=-H=+—HIF/E For the year ended 31 December 2019

—ZE-hEF —ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
Bt & BT T AT T
Note HK$’ 000 HK$’000
BETBRMEHESRE Cash flows from operating activities
EIEELEMNR TR Net cash generated from operations  37(a) 562,608 368,463
BRI EBENSH Hong Kong profits tax paid (14) (16,876)
BB INL K Overseas tax paid (39,389) (29,042)
BBEFETEK Hong Kong profits tax refund - 546
RN R Overseas tax refund 1,968 7,132
=AY Interest paid (65,461) (64,064)
BETHELENEESFE Net cash generated from operating
activities 459,712 266,159
RETHFRBHEERE Cash flows from investing activities
BAVE BEREE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (30,886) (27,601)
Hj’§¢%¥ & = & Proceeds from disposal of property,
B HEFTIS A plant and equipment 37(b) 2,056 1,065
= Hﬁfs‘%ﬁ 7Fﬁﬂﬁlﬁlﬁﬁ,’§'\ Dividend received from an associate 1,500 2,000
il WNCIE SR I Increase in amounts due from
associates (3) (2)
R HRER 1T 17 338 0 Increase in short-term bank deposits (146,180) (130,532)
2 PR I 2R & 35 N Increase in restricted cash (11,297) (14,652)
HESEARELEZ Proceeds from disposal of
EREBEEZ non-current assets classified as
Fri83k18 held for sale 88,383 -
ERTEERHE Loans to joint ventures - (232,056)
HEDEEN Repayment from joint ventures 10,710 7,140
RGPS Interest received 20,588 12,612
RETEBFTANEESFESE Net cash used in investing activities (65,129) (382,026)
METBRESRENRE Cash flows from financing activities
EEMIERITE K (Decrease)/increase in trust receipt
CRA) /o — F58 bank loans — net (69,644) 19,063
MERITER New bank loans 1,701,500 1,096,941
BEERITER Repayment of bank loans (1,856,853) (962,925)
THABEERK Payment of lease payments (14,222) -
EARE Dividends paid (43,064) (35,886)
BMETES (A EE Net cash (used in)/generated from
_WReFEHE 2 financing activites = (282,283) 117,193
ReRReEEYZ Net increase in cash and cash
0 E R equivalents 112,300 1,326
FHAzEERREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the year 447,737 470,457
BEBHmEZERE Currency translation differences (16,723) (24,046)
FHRZEESREASEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at end of the year 29 543,314 447,737
HEOEZEo27TAE v AZ A BHRFE 248  The notes on pages 95 to 227 are an integral part of
BRER5 o these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

—REH

IRBEEEBAERARD(TARA]D &
HB AR (SR AKE]) T2RHE
F% - B HEEROHEETEM MU
KYMERE -

KRR TIRBREFMNL 2 E#
PERETAR - AMMEEREE
5 31 2h > Bl A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda & BB NLEEE BEEFEE 10858
HEBRBRARKEITIE -

ARBIZBNEBRBEH AR SM
BRARERLE °

BRARBREAIN  HEPBRRAEEE
2% - IFEPBHRREN T -F
AT tThREESSHETIE -

TESHHEBE

2HNREFEMBRERARBZIEE
SETHRENTX - R BEAI - %
FHRENFMB2INFEERER -

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wong’s International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
development, manufacture, marketing and
distribution of electronics products as well as
property holding.

The Company is an exempted limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business
are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and 17/F., C-Bons International
Center, No.108 Wai Yip Street, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise
stated. These consolidated financial statements
have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 25 March 2020.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in
the presentation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TEESHBRBE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

21 RBEEE 2.1 Basis of preparation
(a) BTFERUKBREFEARSE (a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
S WNEIRE 3t Reporting Standards and Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance

REBZZEHFEUBI@E These consolidated financial statements
EREMBEEAEEYB® of the Group have been prepared in
HFER (BB B REE accordance with all applicable Hong
A1) REEBRBERG ([&EB Kong Financial Reporting Standards
RNAEMEHI]) ($622F) 2 1 (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure requirements
BARTEMmE - of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

(“HKCO") Cap. 622.
mMETEB M BmELR The preparation of financial statements in
2 BHRRERGERAETH conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
BEFtEst TERKERE of certain critical accounting estimates. It
RERAEBESTHE B also requires management to exercise its
BHRITEAE - P REEH judgement in the process of applying the
BT BN ERE - ERE Group’s accounting policies. The areas
MBBRERBERZENRBR involving a higher degree of judgement or
RAGETE R4 5 - complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are

disclosed in Note 4.

(b) PR A1E B (b) Historical cost convention

LERAMBREREREE
SERAED CEBEHIRAR
EBEFAEMLEZARANSE
BMEE HAREBEAR
HnZeREERERAE (R
‘BRI R) MREME
(B AR EBEYIK) £1T7E
IE)#mEd e

These consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a historical
cost basis, as modified by revaluation
of financial asset at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial
assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative financial instruments) at
fair value through profit or loss and
investment properties, which are carried
at fair value.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



97

e MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESTHBERME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

21 MmBEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

QI B BEREHREE 2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures

() RZZE—NF—HA—H (a)

New standards, amendments to

B 1A 2 BB A
SR WA AL
STIRR R

£ HES]
BRQENZIN . —T-1%%
BaEl I5tE
2% BREE  BHERME
REERIBIER
EEMBRSEN

FNFLBTR
BROHENF19%

BT - B

ZIEETR LR
EESHENENE RNBELFIRAY
Wl )it ¥ REES
EAMRRLEN  EBEHEZ
952 BETHR BfzESTE
BEUEREEN  HE

F16%

BF (BRURRE  MERREL
BERED) TMert
-RES

AEERRAEBHH
o 8 25 1 6% [
(I 7 B 1 38 25 L 55
1658 ) 14 8 2 K & 21 X
HIAMEHETRE -

AHEEL

| A0 & 5T IR

ReHERBENMT - &
il E R AN R B 2 & 5T
BRI E - TR
BAETEYPHE -

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019

Standards Subject of amendment

Amendments to
HKAS 12, HKAS 23,

HKFRS 3 and
HKFRS 11

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Amendments to Plan Amendment,

HKAS 19 Curtailment or Settlement
Amendments to Long-term Interests in
HKAS 28 Associates and Joint

Ventures
Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation
Leases

Amendments to
HKFRS 9
HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

The Group changes its accounting
policies and made certain
adjustments following the adoption
of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS
16”). The impact of the adoption of
the leasing standard and the new
accounting policies are disclosed
below. The other standards did not
have any impact on the Group’s
accounting policies and did not
require retrospective adjustments.
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2 FESTHREE A

2.1

fm SLEL % ()

LN EHBEEHREE (B)

(a)

RZZE—hF—H—H
G2 BT FEE AR 2
¥R BB ER 2B
ST ek ()

T 3R R 4 B S B RS
] E B E 1658 B A
EEYBHRERITE
THEE T —NF
—A—HERBRzHE
TR o

AEEE-ZT—hF—A
—HREBBEMNE B
%k R E1658 - M
RIZER P A BEK
XA T —NF
HEBHEINLRER -
Eit - TAERNEE
MEF>EMAER
—E-hF—-—A—H#&E
HAR4R & B R R 3k

=7
o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

Below explains the impact of the
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group’s
financial statements and discloses
the new accounting policies that
have been applied from 1 January
2019.

The Group has adopted HKFRS
16 retrospectively from 1 January
2019, but has not restated
comparatives for the 2018 reporting
period, as permitted under the
specific transitional provisions in
the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening
consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2019.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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2 FESTHREE A

2.1

fm SLEL % ()

LN EHBEEHREE (B)

(a)

RZZE—hF—H—H
G2 BT FEE AR 2
¥R WEERZE
ST ek ()

WD TR BEEE
B % 165 B3 T R 2
A

RIRME BTG HRE L
AIZE1657 1% + NEE
AERIBEE B AR
FITHTHEI([EH
GRHERE7IR]) 2R
AlEDBEARIEEHE]
ZHEBRAHEEA®E -
ZEABEFBHEER
R BEFE - WK
MAR—ZZE—NE—A
—H 2RISR X5
HEH - RZZT—NF
—A—HERRHEESR
& 2 N 39 % AR
HERFER4.45% o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

Adjustments recognised on the
adoption of HKFRS 16

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation
to leases which had previously been
classified as ‘operating leases’ under
the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”
("HKAS 17”). These liabilities were
measured at the present value of
the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1
January 2019. The weighted average
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1
January 2019 was 4.45%.
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FTESHHEBE (B) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 MmBEE (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

LN EHBEEHREE (B)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a) RZE—hLFE—H—H (a) New standards, amendments to
iz TR FEERZ existing standards and interpretations

hAER| IR FER| 2 & effective in financial year beginning 1
AR R RE (&) January 2019 (continued)

TREMERE LS
HERFITHRERN -F
—NFE+=-A=+—8H
BEZKEHERER
RIERE B IS M %
AB1RER —F—N5F

The table below explains the
difference between operating
lease commitments disclosed at 31
December 2018 by applying HKAS
17 and lease liabilities recognised at
1 January 2019 by applying HKFRS

—A—HERzZEESR 16:
BzREzEZE:
BT T
HK$'000
R-ZE—-N\E+=ZA=+—H Operating lease commitments disclosed
P 2 R HERE as at 31 December 2018 25,274
W LMEBREERBRZ 2 Less: short-term leases recognised on
REEE a straight-line basis as expense (494)
R=Z2-NFE+=A=+—H Operating lease liabilities before
BRIz REHESRE discounting at 31 December 2018 24,780
BR_T-NF—-—HA—RBRE Effect from discounting at incremental
BERFIERLR 2 8 borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 (1,139)
R-B-NAF-A—HEAZ Lease liabilities recognised as
HEEE at 1 January 2019 23,641
He Of which are:
mENEHERE Current lease liabilities 10,969
FERBHERE Non-current lease liabilities 12,672
23,641
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2 FESTHREE A

2.1

fm SLEL % ()

LA EHBEEHRIKE (F)

(a)

RZZFE-NF—A—H
PG TR FER AR 2
R BALEL &
Rl M (E)

MEHEZHBERRE
BEREBNELGTE
BWHARANE —HRE
e HtEREEER
HERMEEREBE LS
e WIRR-ZZE—/\F
T-A=t—BEHH
MRKRPHEREZEE
R 2 I AN R
HENREBETH
B-ARAMEZXEM
EANAEVRER
ZBHEREEEET

B o

1=

uE
OH]

BERTRERE B BARR
RIEEBBEEY 2
& & b FE AR
BRERYE  BE &K
HHHEELHmES &
RS T LA
BEBE=-—T—NF—A
—HERERTRAESR
EZ—BD - BMEB
B 7% 5 4 Rl B 1657 By
EROERAEEERA
E 0 N £ A A
KB RIEFHEE -

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

21.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

The associated right-of-use assets
for property leases were measured
on a retrospective basis as if the
new rules had always been applied.
Other right-of-use assets were
measured at the amount equal to
the lease liability, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued
lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the statement of
financial position as at 31 December
2018. There were no onerous lease
contracts that would have required
an adjustment to the right-of-use
assets at the date of initial
application.

For leasehold land and land use
rights previously presented as a
separate item and leasehold land
included in property, plant and
equipment on consolidated statement
of financial position are grouped as
part of right-of-use assets with effect
from 1 January 2019. The recognised
right-of-use assets upon the adoption
of HKFRS 16 are related to leasehold
land and land use rights and factory
and buildings.
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STBCRELE (&) 2

fm SLEL X ()

LN EHBEEHREE (B)

RZZE—hF—H—H
G2 RFEREERZ
¥R WEERZE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a) New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1

AR R RE (&) January 2019 (continued)
SRR ZEHEE The change in accounting policy
UT=ZZE—NLF—H affected the following items in the
—BEREMBERAERA consolidated statement of financial
HH : position on 1 January 2019:
R-ZE-N\#&
+=A ERUE RZE-IE
=t-8- HEEA —-A—8"
MERFTE2HR Fl16HzTE RET|
31 December
2018
Statement of As 1 January
consolidated financial previously Effect of 2019
mEMBRREK (FR) position (Extract) reported HKFRS 16  As restated
BB T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
mE - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 308,617 (61,814) 246,803
CREEE Right-of-use assets - 102,051 102,051
ME 30 %t Leasehold land and land use rights 16,831 (16,831) -
afE LIABILITIES
REEE Current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities - 10,969 10,969
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEBE Lease liabilities - 12,672 12,672
E#R EQUITY
REBEF Retained earnings 4,267,389 (235) 4,267,154
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REE (&)

2.1 mBEE ()

LN EHBEEHREE (B)

(a)

RZZE—hF—H—H
G2 BT FEE AR 2
¥R WEERZE
ST ek ()

() HLHHEEZZE

HEZ-Z—hF
+=—A=+—ALF
2 AR EER
BERZZE—NF
+-A=+—HK
DEEEHAES
R B gL hn -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a) New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

(i) Impact on segment disclosure

Adjusted operating profit for the
year ended 31 December 2019
and segment assets as at 31
December 2019 all increased
as a result of the changes in
accounting policy. The following
segments were affected by

X HEREEHE the changes in the accounting
B2 HEWT policy:

BEZZ-NF RZZB-IF
t=A=+—H +=A
ILFEZ =t+—8
REREE 27
)7 42 EEEM

Increase in

adjusted

operating
profit for Increase in
the year segment
ended assets as at
31 December 31 December
2019 2019
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMSHLFT EMS division 780 49,691
L/ESS 2R Property holding division = -
780 49,691

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

(ii)  Practical expedients applied

In applying HKFRS 16 for
the first time, the Group has
used the following practical
expedients permitted by the
standard:

e the use of a single discount
rate to a portfolio of leases
with reasonably similar
characteristics;

o reliance on previous
assessments on whether
leases are onerous;

e the accounting for
operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less
than twelve months as at 1
January 2019 as short-term
leases;

e the exemption of operating
leases for which the
underlying assets are of low
value;
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2 TESFTBEME(E) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
21 REEZE(H) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

NN EFBREBRME (H)

(a)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

R-ZF—-NF—H—H (a)
FtE 2 M REFE AR 2

AR BAELEA 2 &

IR R RE (&)

(i) FEFEBRIERRE I
(&)

s RYIXEMA
HiET B A%
BEMBRYE
=R E:90% AN

e HEHNESLE
REKRIEHE
REERE - £
FEREE MR
5 PR = 1R TR

RIE e

AEBETDEED
B A AKNED
RERBBH#HER
BREBEEHE -
HR - SRERE
AEZARI L 2 &
# o REEREE
ER&E B g ER
F1THR R F B (H
MRS RE
ZBg)-B2EFR4
HRIBELH=ER
BEHEIFLEZ
AP -

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

(ii) Practical expedients applied
(continued)

e the exclusion of initial direct
costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset
at the date of initial
application, and

e the use of hindsight in
determining the lease
term where the contract
contains options to extend
or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected
not to reassess whether a
contract is, or contains a lease
at the date of initial application.
Instead, for contracts entered
into before the transition
date, the Group relied on its
assessment made by applying
HKAS 17 and HK (IFRIC) -
4 "Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

The Group’s leasing activities and
how these are accounted for

As a lessee

The Group leases various factories,
offices and warehouses. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed
periods of one to three years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. The
Group also leases certain land use
rights in Mainland China. These land
use rights are leased for a period of
between ten to fifty years on which
plants and buildings of the Group are
situated on. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants.

From 1 January 2019, leases are
recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the
date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to income
statement over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate
of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period. The
right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the shorter of the asset's useful life
and the lease term on a straight-line
basis.
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2 FESTBRBE (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 mBEZE () 2.1 Basis of

LN EHBEEHREE (B)

(a)

preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and

disclosures (continued)

R-T—n&F—A—8 (a)
B 1A BT I A R
SR - B RE &

STHR B R IE ()

1 BEBN ()

HEEL 2 AERAMR

NELBEEFE-HE
BEBENATHENR
HFIRME

e BEEMK(BRE
B EE K0 R
EEMEKREE
BEED

o (HEAMEAARRE
EITEZBEERE
A2 R B 21T
BE &

o  HEHEEHRKR
EEAITEZIERE
o ARRIEEE

Z AN o
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New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Assets and liabilities arising from
a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives
receivable;

e the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option;
and

o payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be
determined, the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate is used, being the rate
that the lessee would have to pay to
borrow the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of similar value in a similar
economic environment with similar
terms and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at

cost comprising the following:

e the amount of the initial
measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at
or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives

received;

e any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Payments associated with short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line
basis as an expense in profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of twelve months or less.

As a lessor

The Group leases out its investment
properties under non-cancellable
operating lease arrangements. The
lease terms are between one and
three years. The Group has classified
these leases as operating leases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(a)

New standards, amendments to
existing standards and interpretations
effective in financial year beginning 1
January 2019 (continued)

As a lessor (continued)

The accounting policies applicable
to the Group as a lessor in the
comparative period are not different
from HKFRS 16. The Group is not
required to make any adjustments
on transition to HKFRS 16 for leases
in which it acts as a lessor, except
for a sub-lease. When the Group is
an intermediate lessor, the sub-lease
is classified with reference to the
underlying asset.

The Group does not have sub-leases
during the financial year of 2018. The
Group recognises lease payments
received under operating leases as
income on a straight-line basis over
the lease term as part of “revenue”.
The Group has accounted for its
lease in accordance with HKFRS 16
from the date of initial application.
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Standards
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and
disclosures (continued)

(b) New standards and amendments
to existing standards and
interpretations have been issued but
are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2019 and have
not been early adopted

BUTHBHZ%

B zFERBEN
Effective for

annual periods
beginning on or after

BERBREENFER
BETHR (&&3T)
Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BEETEAE 1R
BRGTREAESH 2 EETHR
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
R \FEUBRECHER
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018
BETHRERANETH
HKFRS 17
é;%ﬁﬁi‘%¥&¢$ﬁll%105ﬁ&
BRI ER 28T 2R
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

1 ’ZAA =} i?’]

KRB ESEFHRN
i ET R R ZEAE
R E - AR
RIESEPRAEBEER R
1ERT £ MRS B 4R T ] 28
Bl R R 2 EET IR °

FHIER

Definition of a Business

BERITE

Definition of Material
BB BREBSER

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

Insurance Contracts

REFHEBENARAEDE
JEZBENESTE e

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

—Z-Z5-A-H
1 January 2020
—Z-Z5-A-H
1 January 2020
—Z-Z5-A-H
1 January 2020
—Z-_—-%-A-H
1 January 2021

To be determined

The Directors of the Company are
in the process of assessing the
financial impact of the adoption
of the above new standards and
amendments to standards. The
Directors of the Company will adopt
the new standards and amendments
to standards when they become
effective.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and
all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December
2019.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including
structured entities) over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an
entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting
is used to account for business
combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results
and equity of subsidiaries are shown
separately in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of
financial position respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(b) Associates

(c)

Associates are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control or joint control. This is generally
the case where the Group holds between
20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
(see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Joint arrangements

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
investments in joint arrangements are
classified as either joint operations or
joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal
structure of the joint arrangement. The
Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be
joint ventures. Interests in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity
method, after initially being recognised
at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting,
the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
profits or losses of the investee in profit or
loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses
in an equity-accounted investment
equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured
long-term receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associates and joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted
investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in
Note 2.8.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(e) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with
non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control as transactions
with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results
in an adjustment between the carrying
amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests to reflect their
relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve
within equity attributable to owners of the
Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or
equity account for an investment because
of a loss of control, joint control or
significant influence, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair
value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting
for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

Consolidation (continued)

(e) Changes in ownership interests
(continued)

If the ownership interest in a joint
venture or an associate is reduced but
joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss where appropriate.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a
manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM”). The Group’s senior executive
management, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments, is considered as the
CODM that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or
qualifying net investment hedges.

All foreign exchange gains and losses
including those relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement
within ‘other gains - net’.

Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative
financial instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income are
analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security, and other changes
in the carrying amount of the security.
Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised
in consolidated income statement, and
other changes in the carrying amount
are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Translation difference on non-monetary
financial assets and liabilities such
as financial assets and financial
liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss and equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in
consolidated income statement as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as
financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are included in
other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency
as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that report;
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(¢) Group companies (continued)

(i) income and expenses for each
income statement are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated
at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign operations, and
of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of the gain or
loss on sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings comprise mainly factories
and offices. Leasehold land classified as
finance lease and all other property, plant
and equipment is stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Cost may also include
transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign
currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

25 Property, plant and equipment

(continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15 to 40 years

Plant, machinery and 510 7 years
equipment

Furniture and fixtures 510 7 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the
end of each reporting period.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing the proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised, in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction or
pending installation and is stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. No provision
for depreciation is made on assets under
construction in progress until such time as the
relevant assets are completed and available
for their intended use. On completion, the
relevant assets are transferred to property,
plant and equipment at fair value or cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6

2.7

Leasehold land and land use rights

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16, the
up-front prepayments made for leasehold
land and land use rights are accounted for
as operating leases. They are recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the periods of the
lease or the land use rights, or when there is
impairment, the impairment is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. Upon the
adoption of HKFRS 16, leasehold land and
land use rights are accounted for as leases as
described in Note 2.26.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising
leasehold land and buildings, are held
for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the companies in the Group.

Investment properties comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held
under finance leases. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as
investment properties when the rest of the
definition of an investment property is met. In
such cases, the operating leases concerned
are accounted for as if they were finance
leases.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Investment properties (continued)

Investment properties are measured initially
at its cost, including related transaction costs.
After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined at each reporting
date by external valuers at least annually.
Fair value is based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in
the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the
external valuers use alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Changes in fair values are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to
the asset’s carrying amount only when it
is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes
owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property,
plant and equipment, and its fair value at the
date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Investment properties (continued)

If an item of property, plant and equipment
becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, any difference between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this
item at the date of transfer is recognised in
equity as a revaluation of property, plant and
equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment
loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Impairment of investments in
subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures
and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life,
for example goodwill, are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually
for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets
other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9

(i)

(i)

Investments and other financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in
the following measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently
at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised
cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s
business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains
and losses will either be recorded in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in equity instruments that
are not held for trading, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have
been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus, in
the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss
are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that
are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest
income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss and presented in
other gains - net, together with foreign
exchange gains and losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.9

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures
all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in other gains - net
in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward
looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk. Impairment losses
are presented in other gains — net or
impairment losses on trade receivables.
For trade receivables, the Group applies
the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the statement
of financial position when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course
of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or
the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivatives and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value
on the date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The accounting for subsequent changes in
fair value depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. The
Group designates certain derivatives:

° hedges of a particular risk associated with
the cash flows of recognised assets and
liabilities and highly probable forecast
transactions (cash flow hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the
relationship between hedging instruments and
hedge items, as well as its risk management
objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions have been and will continue to
be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items.

The fair values of various derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes are
disclosed in Note 31. Movements in the
hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity
are shown in Note 36. The full fair value
of a hedging derivative is classified as
a non-current asset or liability when the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is more
than twelve months; it is classified as a current
asset or liability when the remaining maturity
of the hedged item is less than twelve months.
Trading derivatives are classified as a current
asset or liability.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivatives and hedging activities
(continued)

()

Cash flow hedge that qualify for hedge
accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair
value of derivatives that are designated
and qualify as cash flow hedges is
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in reserves
in equity. The gain or loss relating to
the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains - net’.

Amounts accumulated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the
periods when the hedged item affects
profit or loss. The gain or loss relating
to the effective portion of interest rate
swaps hedging variable rate borrowings
is recognised in consolidated income
statement within ‘finance costs’.

When a hedging instrument expires or
is sold or terminated, or when a hedge
no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, any cumulative gain or loss
existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and is recognised when
the forecast transaction is ultimately
recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected
to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that
was reported in equity is immediately
reclassified to consolidated income
statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Derivatives and hedging activities

(continued)

(ii) The derivative instruments do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Changes in the fair value of these
derivative instruments are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other gains - net’.

212 Inventories and stock of completed

properties

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is determined
using the weighted average method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Stocks of completed properties are stated at
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the
completed properties.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially
at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade receivables with the objective to collect
the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 26 for further information about the
Group’s accounting for trade receivables and
Note 3.1(b)(2) for a description of the Group’s
impairment policies.

2.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and
bank overdrafts.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

2.17

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

Borrowings (continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs
of the loan to the extent that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is
no evidence that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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POLICIES (continued)
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2.19 Non-current assets held for sale

FIRBEENRAERSEZS
B E R 5 W Ik EE R M
B BREMAREEFETRE
QD BEARELE BHEER
EEmEAEQAEBERE D ENX
AzBEEFE HEFTRHER
RUTARTE 2 EERIN - IIEFT
FISREE RBE®RINELEZE
E -BAREBEFEZEREE
MEBEEMEARRBREOZ2EH
RIS -

BB R EE TR ER
WREAABERELEREZ
BHER -WEEZAAEBERE
HERAREZ A EAE - B
R ES o M 1F R 4B (T (7] ST A
RZRFRERBE - EHEFR
BEEZ A EER ks
KB BER IR A ER -

FRBEERF SR ELERR
RBATHELEE - DBERFHE
HENHEENEBERIEF S
Ko Bl A S MR T LA BERR

Non-current assets are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use and a sale
is considered highly probable. They are
measured at the lower of their carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell, except for
assets such as deferred tax assets, assets
arising from employee benefits, financial
assets and investment property that are
carried at fair value and contractual rights
under insurance contracts, which are
specifically exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial
or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised
for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell of an asset, but not in excess of
any cumulative impairment loss previously
recognised. A gain or loss not previously
recognised by the date of the sale of the
non-current asset is recognised at the date of
derecognition.

Non-current assets are not depreciated or
amortised while they are classified as held for
sale. Interest and other expenses attributable
to the liabilities of a disposal group classified
as held for sale continue to be recognised.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESTHREE A

220 IBEREN

2.21

REHERKERLSEHAE -
BENFULAEBEFELER
REBEVHERESERNESR
MTA|BETEHEEEERELE

EE)RBEEVBREENFE5
SIEP AW RAMER 2K
DB EEMEPIRSE

MBRRZAANBEEERES
TEZANNREELBERT
KA 2 (2 EHF IR IR
BrER2RE AL EE
MAIBEAN TR =TT 2 fhat & -

EREERERNE AR RS
DA 2 B AR E A A AR R 1
HER - BRI ABEAMERE
B WA A A B R A
RERERAN—BD -

EHRIELEREHR

EHIMERAN AR RERIE
BERABEEENERMBHER
EHERMBAZEHBA > I
FLERESE R KRB M IEE RS
HRZEBEERMBHEERABZE
e %

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Financial guarantee contracts

2.21

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised
as a financial liability at the time the guarantee
is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of
the amount determined in accordance with
the expected credit loss model under HKFRS
9 “Financial Instruments” and the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers”.

The fair value of financial guarantees is
determined as the present value of the
difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments under the debt
instrument and the payments that would
be required without the guarantee, or the
estimated amount that would be payable to a
third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or
other payables of subsidiaries or associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions
and recognised as part of the cost of the
investment in the financial statements of the
Company.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the
period is the tax payable on the current
period’'s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary
differences and to unused tax losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.21

Current and deferred income tax

(continued)
Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated
on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using
the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the end of the reporting period and are
expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2 FESTHBERME (&) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

221 EHIRIEZEREBH (&) 2.21 Current and deferred income tax
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(continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences
and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between
the carrying amount and tax bases of
investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and
where the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and
tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends
either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in
consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

Group companies participate in general
defined contribution pension schemes.
A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions if
the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee service in the current and prior
periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund
or a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrued to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees
up to the reporting date. Employee
entittements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of
leave.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (continued)
(¢) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable
when employment is terminated by the
Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits when
it is demonstrably committed to either:
terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal
plan without possibility of withdrawal; or
providing termination benefits as a result
of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more
than twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present
value.

(d) Profit-sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus
plans due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the reporting period are
recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when the control
of the products are transferred to the
customers at a point in time, being
products are delivered to the customers,
the customers have full discretion
over the channel and price to sell the
products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. Delivery
occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specified location, the
risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers.

A receivable is recognised when the
goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage
of time is required before the payment is
due.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a
time-proportion basis using the effective
interest method.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease periods.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the
right to receive payment is established.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25

2.26

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at
their fair values where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received
and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are
deferred and recognised in the consolidated
income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase
of property, plant and equipment are initially
included in liabilities as deferred government
grants and when such property, plant and
equipment are built or purchased, the
received government grants are recognised
in consolidated income statement on a
systematic basis over the expected useful lives
of the related assets.

Leases

As explained in Note 2.1.1, the Group has
changed its accounting policy for leases where
the Group is the lessee. The new policy is
described below and the impact of the change
in Note 2.1.1.

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a
significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership were not transferred to the Group
as lessee were classified as operating leases
(Note 39). Payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) were charged to consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 FESTHREE A

2.26 & (&)

B-Z-NF—-A—BE HE
REEEEAHEAKREERER
ERAREREEEMAERAE -

BB HERIFEEEK
Moy AEBERREELEE
MRER D AR IBI(ER A
WRESE=HENRFHEANK
oo AM  RAKREREEA
MEMEHEEMS  HEZHH
ERFHEAXETD AKRSE—
HEMAKED  WEKRERD

HEEENEERBEMNHNUR
BEEEFE -HEABRE NI
HEMRRFRE -

e RBEENF(BHREZLLHE
ENR) - REEREEEE
BE

o ERNEHIMEHNAEHE
3 ARG B HaE
AR KRG HEHE

o AKERFHBEEERTRE
AT R

e MAKEEAEBTEIFEEE
EER A RZEEENTT
BE &

o fHHEHRBRABEATTEZ
EEE - RIXARIEEER

L= o
SN ©

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (continued)

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised
as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and
non-lease components. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to the lease
and non-lease components based on their
relative stand-alone prices. However, for
leases of real estate for which the Group is a
lessee, it has elected not to separate lease and
non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are
initially measured on a present value basis.
Lease liabilities include the net present value
of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on
an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at the commencement
date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option
if the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise that option, and

e payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising that option.
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2.26 HE (&) 2.26 Leases (continued)
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Lease payments to be made under reasonably
certain extension options are also included in
the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that
rate cannot be readily determined, which is
generally the case for leases in the Group,
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
is used, being the rate that the individual
lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual
lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

° uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk for leases held by the Group, which
does not have recent third party financing;
and

° makes adjustments specific to the lease,
eg term, country, currency and security.
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2.26 HE (&) 2.26 Leases (continued)
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Lease payments are allocated between
principal and finance cost. The finance cost
is charged to consolidated income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each
period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of
lease liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease
incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and
the lease term on a straight-line basis. If
the Group is reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’'s useful
life.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and all leases of low-value assets
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in consolidated income statement.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term
of twelve months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the
Group is a lessor is recognised in consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Initial direct costs incurred in
obtaining an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease
term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
based on their nature. The Group did not need
to make any adjustments to the accounting for
assets held as lessor as a result of adopting
the new leasing standard.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in
the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign
exchange risk and cash flow interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge
certain risk exposures.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally
and is exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from various currency
exposures. The Group’s foreign
currency assets, liabilities and
transactions are principally
denominated in Chinese renminbi
(“RMB”), United States dollars
(“US$") and Japanese yen (“JPY”).
These currencies are not the
functional currencies of the Group
entities to which these balances
related. Foreign exchange risk
mainly arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments
denominated in RMB, US$ and JPY.

The Group mitigates this risk by
maintaining HK$, US$, JPY and RMB
bank accounts which are used by
the Group to pay for the transactions
denominated in these currencies.
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3 MEEREREERE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
31 BBREMEZE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) MmHEEK (E) (a) Market risk (continued)
(i) SNERR (&) (i) Foreign exchange risk (continued)
RNEE R B AR The Group has certain investments
HTIRE HEEFE in Mainland China, whose net
MARKGE AR assets are denominated in RMB.
HAONEE 2 Hi o JAER The conversion of RMB into foreign
B A AT A8 4 2 S currencies is subject to the rules and
ME B il AR B FDE AR © regulations on the foreign exchange

control promulgated by the Mainland
China government.

RZE-HhLF+A At 31 December 2019, if RMB
=t+—H WMAR®ER had weakened/strengthened by
ETEEFES%Mm 5% against US$ with all other
FT B Efhr] & E &R variables held constant, post-tax
BAE  KNEERWE profit for the year would have been
RSB - R HK$46,231,000 (2018 by 5%:
#46,231,000T (— & HK$30,502,000) higher/lower, mainly
—N\FEMEFHEE% : as a result of foreign exchange
7 #30,502,0007T) ° gains/losses on translation of
TERBBENUE LA US$-denominated trade receivables
BEMEYLENE K and payables and cash and cash
FUAERERBEEEFE equivalents.

e INE B

RZZE—-ALF+A At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had
=+—B - WEEEA weakened/strengthened by 5%
R¥ERE,/FES%M against RMB with all other variables
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@—f A ERFF held constant, post-tax profit for the
C RFEERTIEZF year would have been HK$81,000
;Fﬁ ;H;ﬂz DN E (2018 by 5%: HK$13,000) lower/
81,0007t (=& — \ 5 higher, mainly as a result of foreign
BB/ F{E5% : &, exchange losses/gains on translation
BB #13,000T) ¢ E of RMB-denominated trade
ZREME J//U\E%.# receivables and payables and cash
TEEI’JJT&E\HK&J?&E%“JLE%EE and cash equivalents.

TARBEE LB
%E’Jﬁl\[)ﬁiﬁ@/ﬂ&/\ °

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



3

e MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR EE ()

3.1

B EE (&)
(a) WmHER (&)

(i)

S R Fx (48 )

RZE—-—NF+A
=+—H: WE®HEA
B8z E, FH1E10%m FT
BEEMAEREZXRF
T KEZBRBIEF
B G R 1N
301,0007T (=& — \F
RE/HAEI0% :
#om o B
378,0007T) * EE K H
BB AR B FHEDE
BRFTUAKLIRE LR
SEBYHINERIE,
Wz o

RenENERR

AEERFEEERE
&7 = & 8 i @ £ F
KRk BREREHNE
[ B 45 T 5 7 X & B
M #% % 2 ] 8 ) X 2 gt
TEHELAZHRERE

R REBZEEE
EXZREBITHER -
AEEZFBMERMER
1 5 8 A 5 F R OK B
TE O UHEAKER

HREHBFTER -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had
weakened/strengthened by 10%
against JPY with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the
year would have been HK$301,000
(2018 by 10%: HK$378,000 higher/
lower) lower/higher, mainly as a result
of foreign exchange losses/gains
on translation of JPY-denominated
trade payables and cash and cash
equivalents.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest
rate risk through the impact of rate
changes on interest bearing assets
and liabilities. Cash flow interest rate
risk is the risk that changes in market
interest rates will impact cash flows
arising from variable rate financial
instruments. The Group’s interest
bearing assets mainly include
deposits at bank. The Group’s
floating rate borrowings will be
affected by fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates and will expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk.
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3 HBERE®E(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

31 M EREE (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) WHZEE (&)

(i)

BemnEFXER (8) (ii)

(a) Market risk (continued)

Cash flow interest rate risk
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(continued)

The Group manages its cash flow
interest rate risk by using interest
rate swaps. Generally, the Group
raises long-term borrowings at
floating rates and swaps them into
fixed rates that are lower than those
available if the Group borrowed at
fixed rates directly.

As at 31 December 2019, if
interest rate on bank borrowings
had been 1% higher/lower with all
variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have
been HK$16,167,000 (2018:
HK$18,046,000) lower/higher, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate bank
borrowings.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from
cash and bank deposits as well as credit
exposures to customers such as trade
receivables, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income,
loans to joint ventures, deposits and
other receivables. The credit risk on cash
and bank deposits is limited because
the Group mainly places the deposits
in banks with high credit rating and
management does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1
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Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1)

Risk management

To manage credit risk, the Group has
considered the underlying security
and the long-established business
relationship with the counterparty.
The Group has policies in place to
ensure that sales of products on
credit terms are made to customers
with an appropriate credit history
and the Group performs periodic
credit evaluations of its customers.
Normally the Group does not require
collaterals from trade debtors. As at
31 December 2019, the Group has a
concentration of credit risk given that
the top five(2018: five) customers
account for 70% (2018: 76%) of
the Group’s total year end trade
receivable balance. Management
considers that the credit risk in
respect of these customers is minimal
after considering the financial
position and past experience with
these customers.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(1) Risk management (continued)

The credit risk of the Group’s other
financial assets, which comprise,
restricted cash, short term bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, loans
to joint ventures, deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying

amounts of these instruments.
(2) Impairment of financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

The trade receivables of the
Group are subject to the
expected credit loss model.

The Group applies the HKFRS
9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit
losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all

trade receivables.
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(continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

Trade receivables (continued)

To measure expected credit
losses, the Group categorises
its trade receivables based
on the nature of customer
accounts and shared credit risk
characteristics.

The expected loss rates are
based on the payment profiles
of sales over a period of
twenty-four months before 31
December 2019 or 1 January
2019 respectively and the
corresponding historical credit
losses experienced within
this period. The historical loss
rates are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the
receivables.
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31 BB EE (&)

(b) FERR (&)

(2) 2BMEERME(E)

(1)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

JEWE ZERH (&)
EHEEE R
—E-NF+=HAH
=t+t—HARZ%
- \F + = H
=+—HpEKE
SRR EEEE
EEaT:

(i) Trade receivables (continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018 was determined
as follows for trade receivables:

B & 1-608 61-908 #i#@9I0A &5t
1-60 61-90 Over
days days 90 days
Current past due pastdue pastdue Total
—E-hEF 31 December 2019
+=A=+-A8
BREELSE OB TT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 801,582 75,520 1,593 - 878,695
EERE (BT Loss allowance (HK$'000) (2,361) (186) 17) (2,564)
BIER 1-608  61-90H #BiB90H &&t
1-60 61-90 Over
days days 90 days
Current pastdue pastdue pastdue Total
—ET-N\F
+-A=t+—8 31 December 2018
BREE®RE (B¥TIT)  Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 826,534 115,538 452 1,356 943,880
BERE (B%TT) Loss allowance (HK$'000) (1,626) (239) - (1) (1,866)

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



Bt 7% [ B B B (

e ISR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&)

31 MEBEBREXR(E)
(b) FERR (&)
(2) ©EEERE (&)

(1)

(i)

JEWE SR ()

FEWE 5 Bk Tk 2 R
BEERZIREE
) 7B PR Rk 1 S 1R %
BB o A& U[E 25t
Al C M 8H 2 SRR
—fEEBEA -

B DR Z
A& @& E

UAZE S5 B AR 51| B 2
Hp S mEEBR
ERTRELERR
7] & M E A WO
R BEELEER
BRI
o RRABRE
BEXNEERR
Bl BEIEED S
% 5 S ER A AT Y [a]
REETHE 78
AT ERAR/ZE
HFEHIBTEML
& BUE [ 18 2K
EIRE RS A
AN B 2 B
REEEERBRR
1K M5 B R e 3 &
FREIBR 0 - A0 R A
It 5 DA SH R AR D)
e AT mEE
ZEREREAT -

BERSMREEH
EY BHRTHE
KN SR 3R 2 75
R8T & B S
HAERE SR AR E
M B2 @ERIR
EETEILTEX -

(continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i)

(ii)

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F

Trade receivables (continued)

Impairment losses on trade
receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within
operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against
the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised
cost

Other financial assets at
amortised cost include loans to
joint ventures and deposits and
other receivables. Management
considers the credit risk on
loans to joint ventures is
minimal after considering the
financial conditions of these
entities. Management has
performed assessment over
the recoverability of these
balances and management
does not expect any losses
from non-performance by these
counterparties. Management
considers low credit risk and
no significant increase in credit
risk for other financial assets at
amortised cost and expect the
loss allowance for these other
financial assets at amortised
cost close to zero.

While cash and cash equivalents,
short-term bank deposits and
restricted cash are also subject
to the impairment requirements
of HKFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.
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(b) FERR (&)

(c)

(2) 2BMEERME(E)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(2) Impairment of financial assets
(continued)

(i) Other financial assets at
amortised cost (continued)

While cash and cash
equivalents, short term bank
deposits and restricted cash are
also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available credit
facilities. The Directors aim to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping credit
lines available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements, its
compliance with lending covenants and
its relationship with its bankers to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and readily realisable marketable
securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.
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3 BXRARERE(E)

31 Bt mE b EE (&)

(c)

RBEEER (&)

TRERAREFTETR
BERBERRZIHB T AL
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B EEREBREFEZFE
3 RAKBRPAENKH
HedaRET=—@EARNDH
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of
the reporting period of the Group’s
non-derivative financial liabilities, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based
on rates current at the balance sheet
date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay. Balances due
within twelve months equal their carrying
balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

Specifically, for mortgage loan which
contains a repayment on demand clause
that can be exercised at the bank’s sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in
which the entity can be required to pay,
that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with
immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based
on the scheduled repayment dates.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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3 MBERERE(HE) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)

3.1 MBERER (&) 3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) "BESLRER (&) (c) Liquidity risk (continued)

WAL
Maturity Analysis
REXE 15/ 1228 285F 5L L R
Between Between
On  Less than 1and 2 2and 5 Over
demand 1 year years years 5 years Total
BETT BT BT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=24 Consolidated
RZE-N\& At 31 December 2018
+-F=1+-H
ERE SRR Trade payables - 761,875 - - - 761,875
EAERR Accruals and other payables
Hi BT - 227,398 2,845 8,536 - 238,779
ERMBRTER Trust receipt bank loan - 309,504 - - - 309,504
BEREKBER Mortgage loan subject to a
[ IRIBER repayment on demand clause 10,350 - - - - 10,350
HibBITER Other bank borrowings - 477,399 556,594 930,219 - 1964212
10,350 1,776,176 559,439 938,755 - 3,284,720
RZE-NF At 31 December
+-A=t-H 2019
BERE SRR Trade payables - 673,649 - - - 673,649
B BRARAMD Accruals and other payables - 187,838 5,282 10,562 - 203,682
R
HERE Lease liabilities - 21,610 5,744 9,884 28,299 65,537
EEMERITER Trust receipt bank loan - 239,535 - - - 239,535
HEtBRITER Other bank borrowings - 525,922 740,500 553,309 - 1,819,731
- 1,648,554 751,526 573,755 28,299 3,002,134
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(c)

RBEEER (&)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below summarises the
maturity analysis of mortgage loan with
a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreement. The amounts
include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. As a result, these
amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the ‘on demand’ time
band in the maturity analysis contained
above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank
will exercise its discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such mortgage loan will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment date set out in the loan
agreements.

HBASH - AARERBEERINERER  REREERT:
Maturity Analysis — Mortgage loans subject to a repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments:

180 L 2F5 L AERE
REXK 15/ BAHRF BAHR5E 5L RELE
More than More than

1 year but 2 years but Total

Within less than less than More than undiscounted

On demand 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows

BETTL BT BETT BRI BT BETL

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ-)\F 31 December 2018

+-A=1+-H - 7,107 3,479 - - 10,586
RZZ-1F 31 December 2019

+=A=+-A . g . g - -
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3 BXRARERE(E)

3.2
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HEMRAE % AEEAFE
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o ZLRBFAERIABES
AE-FRERBERNEER
BEREMRTEFALRE MRS
HFEWMETE -

AEBR-_ZE—NLF+ A
T+ HZFEEBBHLEA
16% (ZZE— \F : 25%) - FE&
EABELERLTIERE TR D
KBTI NFTER o

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debit.

Consistent with others in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of net
gearing ratio. The ratio is calculated as net
debt divided by total equity. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings and lease
liabilities less short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s net gearing ratio was 16% (2018:
25%) as at 31 December 2019. The decrease
in net gearing ratio was due to decrease in
borrowings and increase in total equity.
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3.3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation

The fair value of the following financial assets
and liabilities approximate their carrying
amounts:

Trade and other receivables
e Restricted cash

e  Short-term bank deposits

e (Cash and cash equivalents
e Trade and other payables

° Lease liabilities

Bank borrowings

The table below analyses financial instruments
carried at fair value by valuation method. The
different levels have been defined as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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3 BXRARERE(E)

3.3

D REEMAE (F)

TRENAKEBER-_FT—-N\F
TZRA=1T—HBRAAEBEFE
ZEEREME-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
The following table presents the Group’s assets

and liabilities that are measured at fair value at
31 December 2018.

FAR Fo F3R #aza
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BT BT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BARIBE Financial assets at
sFAEM  fair value through
ZHEUM AR other comprehensive
TRIEE income 199 - 4,162 4,361
aE Liabilities
TSR Derivative financial
TA instruments - 1,801 - 1,801

FTRENAKER-F—n&
+-B=t-REARBEEGE
ZAERAM -

The following table presents the Group’s
assets and liabilities that are measured at fair
value at 31 December 2019.

1R $F2MR IR e
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
BARIEE Financial assets at
sFAEM  fair value through
ZHEUW AR other comprehensive
TREE income 156 - 4,319 4,475
PTES R Derivative financial
TA instruments - 76 - 76
=L Liabilities
TSR Derivative financial
TA instruments - 4,217 - 4,217

TR BN BB L FEIFZE
W o

FA-HERDLELBES -

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2
and 3 during the year.

There were no other changes in valuation
techniques during the year.
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3 BXRARERE(E)

3.3

(a)

(b)

D REEMAE (F)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the reporting
date. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer,
broker, industry group, pricing service,
or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the
current bid price. These instruments are
included in Level 1.

Financial instruments in Level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for
example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques.
These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included
in Level 2.

Level 2 derivative financial instruments
comprise interest rate swaps. The fair
value of interest rate swaps is determined
by using valuation techniques. These
valuation technigues maximise the use
of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on
entity specific estimates.
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3 BXRARERE(E)

33 AR

(c)

EBEEMAS (E)
F3EMIAE

i —IEsK ZIHE K2 H W IE
AERNAEBRmSEE - AT
Bst A SB35 -
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+ZA=1+—HIEFEEIR
THZE%) -

TREJNEIRTAZZE :

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(¢) Financial instruments in Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in Level 3.

The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The following table presents the changes
in Level 3 instruments:

—E-hF —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEEH Opening balance 4,162 -
AAHHESMEESH  Reclassify investments from available-for-sale
DEEREREANEE financial assets to financial assets at fair
A A 2 ERA value through other comprehensive income
TWMEE - 2,500
WAREBEFAEMEE Changes in fair value of financial assets
AR RS E at fair value through other
NABEEE comprehensive income 157 1,662
FUREER Closing balance 4,319 4,162
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below.

(a) Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines
the estimated useful lives, and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. Management
will increase the depreciation charges where
useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives. It will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in
depreciable lives and therefore depreciation
expense in future periods.
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4 BEAREHMETTRHE (FE) 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) FTREEZRE

(b) Impairment of non-financial assets

i A E R E B RECRRRIE
TR EEZREE AR EAI
Bl - BIZE{E R E AR ES o AT L [
TRNKBEEREBEFEXTS
HEMEE ZFAEHTEAE
P B R fh 5T

EEEANEMEERTRE " L
ERFME () REEBEERET
EHREEBEVREEZRE S
5 ()T Rl k8 (B XS 5
BEREEMMGET A EBERIE
ERAKARRE REFRE (A
BaER%)) RRERZEEE
ZEEEME RN EEE SRS
FEARFEAEENEERS B8
REAHERAEEMNEITRZER
ﬁh\biiﬁ/ﬁ”

M ERE T ERECRRBEE (8
FREREEMNAERA IR E
FIBREREBR) - KGFERER
ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ@fﬁﬁ -ﬁﬁ?¢5$
SEMBIR R EERLE -

Non-financial assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The
recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market
valuations. These calculations require the use
of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area
of asset impairment particularly in assessing:
(i) whether an event has occurred that may
indicate that the related asset values may
not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell or net present value
of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

Changing the assumptions selected by
management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth
rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group’s financial position and results of
operations.
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4 EBEAREFHEERHE (&)
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PRAIREEIAB IR - S KT E M
BB A B o 58RI HURL (B B 7B 8
A R - MBS BERE
et ER ZEBHFEFER
EEEGFEEHENTEM
AR

F& W BR 3% 2 fl 5T RLE

TMEECERBEBHRBEN
R RFEHBERRZRREE
REBNEHZEREMEZR
Bt EWABER BEEF K
SEBEESL BRITTRAERE
| E BIR 2 R R AH A1 HIET
BRIZHRENMA 28 ARE
Z A IBE M EES

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Fair value of investment properties

The valuation of investment properties is
performed in accordance with the “Valuation
Standards on Valuation of Properties”
published by the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors. The valuation is reviewed
semi-annually by qualified valuers by
considering comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market and where
appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of net
income provided by the Group.

Changes to the assumptions used in deriving
the valuation could have a significant risk of
causing material adjustment to the carrying
amounts in the statement of financial position.

Estimated provision for inventories

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the
realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The
identification of write-downs requires the
use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of inventories and write-downs
of inventories in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

Estimated impairment of receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are
based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history,
existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.
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4 EBEAREFHEERHE (&)

(f) FEHRELZEMSH

R BN % (7R HE [ 2B U A
B NREETSMWAERERER
AELBEXRAE - HEEBKBRE
TEZRXZAFEBEELFR
ZEREBEAR T AEER
BT R B AR N IR M M
REFAVMBEZEEZEE - M
BRFECRARBEREAN S
AERRBER  ZEBRHBTEE
EBEBHBBEME 2 AFNLET
PRIR RS

e BB R AEE R RE MR AR
FERBF B A Al E BER E R
MIAEEE 2K - RIFERY &
ETHREZEEZECHBEEN
HIAEE - BB HREAER
THACEMRNEE R M L
BRZEEREHREEERIE
EMBHABESAESERS SR
Rz (AP EE - HF
BRARREEFAER  ZEBH
FEMGEPHEBEERIEER
B N PTS IS 2 FERR o

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(f)

Income taxes and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in
various jurisdictions. Significant judgement
is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be required. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain
temporary differences and tax losses are
recognised when management considers it is
likely that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax
asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and income tax charges in
the period in which such estimates have been
changed.
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TEHER

AEBZERTREEEHREATE
SERRE([XTBL2ERKE]) - K
SERF D SMELEEEP

BFRERK ([EMS]) — REMSEE &
HERDHEFEM -

MERE-MEER HELEE -

TRRERRETHEAANRERR N
EW*Biﬁi AFHERBEDEER -
TREERRERBEDBREZFERFN
HEENBRR - Lt EEEBEARN
BREMUA - bl —F50 - BERK
R-FRENMEEBEARBRZEED
MBE  ETBEEEMKRDEMAX
AERLERRERHZEMERZ
B EMBHREMET A —RETE -

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s senior executive management is
considered as the Chief Operating Decision Maker
(“CODM”). The Group is currently organised into
two operating divisions:

Electronic Manufacturing Service (“EMS”) -
manufacture and distribution of electronic products
for EMS customers.

Property Holding — development, sale and lease of
properties.

The CODM reviews the performance of the Group
on a regular basis and reviews the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. The CODM assesses the
performance of the operating segments based on
a measure of segment results. This measurement
basis includes profit or loss of the operating
segments before other income, other gains - net,
finance costs - net and share of loss of an associate
but excludes corporate and unallocated expenses.
Other information provided to the CODM is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F



170

e MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEPER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EMSIZBFY WS H A wEm
Property
EMS holding
division division Total
BET T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BZ-Z—NAE+=H Forthe year ended 31
=t+t—HLFE December 2019
MK R External revenue
BEFPAE DR Revenue from contracts with
customers
WAz 22 T 5 PR ] Timing of revenue recognition
—EX K — At a point of time 3,559,922 149,699 3,709,621
E e R Revenue from other sources
— BERF — Over time - 71,535 71,535
3,559,922 221,234 3,781,156
DEBELE Segment results 159,197 197,918 357,115
e R#ET Depreciation and amortisation
charges 66,767 42 66,809
Bl & %A E Share of profits of joint ventures - 104,921 104,921
WEYENREEEE Change in fair value of
investment properties - 28,375 28,375
EARRY Capital expenditure 30,886 = 30,886
EMSHIFT M5 H A Fek
Property
EMS holding
division division Total
BT T BT T BT IT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-Z—)\F+—-F For the year ended
—t+t—HILtFE 31 December 2018
MK External revenue
BEFPAE DR Revenue from contracts with
customers
Uiz 22 T 5 PR ] Timing of revenue recognition
—EX K — At a point of time 3,946,228 - 3,946,228
E e R Revenue from other sources
— BERF — Over time - 67,318 67,318
3,946,228 67,318 4,013,546
DEBELE Segment results 209,889 1,290,680 1,500,569
e R#ET Depreciation and amortisation
charges 53,497 41 53,538
EhaEtENE Share of profits of joint ventures - 1,001,980 1,001,980
WEYWENREERE Change in fair value of
investment properties - 239,003 239,003
=N Capital expenditure 27,601 - 27,601
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DEPER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
EMSEPM ¥ EHEIM B
Property
EMS holding
division division Total
BT T BT BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZZB-hEF As at 31 December 2019
+=BA=+—H
DEPE E Segment assets 2,708,691 2,787,668 5,496,359
HEPENER Interests in joint ventures - 2,505,012 2,505,012
A2 HEELTE Total reportable segment
assets 2,708,691 5,292,680 8,001,371
EMSHESFT MR FFAERFT #aza
Property
EMS holding
division division Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
RZE—N\F As at 31 December 2018
+=—A=+—H
DEPE E Segment assets 2,716,844 2,992,209 5,709,053
BEPENER Interests in joint ventures - 2,410,801 2,410,801
AI2Wmo EEERT Total reportable segment assets 2,716,844 5,403,010 8,119,854

DHEETEBREME  BEM&EE
REWE  ERAEEE MELHET
ERE - AERRED - XRHIE
T FE CERUERFE  BRES
BRAK - TR AR - 5T & o E R UK AR
Fo DBEAFELEZERBEE - &
HETERERE MRS FEY - BF
BREBEARNKE BRAEEA
Hb2ERANEREE  (TESRT
A EEMEREE - BB E QAR
H - BHIRIEIR SRR R R ARD R
BE -

Segment assets consist primarily of property,
plant and equipment, investment properties,
right-of-use assets, leasehold land and land use
rights, interests in joint ventures, restricted cash,
inventories, stock of completed properties, trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, non-current assets classified as
held for sale, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents, but exclude investments
in associates, financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income, derivative
financial instruments, deferred income tax assets,
amounts due from associates, current income tax
recoverable and corporate and unallocated assets.
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2 EER (&)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

AE2moMEER 1S B ATAE 2 A reconciliation of reportable segment results to
%’ﬂ‘EEZZDT : profit before income tax is provided as follows:
=EF-NEF —\&F
2019 2018
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
T 2HDEWEE Reportable segment results 357,115 1,500,569
H U A Other income 9,826 18,952
HhWes — %58 Other gains — net 9,502 29,070
BEKA —FE Finance costs — net (44,873) (51,452)
FE(GESE & N RSB Share of loss of an associate (636) (2,227)
TERRDEAZ Corporate and unallocated expenses (26,365) (21,793)
B AT 5 % AT RIS Profit before income tax 304,569 1,473,119

A2ERDNEEHBEE 2HERWMOT : Reportable segment assets are reconciled to total
assets as follows:
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BETT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
27 HEE Reportable segment assets 8,001,371 8,119,854
BN AR E Investments in associates 26,062 28,235
BRAnBEFAEM Financial assets at fair value through
PHEHBANERERE other comprehensive income 4,475 4,361
PTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 76 -
EIEFTIS %Ré? Deferred income tax assets 27,642 21,179
JE Wi Bt R B FIE Amounts due from associates 14 11
”‘“HH—MZ@F)’T SF Current income tax recoverable 1,727 520
TERRDEREE Corporate and unallocated assets 121,869 93,522
REMBRRERAMNMEE Total assets per consolidated statement
of financial position 8,183,236 8,267,682
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DEBE R (&) SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
HMEBEBARIBE 2HERAT - Reconciliations of other material items are as
follows:

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

FrEREE H Depreciation and amortisation charges
— a2 H P4 - Reportable segment total 66,809 53,538
ALIFCE — Corporate headquarters 2,395 2,392
69,204 55,930

BEARMY Capital expenditure

— A 2HHHREE - Reportable segment total 30,886 27,601
—NaEBES — Corporate headquarters - -
30,886 27,601

RABRAREZM - AT RAEER
wemHE D 2 Wa i (RHAERE
ZHEORTE)

The Company is domiciled in Bermuda. Analysis of
the Group’s revenue by geographical market, which
is determined by the destination of the invoices
billed, is as follows:

—E-hF —T-N\F

2019 2018

BETT BEET T

HK$°000 HK$'000

1M North America 885,028 976,653
TN CPBEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 1,491,294 1,734,783
BOM Europe 627,781 672,231
BE Hong Kong 777,053 629,879
3,781,156 4,013,546

HE_T—-—NLF+A=+—H1
F[Z - #75%1,356,499,000T (=&
— J\&F : 5 #1,383,171,0007T) * &
#420,082,0007T (ZF — \F : B
493,528,0007T) M & #378,548,0007T
(ZZ— )\ : #%406,640,0007T) 2
WD RIRE=ZRINFRF - ZERP
BRAEBWZE Z10% A L - ZFIK
7 ABEMSEB T FEAh W 5% o

For the year ended 31 December 2019, revenues
of approximately HK$1,356,499,000 (2018:
HK$1,383,171,000), HK$420,082,000 (2018:
HK$493,528,000) and HK$378,548,000 (2018:
HK$406,640,000) were derived from the top three
external customers respectively. These customers
individually account for 10% or more of the Group’s
revenue. These revenues are attributable to the
EMS division.
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DEPER (&) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
UTAAEBRRMETISE 5 2 3ER Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by
FEEN geographical market is as follows:
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BETR  BETR
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEZEM North America 6 16
oM (TEEEE) Asia (excluding Hong Kong) 314,735 283,515
B Europe 30 33
HB Hong Kong 5,135,603 5,019,471
5,450,374 5,308,035
IEMBEEREYE  WELSRE & Non-current assets comprise property, plant and
BWE  EREEE MHELHE T equipment, investment properties, right-of-use
ERAE BEARNKRE & hERN assets, leasehold land and land use rights,
#am o BARBEFARMEERAD investments in associates, interests in joint
TREE  PTESRMT A e RHEAM ventures, financial assets at fair value through
EWERRZRHES T ERIEE other comprehensive income, derivative financial
FIiEHEE - instruments, deposits and other receivables and
restricted cash. They exclude deferred income tax
assets.
AEEEHATIEBEERPEHOZ The Group has recognised the following liabilities
BE: related to contracts with customers:
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
& # 8 E—EMSHERPFT Contract liabilities — EMS division 147,465 118,089
BRBE-MERE B Contract liabilities — property holding division - 11,904
147,465 129,993
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DEHER (E) 5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TRINRED R E—FEENMNEF The following table shows how much of the revenue
EHEEEENCERUNEESRE recognised relates to carried-forward contract

liabilities that were satisfied in a prior year:

—E-nE  —BN\F
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMSEEFT EMS division 118,089 120,780
Y4578 Bh T Property holding division 11,904 -
129,993 120,780

Hib g A 6 OTHER INCOME
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$’000
K 8 B Government grant 7,688 4,976
B R R A Sales of scrap and spare parts 2,126 12,307
Htp Others 12 1,669
9,826 18,952

EERABEX (BRESHE) 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

—2-nE  —E)N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000

TE - %o 2K Wages, salaries, allowances and
H A B AR A other termination benefits 415,156 440,321

RIRE AR Pension costs

— REHNRETE — defined contribution schemes 41,616 42,779
456,772 483,100
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Fé)?gﬂﬁﬁi (BERESEME)
&

REBABEMEGEREBRILES
MRAEEFE ([RELTE]) - A
CREICEEHEASEEESIHARE -
NEEFABITABTE - REQAES
e AEBRHEEETA S ARG E
EHHR B AREEBBERA (X
REBEFMERTESFTENEH) 25% o
AEEREEZHR R RE ALK
1,5007C (ZF—/\F : & A8 %1,500
TL) c HREHASEBETES

REARAMBE (TFEDHBEARZ
BE AT BERFRY BRGNS

ERTENBARALTEABZRKER
REt 8IS - REBEEBERNER - BB
A ERRERKRE 2 ERNGFE MREF
HFtE 2 RS - PEIBN A RRINE
B ZRIKE

AR EWRmKRETR 2 B AL B
#41,616,0000C (Z T — N\ F : B
42,779,0007T) FEAREE B AB K FE
M ErTSIEN 2 MR-

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “Fund Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the Fund
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Under the Fund Scheme, each of the Group and
its employees make monthly contributions to the
Scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined in the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 per month (2018: HK$1,500 per month).
The contributions are fully and immediately vested
for the employees.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) are members of
retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC
government.

The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the state retirement schemes in
the PRC. The employees are entitled to retirement
pension calculated with reference to their basic
salaries on retirement and their length of service
in accordance with the relevant government
regulations. The PRC government is responsible for
the pension liability to the retired staff.

The total cost charged to the consolidated income
statement of approximately HK$41,616,000 (2018:
HK$42,779,000) represents contributions payable
to the schemes by the Group in respect of the
current financial year.
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BR Fit 1§ B¢ A0 A

BRATEBRAF BT

8 PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit before income tax is analysed as follows:

—ZE-hF —ZE-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
M - BEREBITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 52,191 55,328
FRAEEECTE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17,013 -
HETH & Amortisation on leasehold land and
o $b {50 R 4 2 8 8 land use rights - 602
JrERMERE  Depreciation and amortisation charges | 69,204 55930
% ERRN BN & Auditor’s remuneration 3,281 3,221
THREF I LEHERS Operating lease rental in respect of
land and buildings - 14,421
RAHEE KEHERS Operating lease rental in respect of
short-term lease 217 -
AHEBHEME Utility expenses 22,465 24,355
B Transportation 30,922 34,064
LB @ KB FER Chemicals and consumables 26,678 29,856
HAh, Others 99,227 101,519
AfbgExl  Otheroperating expenses 182790 207,436
BIRHZEAZAERBR  Impairment losses on trade receivables 698 . 1,866
B8 Total 252,692 265,232
Hiblhz=—F5 9 OTHER GAINS - NET
—E-nE —EB-N\F
2019 2018
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
JERTE 5 R H AT Write-back of trade and other payables - 2,614
AR
SR T AUz (EHB)—F% Gains/(losses) on financial instrument — net
—REH - Unrealised 20 101
—BEIR — Realised (18) (106)
HEME - BE R Gains on disposals of property,
B W plant and equipment 288 140
b H W e — F 58 Exchange gains — net 9,212 24,186
HERAREBEIT ABR Gain on disposal of financial assets
MEREE 2 e at fair value through profit or loss = 2,135
9,502 29,070
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= ’ ’
10 EEREREEEZ2HE 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS
(a) EEM =S (a) Directors’ emoluments
REBEZ-_T—-—NF+A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
IETFEZEEMEEHINWOT : ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:
HERALF
FENELE
bEHEE
BIkER HE%EE RitEhES
AR itz BEZEHE BH2EHE
e b3 RigeA EERH i ReE [ E3 EhHe EhHE ELE
Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of Director’s
other services in
connection with
Remuneration the management of
Employer's paid or receivable the affairs of
Estimated contribution to in respect of the Company or
Discretionary Housing money value of a retirement accepting office its subsidiary Total
Fees Salaries bonus allowance other benefits benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
AR Eiann Eiann ELawn ELawn BT AR BT BETT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TEf () Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note) 10 4,338 4,163 - - - - - 8,571
188 Wong Yin Man, Ada 0 2283 2,463 - - 18 - - 4,834
ke Chan Tsze Wah, Gabriel 10 G 400 - - - - - 1,46
ERE Wan Man Keung 0 229 1,963 - - - - - 4326
FKIE Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 0 1,751 500 - - 6 - - 2327
B Li Ka Cheung, Eric 160 - - - - - - - 160
BER Yu Sun Say 160 - - - - - - - 160
E7% Alfred Donald Yap 160 - - - - - - - 160
FEil Cheung Chi Chiu, David 160 - - - - - - - 160
EL Total 990 1144 9,489 - - % - - 21,94
REBEZZ—-—N\F+A=+—H The emoluments of Directors for the year
IETFEZEEMEEHINNT : ended 31 December 2018 is set out below:
HEEALT
JENELE
) ) r20En
i e HEREE AAzkEE
) Az ez BEZERR LYY
ne i BiTEAL BEZ {EReE EHiR Ede e ae
Emoluments paid
or receivable in
respect of Director’s

ather services in
connection with
Remuneration the management

Employer's ~ paid or receivable of the affairs of
Estimated confribution to in respect of the Company
Discretionary Housing money value of a reflrement accepting office or its subsidiary Total
. Fees Saleries . bonus allowance other benefits benefit scheme as Director undertaking emoluments
BT BT T L e iave T BT EETL
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Tk (W) Wong Chung Mat, Ben (Note) 10 413 1532 - - - - - 5740
188 Wong Yin Man, Ada 10 211 1352 - - 18 - - 3617
ke Chan Tsze Weh, Gelri 10 739 180 - - - - - 99
BR% Wan Man Keung 70 2374 1352 - - - - - 37%
FKIE Hung Wing Shun, Edmund 10 1670 300 - - 18 - - 2058
35k LiKa Cheung, Eric 150 - - - - - - - 150
BER Yu Sun Say 150 - - - - - - - 150
X8 Alfred Doneld Yap 150 - - - - - - - 150
Fii Cheung Chi Chiv, David 150 - - - - - - - 150
E Total 950 11,098 4716 - - 36 - 16,800
B 5T Note:
TAREEAARARIITHRES  T& Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben is the Chief Executive Officer
MATBAAH N S IMER HEE - of the Company, no separate disclosure in respect of the

remuneration of the CEO has been made.
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10 EERGREEE2ME (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

EEME ()

BE_ZT—NFERZZT-—NEF
+-A=+—"HULEFE #HEgS
ERESRERETMAEE -

EERNKEFN

TEEFNEFREARBINRNEE
—E-NAEFRZTE-N\EFE+A
=t+—RIEFERAXR-

ESRUERBER

WEIFRESKIEFREENRES
—E-NEFERZE-N\F+=HA
=t—HIEFEARAZf -

REREZERBEEOE=F1FH
B KB

REBEE-_Z-NFR-ZZT-N\F
+ZA=+—HLEFER AR
AVERIEHEESRERE=F
T AHERARAE -

MES XZREFESEHNE
ABBRZEESNRETR
RUNER - ZEERMHEMR
ZHER

REBEZZE-NFRZZT—N\F
+TZ A=+ —BLEFEFHERK
FREMEHMB TERESE X
ZEESERNEANBBEZE
EEMEETBRETMENR
EERMEHEMRK S -

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

No Directors waived or agreed to waive any
emoluments in any of the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018.

Directors’ retirement benefits

No Directors’ retirement benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Directors’ termination benefits

No Directors’ termination benefits were paid
during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Consideration provided to third parties
for making available Directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any
third parties for making available Directors’
services during the years ended 31 December
2019 and 2018.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such Directors

No loans, quasi-loans and other dealings
were made available in favour of Directors,
body corporates controlled by and connected
entities with such Directors subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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10 EERSREERZME (&)

(f)

(9)

EENRE  ZEREHNHH
EAER

REBEEZE_Z-—NEFER_Z—NF
+ZA=+—BLFEFHERK
FAEMAER NARWEE] L
I AEEEBMARARIESE
FIEEEEPRSEAERZDN
BEERH  THEEH -

TEEESME AL

Ex AEBRAEEBHE A
o RENE(ZE—\F W
FVEE BEZMEEENLEX
2R A BT B (ZF—N
o — %) A+ N HEIH
PURNE

10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

®)

(9)

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year include
four (2018: four) Directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one
(2018: one) individual are as follows:

—E-hE —E—)\F
2019 2018
BT T BEETFIT
HK$’000 HK$’000
e RHEAET Salaries and other benefits 1,291 1,266
TEAT Bonus 53 105
BRIRE A — R EHKEE Pension costs — defined
contribution schemes - -
1,344 1,371
AE
Number of individual
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
B < 5 & Emolument band
7 #51,000,001 7T — /& #1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1

FA-AEEREINMES TE
= EARSIREFMAKREEL
A& B 2 52 3 1F /5 B B
g -

No emolument was paid by the Group to the
Directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office during the year.
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10 EEREREEE2ME (&) 10 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S

11

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(h) SREEE (TERES )M (h) Senior management’s (excluding
gE Directors) emoluments by band
SREEE(MEEES) 2M2 The emoluments of senior management
NFUTEE : (excluding Directors) fell within the following

bands:
AE
Number of individuals
—B-hE -2 N\F
2019 2018

Bl < &5 (2] Emolument bands

7B #500,0017T — &% 1,000,000 HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 - 1

711,000,001 7T — ##1,500,0007T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 3

BB - FE 11 FINANCE COSTS - NET

—E-nE 2 N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000

A WA Finance income

_CRATERZFIBMA - Interest income on bank deposits 3 20588 12612

B AR Finance costs

—HEBBEZFEMX — Interest expense on lease liabilities (1,181) -
—IRITERZFEMX — Interest expenses on bank borrowings (64,280) (60,686)
—HFERX - Other interest expenses - (3,378)
BREAERE Total finance costs .| (65,461) | (64,064)
BRERCAR — H 5 Finance costs — net (44,873) (51,452)
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Fris®ip 12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
EENESHEREEBIRRES 21 Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
TR A IR E16.5% (ZF—N of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
F:16.5%) FHiRH A - profit arising in or derived from Hong Kong.
AREBEFRBEANHHE QR AMMAT The Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China are
TEMEH((REMAEHRD)  BHER subject to the China Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”)
At R 2 25% (ZF— N\F : 25%) at a rate of 25% (2018: 25%) on the estimated
WARRNB 22BN B RARER R (B profits, except for Welco Technology (Suzhou)
M) BRAR (TEEERIM]) BN Limited (“WTSZ”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
BEMNTESIBELETI5%(ZE Company. WTSZ is entitled to the preferential CIT
—\F 15%) BELEMSFME - B rate of 15% (2018: 15%) under the New and High
22 -TF+-_HA=+—H- Technology Enterprises status till 31 December
2020.
AR E N EROMEH SRS The amount of income tax charged to the
consolidated income statement represents:
—2-nE B N\E
2019 2018
BETT BT IT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EHEH Current income tax
—BBFEH - Hong Kong profits tax 36,761 13,955
—BINE IR — Overseas taxation 37,677 40,311
BEFE (BE) /T REME  (Over)under-provision in prior years
—EHEH — Current income tax (3,225) 501
IEIEFT1S R (P 5E23) Deferred income tax (Note 23) (32,971) (3,397)
38,242 51,370
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12 FrEHE X< (#)

BRAAS BN A FE 2 HEAEABR
REAGERNEEMROIE IR

EFFBHMERSENT

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise

using the weighted average tax rate applicable to
profits of the consolidated entities as follows:

—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
bR TS AT F)E Profit before income tax 304,569 1,473,119
REARSHFE Tax calculated at the domestic tax
Bl ARGt E 2 BiE rates applicable to profits in the
respective places 49,055 240,350
EERBE R T RaEhE Tax effects of associate and joint
BMEEBE BB E ventures results reported, net of tax (17,207) (164,959)
T E X Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 17,170 17,322
BAERTUA Income not subject to tax (8,126) (41,971)
I AERERIE T TS A ER Tax losses and other temporary
IR EE R A R = 2 differences for which no deferred
income tax asset was recognised 575 127
BAFE (B%8) /T2EME  (Over)under-provision in prior years (3,225) 501
PSRt 2 Income tax expense 38,242 51,370
BAMEFEIRERI6% (ZZE—N The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16%

F:16%) °

(2018: 16%).
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13 RE 13 DIVIDENDS

14

TE-NFERZZE-NFENNEKRE The dividends paid in 2019 and 2018 were

9 Bl B #) B 43,064,000 T (B IR B #
0.097T) & 7 #35,886,0007T (& i% /&
#0.0757T) ° R AR A ER R R
FRAELERERZBE-_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—HLEFERBRE AEEKR
7 #50.037T + & 4978 % 14,355,000
TC o WEMBRRITERBREXENZ

approximately HK$43,064,000(HK$0.09 per
share) and HK$35,886,000 (HK$0.075 per share)
respectively. A final dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2019 of HK$0.03 per share,
amounting to a total dividend of approximately
HK$14,355,000, will be proposed at the upcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. These

RHARR B o financial statements do not reflect this final dividend
payable.
—g-nFE  —FN\F
2019 2018
BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
R EIR B — FiE0.0357C  Interim dividend paid — HK$0.035
—Z— )\ : #%0.047T) (2018: HK$0.04) per share 16,747 19,139
BORAKHIRL B — BAE0.037t  Proposed final dividend — HK$0.03
(ZZE—N\F : B%0.0557T) (2018: HK$0.055) per share 14,355 26,317
31,102 45,456
BRER 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) EX (a) Basic
BREXRBFDIREAQRER A Basic earnings per share is calculated by
FEMEFEBRAFAR EITEBER dividing the profit attributable to owners of the
ZINEFHEEHE - Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
—E-hE  —EN\F
2019 2018
NAFRVEE AEEFE Profit attributable to owners of
(B¥TT) the Company (HK$’000) 266,327 1,421,749
BEITEBEK Z INEFHE Weighted average number of ordinary
(FA) shares in issue (in thousands) 478,484 478,484
SRREARRAF (BT Basic earnings per share (HK$) 0.56 2.97
(b) #8% (b) Diluted

MEIMEFE2RERHATR
MoARMEFEABEELELZ

No diluted earnings per share is presented for
both years because there is no dilutive potential

e EmaR o ordinary shares outstanding throughout both

years.
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15 W% - BERZHE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B - e
THkEF  EBIE ke HHREE "E At
Plant,
machinery
Land and Construction and Furniture Motor
buildings  in progress  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=2-N%-A-H At 1 January 2018
XA E Cost 193,289 - 852,722 145,385 12,641 1,204,037
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (55,190) - (670,757)  (120,395) (9,347)  (855,689)
REFE Net book amount 138,099 - 181,965 24,990 3,294 348,348
HEZZ\F Year ended
1= HJ' BLEFE 31 December 2018
HOEREFE Opening net book amount 138,099 - 181,965 24,990 3,294 348,348
HE Additions 3,798 - 22,340 155 1,308 27,601
LE Disposals - - (925) - - (925)
e Depreciation (6,551) - (43,115) (4,437) (1,225) (55,328)
EHBREES Currency translation
differences (2,151) - (8,875) (34) (19) (11,079)
BREEEFE Closing net book amount 133,195 - 151,390 20,674 3,358 308,617
RZE-N\¥ At 31 December 2018
+-A=1+-A
MAE Cost 192,972 - 837,975 145,399 13427 1,189,773
ZAMERAME Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (59,777 - (686,585)  (124,725) (10,069)  (881,156)
REFE Net book amount 133,195 - 151,390 20,674 3,358 308,617
BE BER
IHREF ERIR 2 BARZE RE fit
Plant,
machinery
Land and Construction and Furniture Motor
buildings  in progress  equipment  and fixtures vehicles Total
BETR BETR BETR ARt ARt BETR
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=B-nE-A-A At 1 January 2019
HNEETE Opening net book amount 133,195 - 151,390 20,674 3,358 308,617
AE Additions 119 10,212 20,521 34 - 30,886
nE Disposals - - (1,768) - - (1,768)
ENDRERARAE Reclassification to right-of-use
(M2.1.1) assets (Note 2.1.1) (61,814) - - - - (61,814)
& Depreciation (4,743) - (42,051) (4,352) (1,045) (52,191)
EUHEER Currency translation differences (751) (29) (2,778) ) 0 (3,573)
BREEFE Closing net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
R=B-AF+=A=1+-R At 31 December 2019
AR Cost 115,686 10,183 827,620 145,380 13,391 1,112,260
ZETERHEE Accumulated depreciation
and impairment (49,680) - (702,306) (129,032) (11,085) (892,103)
REFE Net book amount 66,006 10,183 125,314 16,348 2,306 220,157
R_T—NFt_A="1— = TR As at 31 December 2019, certain bank borrowings
TEXRHERERLB pﬁ§21 499 000 are secured on land and buildings with a carrying
T(ZE—N\F: 5 #83, 903 00075) amount of approximately HK$21,499,000 (2018:
Z T REFEER (T HK$83,903,000) (Note 34).
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16 REWHE 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—HA—H At 1 January 2,506,097 2,355,251
N BEEYER Fair value gains 28,375 239,003

PRI E IR R B 5T Transfer from stock of completed properties
MEFEEL (MiE25) upon commencement of lease (Note 25) — 1,350

HEEZOBR/BIELEZ Transfer to non-current assets classified

SEMBEE (MIFE30) as assets held for sale (Note 30) - (88,383)
EMBREEE Currency translation differences (456) (1,124)
R+=-—A=+—H At 31 December 2,534,016 2,506,097

AEERETMFEARIIREMEE
HIZ10E50F 2 FHEOFA -

R—_ZE—NhF+=_A=+—8"
AETROTERBEEHBEARNBE
2,501,100,0007c (ZZE — N\F : B
2,474,100,0007T) 2 & & ¥) 3 1 & 4
(Ff3E34) o

EXFRREMEEERR

The Group’s interest in investment properties at
their net book values are on medium-term leases of
10 to 50 years.

As at 31 December 2019, certain bank borrowings
are secured on investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$2,501,100,000 (2018: HK$2,474,100,000) (Note
34).

Value of investment properties shown above
comprises:

—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEME Properties in Hong Kong 2,510,700 2,483,800
BBIBEINDFE Properties outside Hong Kong 23,316 22297
2,534,016 2,506,097
AEBZHERE Valuation processes of the Group

BREMEBYFREFLBEME &
EMER_ZT—ALF+-_A=1+—8
ZIEERBLREMITESBEE M
BRATH#EIT HAABBAEMEEE
FEB - BEEEMBHREERFE3
5o REREVMEZ AR EBEFTEER
WHNFAT °

The investment properties are valued semi-annually
on the direct comparison approach. The valuations
of the investment properties at 31 December
2019 were carried out by an independent firm of
surveyors, Roma Appraisals Limited, who is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
The fair value measurement information for these
investment properties in accordance with HKFRS
13 is given below.
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16 REMWZE (&)
rEEzHERRE (H)

REE 2 B 15 BBk B 15 3 4R E
TREMEGLE ERNEEEERE
HoREBEAKEZHER - BEEEZL
BEERHERREMERELFED

A N
u‘—JLuFHJ IN °

EEBEZEGNE®REAGEEN®
o DTEIRAABEZIED - FR
A — B ZEBIR2RE - AR

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Valuation processes of the Group
(continued)

The Group’s finance team performs the valuations
of investment properties required for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the
management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management and
the team at least once bi-annually, in line with the
Group’s reporting dates.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at
each reporting date valuation discussions between
the management and the team. As part of this

BAAEBEEFS ER- discussion, the team presents a report that explains
the reasons for the fair value movements.
RAAEBEE
Fair value measurements
HEEE
AERT S EXHEM BEREE
ZHE BERB2H BE2Y
(SE14%) (5E24k) (%34%)
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
BT T BT T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ERAAEESE Recurring fair value
measurements
R-ZZ—NF As at 31 December 2019 - - 2,534,016
+t=A=+—8
RZZE—NF As at 31 December 2018 - - 2,506,097
+=ZA=+—H
FA - FBIR - FoRAREIR 2 HI & There were no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and
i o Level 3 during the year.
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16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant

B (534%) unobservable inputs (Level 3)
REYHE
Investment properties
& BEBEN #ct
Hong Outside
Kong Hong Kong Total
BET T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
R-ZZE—HhE—H—H At1January 2019 2,483,800 22,297 2,506,097
AREBEERE Fair value gains 26,900 1,475 28,375
EXBnEEZRE Currency translation = (456) (456)
differences
R-ZZE—h&F At 31 December 2019 2,510,700 23,316 2,534,016
+=A=+-8
FARBRKWEREE Total unrealised gains for
(RERFBHEE the year included in the
SFAGZREWERA consolidated income
[REWELIR statement for assets held
EE®®] BET) at the end of the year,
under ‘Change in fair value
of investment properties’ 26,900 1,475 28,375
RZZE—NF—H—H At1January 2018 2,333,013 22,238 2,355,251
AT & R 1A B Transfer from stock of
B EFEEDY completed properties upon
commencement of lease 1,350 - 1,350
A BERE Fair value gains 237,820 1,183 239,003
R ESEAEE Transfer to non-current
HEZIERBEE assets classified as
assets held for sale (88,383) - (88,383)
BHmEEE Currency translation differences - (1,124) (1,124)
W=Z—N\F At 31 December 2018 2,483,800 22,297 2,506,097
+=—A=+—8H
FARERW BT Total unrealised gains for
(BLFRFTHEE the year included in the
AR EWERA consolidated income statement
[IEEWEIR for assets held at the end of
BEZE] BT) the year, under ‘Change in fair
value of investment properties’ 237,820 1,183 239,003

EXKERENEZ A ABEDCERE
BEEAMAE  EPRRAUARTEA
BRI EYME - A2 EREMSE LA
RS ZALBEEXZER -

Fair values of completed investment properties
have been valued by the direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the properties in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market.
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16 REWE (&)

ERERBZERSUTEANE
18 (5834%) (&)

fMESDRREEARAHAMSLE
WE - MABBRELHRREH - &R
HE - 5EEE  ERBHHRIEMEAL
R ARTTBRYME Z(BIE © 1t
HEFTEGFMEMNEEITELE
REMEEEELERBERE  TL
B - RBHERETE—ERZZ
FWREHIT -

FR - BERGALEZE -

AEBRBCEHERLIREDE - ¥
WAHRE2ESF - A REREIRENE
EZIGHER - BHESERS A
e #BHEZT—hF+=ZA=+—H
IEFE BEWEZHSRABELN A
5 #71,635,000 (ZFE—N\F : B
67,318,0007T) - MABEZRAZL A
75 115,373,000 (ZZE — \F : B
15,975,0007T) °

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (continued)

The valuation has been made on the assumption
that the owners sell the properties in the open
market without the benefit of deferred term
contracts, leasebacks, joint ventures, management
agreements or any similar arrangements which
would serve to increase the values of such
properties. In addition, no account has been taken
of any option or right of pre-emption concerning
or affecting the sale of the properties and no
allowance has been made for the properties to be
sold in one lot or to a single purchaser.

There were no changes in valuation techniques
during the year.

The Group leases out the investment properties
under operating leases, for an initial period of 2 to
3 years, with an option to renew on renegotiated
terms. None of the leases includes contingent
rentals. During the year ended 31 December 2019,
the gross rental income from investment properties
amounted to approximately HK$71,535,000 (2018:
HK$67,318,000) and related direct outgoings
amounted to approximately HK$15,373,000 (2018:
HK$15,975,000).
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17 #HE

AMERHEBEASERAEANE

() HEWBRRARFHNERR S

RAEMBARRKRIIRATERE

17 LEASES

This note provides information for leases where the
Group is a lessee.

(i)  Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial

EEMER position shows the following amounts relating
to leases:
—E-NF
—E-hE —A—H
1 January
2019 2019
BT T T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEREEE Right-of-use assets
THE 3 %+ b A Leasehold land and land use rights 76,105 78,645
T RIEF Factory and buildings 49,691 23,406
125,796 102,051
HEERE Lease liabilities
ED Current 19,756 10,969
FERED Non-current 30,583 12,672
50,339 23,641
M3 - Notes:

ZE-NEBRFE R INE 41,558,000
TLREREEE -

RZF-NAF+=-A=+—8"

ETHRITEZREEEALBE
60,166,000 (=& — \F : #&)
ZAEREEEERIE (K sE34) -

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2019
financial year were HK$41,558,000.

As at 31 December 2019, certain bank
borrowings are secured on right-of-use assets
with a carrying amount of approximately
HK$60,166,000 (2018: Nil) (Note 34).
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17 HE (&)
W KT HERE R

(i) #RE

FEWRRITATHEHEAERH

17 LEASES (continued)

(i)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement

The consolidated income statement shows the

Fpfcak-CE following amounts relating to leases:
—E-hEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERAREENTESX N Depreciation charge of
right-of-use assets
THE T Jo + b i Leasehold land and land use rights 2,226 -
ITHREF Factory and buildings 14,787 -
17,013 -
FEHE (FGTABERKZA)  Interest expense
(included in finance costs) 1,181 -
BHEHEENRX Expense relating to short-term
(FFAHAMEERS) leases (included in other
operating expenses) 217 -
1,398 -
—NFHERGENRER The total cash outflow for lease liabilities in

%%%Ez%%%m,zzz,ooofc °

18 HELHR THERE

AREBRHEE LR LHEREE

2019 was HK$14,222,000.

18 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE

RIGHTS

The Group’s interests in leasehold land and land

mIETANKEMERIE - REZREF use rights represent prepaid operating lease
BEommT : payments and their net book values are analysed
as follows:
—®E-hE TN\
2019 2018
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
n—H—H At 1 January 16,831 18,298
%ﬁ?ﬁ Amortisation - (602)
BEMmEES Currency translation differences - (865)
BN EEFERAREE Reclassified to right-of-use assets
(Fg5E2.1.1) (Note 2.1.1) (16,831) -
R+=ZA=+—H At 31 December - 16,831

AEBRZEMFEARZEE L
Ntiud AR BUREBEIN
Z10250F 2 HIEE -

The Group’s interest in leasehold land and land
use rights at their net book values are on medium
term leases between 10 to 50 years located outside
Hong Kong.
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19 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

—E-NF —)\F
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERNRIRNIEE Investments in associates
—EhHEEFE — Share of net assets 26,062 28,235
EREEFEESHNT Movements in share of net assets is as follows:
—F-hF AN
2019 2018
BT T BT IT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
®n—A—A At 1 January 28,235 30,495
&% 2 Dividend (1,500) -
FE(R B & 1~ Rl E 8 Share of loss of an associate (636) (2,227)
JE(EEEE RAlZ Share of currency translation
E¥HBmE=EE differences of an associate (37) (33)
R+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 26,062 28,235
R-ZZE—NF+-_A=1+—8 x&EE As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interests

RIANELTERBE QAR HAED

in the following principal associate, which is
unlisted:

ARER AR AR L 3t B BERERLLA TEEH FEEE
Proportion of Measurement
Name of company Place of incorporation ownership interest% Principal activity method
—E-NE ZE-N\E
2019 2018
ERERMCEERA EEERRES R RRHE R s
(12 l[ﬁ’%m%) i IR 7
Semk International Enterprises BVI - 10 Provision of licensing  Equity
Limited (“SIEL") services and
consultancy
services
ERERERERA He#ESs R RRE R s
([EREARE J) i IR
Semk International Holdings Cayman Islands 10 - Provision of licensing  Equity

Limited (“SIHL”)

izt - BEERERCXZEHR AEERFE

ZRBEBCERNER T —NF
AT ARRBRERERER B

REBAERZI - RRABERERE
FEEF ARG/ EAERTER
BEERATEN -

services and
consultancy
services

Note: Under the reorganisation of SIEL, shares held by the
Group in SIEL were exchanged for shares of SIHL on
25 February 2019.

The Group has the right to appoint one Director to
the Board of SIHL and therefore regarded as having
significant influence in SIHL.
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19 BEQTNRE (F)

19 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(continued)

AEEREGEEBRERRZWE - FER The Group’s share of revenue and results of its
JEIEEEMBENT : associate and its assets and liabilities, are as
follows:

—E-NEF —E-)N\HF

2019 2018

BET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

BB E Total assets 288,923 313,742
FES=R Total liabilities (28,302) (31,391)
BEFE Net assets 260,621 282,351
& Revenue 87,215 70,182
FEEE Loss for the year (6,356) (22,273)
R ER M ELSR Reconciliation of summarised financial

FrEmPBENERERRNKREZ

FREE < HR -

information

Reconciliation of the financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interests in the

associate.
—E-hE —T-N\F
2019 2018
BETT BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
R+—A=+—HZEEZFE Net assets at 31 December 260,621 282,351
JEHE EFE@10% Share of net assets @ 10% 26,062 28,235
FEREE & R A BIB@10% Share of loss of an associate @ 10% (636) (2,227)

AEBELE THE QR ZBEBL
RZEBHERRZREFE  HAE
BRI ERBRALERZSAQ
B WA ERRZERM R
AERBEBEARBRZERE (KF

Al %

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its
share of result of certain associates as the Group’s
share of losses in these associates exceed its net
investments in these associates. The amounts of
unrecognised share of loss of associates, extracted

EREF) T : from the relevant financial statements of associates,

both for the year and cumulatively, are as follows:

—2-nE ZT-N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

RETRER (B A Accumulated unrecognised share of

NEEE losses of associates (700) (700)
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EELENES 20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
—E-NEF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
G EEFE Share of net assets 1,338,210 1,233,289
BERTAEEDLE Loans to joint ventures 1,166,802 1,177,512
2,505,012 2,410,801

EEEEFEZEHOMMT

Movements in share of net assets is analysed as

follows:
—ZE-NEF —E—)\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
Wn—H—H At 1 January 1,233,289 231,309
JEE & & EFE Share of profits of joint ventures 104,921 1,001,980
®w+=—A=+—8H At 31 December 1,338,210 1,233,289

RZZ-NF+ZA=1T—H XKE
RATHELETEERECXAARER

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had interests
in the following principal joint ventures, which are
unlisted:

DRER 2t 1 B 32 e B ERERELD FEXEH BEMNE STREE
Proportion of Nature of the ~ Measurement
Name of company Place of incorporation ownership interest% Principal activities relationship ~ method
“E-hE ZENF
2019 2018
Talent Chain Investments KERRRES RERR 5 E&
Limited (Note) BVI 35.7 35.7  Investment holding Note Equity
BRRERRAF (ME) FE UEST] ik B
Crown Opal Investment Hong Kong 35.7 35.7  Property holding Note Equity
Limited (Note)
REBRRRES MERE ki R
Open Vantage Limited BVI 35.7 35.7  Property investment N/A Equity
MizE : Talent Chain Investments LimitedZ Note: Crown Opal Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Talent

MEBAREREEGRABDNEMES

BEB -MEEBEFEUNRBEENE

¥RBF HEFXTEE0EBNRAEEE -

RZBE-NAFF+ZA=+—0 HRE

D E90% (ZF— )\ F : 85%) B
DB RIEEME -

Talent Chain Investments Limited -
i B 1% & B R A A XOpen Vantage
Limited &FL A A&+ E %) I £ 7] BY
/E—LiE ?F:&{/g\ °

Chain Investments Limited, is engaged in the business
of property holding. The property project represents the
holding of a commercial building in Kwun Tong, which
mainly comprises 20-storey of office floors. As at 31
December 2019, 90% (2018: 85%) of the office portion
were leased and classified as investment properties.

Talent Chain Investments Limited, Crown Opal
Investment Limited and Open Vantage Limited are
private companies and there is no quoted market
price available for their shares.
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20 EEDENELRS (F) 20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)

UTIEHEEAREBRMEBEAZEKXR Set out below is the summarised financial

BEDPEZVBERME - information for material joint ventures that are

material to the Group.

Talent Chain AR

Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
“§-AF “F\F ZE-AF CT\E CE-AF S
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

E®fr BRI BRTx  ERTR  BRTx BETx
HK$’000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000

LE ASSETS

EE) Non-current

BEDE  Investmentproperes 7726684 7262484 19000 18900 7745684 7281384

HRDAERSE Totalnon-currentassets 7,726,684 7262484 19,000 18,900 7,745,684 7,281,384

e Current

RORERE  Toalourentassets 618679 778888 0 o 49 618728 778987

B LIABILITIES

k)] Current

ERESEHRR Trade payable and other

AREERE current liabilities (excluding
(FBESHMEE)  financial liabilities) (226,002) (204,951) (433) (138) (226,435) (205,089)

nBaERR Total current liabilities (226,002) (204,951) (433) (138) (226,435) (205,089)

e Non-current

tHER Financial liabilities (3,676,228)  (3,725,844) (4,015) (4172)  (3,680,243)  (3,730,016)

HEFRaaE Other non-current liabilities (709,248)  (670,625) - - (709,248)  (670,625)

FRDARRE Total non-current liabilities (4,385,476)  (4396469) (4015 (4.172) __ (4,389,491) _ (4400,641)

EEFE Net assets 3,733,885 3,439,952 14,601 14639 3,748,486 3454591

Mzt : REWMEZAAEBEDHBLGER Note: Fair values of investment properties have been valued
BERELBERKBRABE R EGE - B by independent valuer with the direct comparison
KREMERRAARBESERINBEIR - approach and income capitalisation approach. The

investment properties are classified as Level 3 in fair

value hierarchy.
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20 EEENER (F) 20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES
(continued)
Talent Chain kel
Investments Limited Open Vantage Limited Total
“E-nfF ZE-\E  ZE-AF ZE-N\f ZE-nf BN\
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

BETR BB BRTR BBTL BETR BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Y& Revenue 179,162 110,077 - - 179,162 110,077
BER% Operating expenses (60,129) (50,824) (127) (120) (60,256) (50,944)
G Administrative expenses (1,096) (89) (11) (1) (1,107) (104)
RENELR Change in fair value of

EEED investment properties 234,079 3,301,977 100 250 234179 3,302,227
BREERERL Profit/(loss) from continuing

e/ (B8 operation 352,016 3,361,141 (38) 115 351,978 3,361,256
FrEMAX Income tax expense (58,083)  (554,589) - - (58,083)  (554,589)
BETBHEHELE  Profit/(loss) after income tax

£%F%,/(&%7)  from continuing operation 293,933 2,806,552 (38) 115 293,895 2,806,667
2 ERA Other comprehensive income - - - - = -
2EMAEE Total comprehensive income 293,933 2,806,552 (38) 115 293,895 2,806,667
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20 SELENER (H)

MBENBEH R

PTEmPBENEAE LR
18 < ¥k

Z IR

Bk

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

Reconciliation of summarised financial
information

Reconciliation of the financial information presented
to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint
ventures.

—E-NEF —E-N\F

2019 2018

BT T R T

HK$’000 HK$'000

R—HA—BZzEEFE Net assets at 1 January 3,454,591 647,924

FEFH Profit for the year 293,895 2,806,667

R+-_A=+—HZ2 Net assets at 31 December

BEEFE 3,748,486 3,454,591
BEDEIERER Interests in joint ventures and share of

15 EE@35.7% net assets @ 35.7% 1,388,210 1,233,289

FEAL & & EF)E@35.7%  Share of profit of joint ventures @ 35.7% 104,921 1,001,980

ERTRECERERT RS RHBA
RART—EAEE - HEARENK
s RAELBERASENRNG2RE
BREFE 2 —#0  EFRR MAE
CEREHZEFNEEEREAAE
BRE ZESRUBEE

RZZE—-—NF+ZA=+—0 ' £&H
WEARERIAR & RNAER AR
BfE-

The loans to joint ventures are unsecured,
interest-free and will not be repaid in the coming
twelve months. They represent the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures.
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of the loans to the joint ventures approximate their
fair values. The amounts are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has no capital
commitments nor contingent liabilities related to the
development project.
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21 EAE
R-ZZE-—AF+-A=+—8  £BH

21 SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

BARZHBWOT December 2019 are as follows:
NEER AMRIEE  CRORAERE FREEERAEZREIL 0 IEXE
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity interest
Name of company incorporation  paid share capital  attributable to the Group Principal activities
“E2-nfF ZE-N\E
2019 2018
ABERRES 3BTET REHR
Bollardbay Limited BVI US$357 100% 100% Investment holding
AZERRA BB AT REHR
Bondwide Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
ABERRES A0 REHR
Catel (B.V.1.) Limited BVI HK$110 100% 100% Investment holding
HEERRA BB BEIT NERR
Easywise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Property holding
BUEMK(5E)BERAR BB 7%1,000,0007C RE EERNHER
SREVHRE
Emerging Technology (Holdings) Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 95% 95% Development, marketing and
Limited distribution of wireless
multimedia mobile devices
KBEXERLA BB AT REBRRIEREEHR
BRAFNAE
Siu Wai Industrial Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding and acting
as an agent for its immediate
holding company
ABERRES E REZR
Ubiquitous International Limited BVI US§$1 100% 100% Investment holding
BB AT REZR
Wapdon Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
il fiti HEETER
Welco Technology Vietnam Company Vietnam Note 100% - Electronic products manufacturing
Limited®
ESBR (BN ERARY hE 24,000,000% 7T HEETER
Welco Technology (Suzhou) Limited? PRC US$24,000,000 100% 100% Electronic products manufacturing
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21 B A A (&) 21 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
NAER dRRUEE  EEOREERE FEEECRIEZEIL 0 TEXRE
Place of Issued and fully Percentage of equity interest
Name of company incorporation  paid share capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
o A
2019 2018
ERTRMR(RINERAA e 30,000,000% ¢ HEETER
Welco Wong's Technology (Shenzhen) PRC US$30,000,000 100% 100% Electronic products manufacturing
Limited?
EaMR (R ERAT el 7,500,000% 7 HESFEM
Wellop Technology (Shenzhen) Limited* PRC US$7,500,000 100% 100% Electronic products manufacturing
102,799,653
Mg il REER
Wong's Circuits (Holdings) Pte Ltd Singapore 5$102,799,653 100% 100% Investment holding
IREFARAA BA 78%1,000,0007 EFERES
Wong’s Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100% Electronic products trading
IRIX(5E)ARATA B 5007 REER
Wong’s Industrial (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong HK$500 100% 100% Investment holding
B 20,000,000R & HERMARE
Wong's International Japan Inc. Japan JPY20,000,000 100% 100% Sales and marketing
*E 10,000% T mEERE
Wong’s International USA Corporation  United States US$10,000 100% 100% Marketing
of America
IREBERLA BA BE100TT EFERES
Wong’s Strategic Limited Hong Kong HK$100 100% - Electronic products trading
MizE : B #ITAR A A2,500,000% ¢ B 7% Note: The issued capital was US$2,500,000 and fully paid up in
ZECRE-AHRE - January 2020.
# L RABIRINGEERE - # The company is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise.
FRINHEAREBEBEEETEATE K The above lists the principal subsidiaries which
EREBFERFHEEFEZTEN principally affected the results or formed a
BRa - ARBEENAEEEREER substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
B HYEMHEB AR Z 25158 To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
ST e opinion of the Company’s Directors and the Group’s
management, result in particulars of excessive
length.
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BB L= (&)

BB R A F s 2 M8 A A
ZHBERBRE  HAEER/ZREW

RITTEE -

BE_T-NF+-A=1T—HBL*F
JE AR B - BT & m A AR ] 2 3%

gt

TERER -

BRAAREBEFAHMCZERAN

() BAAEESALMGZERA

(i)

MEMEEZDE

BAnBEFAEMEERAD
EREEBRANFFEEETNR
RESH BAKRBERVITZHER
PRy A AT J80 (20 3 538 428 S5 L 70 bk 2B
NHER - ZEEFRREBERE
AXRKERRUDBE AR -

BAREBEESARMBEERA
HRERE

BAnBEFAEMEERAD
REREBEATERKRE :

21 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

22

No summarised financial information for subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests is disclosed as the
Directors consider they are not material.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital
in issue at any time during the year ended 31
December 2019.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

0]

(ii)

Classification of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise equity
securities which are not held for trading, and
which the Group has irrevocably elected at
initial recognition to recognise in this category.
These are strategic investments and the
Group considers this classification to be more
relevant.

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income comprise the following
individual investments:

—E-NEF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000

ETRAERS Listed equity securities
—REB LT - Listed in Hong Kong 126 166
—RE BRI LT - Listed outside Hong Kong 30 33
JEEMRAFE 5 Unlisted equity securities 4,319 4,162
4,475 4,361
+HESETE Market value of listed securities 156 199
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22 BRARBEFAEMGEEBAN 22
TREE (#)

(i) BAREBEEFTAHEMEZERA

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(ii) Equity investments at fair value

WRERE (&) through other comprehensive income
(continued)

—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FEMR B Non-current 4,349 4195

& Current 126 166

@zt Total 4,475 4,361

HE-_FT-—NF+=ZA=+—H
IFEERREAABET AEAMm
ZEHRANEREEZ AR BEE
&) 5B 113,000 (ZE—NF -
A #1,172,0007T) °

23 EEFREREE(BE) 23

A TNRELEREREERELMEFR
BEDH

The changes in fair value of financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
of HK$113,000 (2018: HK$1,172,000) was
recognised for the year ended 31 December
2019.

DEFERRED
(LIABILITIES)

INCOME TAX ASSETS/

The analysis of deferred income tax assets and
deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

—E-hE —Z-N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

EEFMSMEE Deferred income tax assets 27,642 21,179
BEFEHREE Deferred income tax liabilities (72,293) (98,671)
EEHEEEFE Net deferred tax liabilities (44,651) (77,492)

BIEFTSTHARBEBABEMT

The movements on the deferred income tax account
is as follows:

—E-AF —T-N\F

2019 2018

BET T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

w—H—H At 1 January (77,492) (79,475)
Rir & RS R ER Recognised in the consolidated income

(Ff=E12) statement (Note 12) 32,971 3,397

P E A 2 T A 7R Recognised in other comprehensive income 389 (383)

BE¥HREERS Currency translation differences (519) (1,031)

BR+=—A=+-—H At 31 December (44,651) (77,492)
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BEFTSHEE (&) () 23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/
(LIABILITIES) (continued)
RET AR IERE — TS 2 48R AT The gross movements in deferred income tax
BREMSMEENRBBERFRZES assets and liabilities during the year, without taking
HEMT into consideration the offsetting of balances within
the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:
BREMEHEE : Deferred income tax assets:
fiEIR
MMBEE-
HRHENE B BRRE REES ikt k]
Fair value
Decelerated of derivative -
tax Government interest rate
depreciation Provision grant Tax loss swap Total
BETT AEFT AETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZB-tE+2A At 31 December 2017
=t-A 5,852 9229 - - 677 15,758
REAMERHA/ Credited(charged) to the consolidated
(1) income statement (1,007) 4,145 3,697 - - 6,835
REBZERAGA Charged to the other comprehensive
income - - - - (383) (383)
EMAEES Currency translation differences (298) (593) (140) - - (1,031)
RZZ-NF At 31 December 2018
tZA=1+-H 4,547 12,781 3,557 - 294 21,179
RESRBERTA Credited to the consolidated
income statement 4,854 3,483 1,658 564 - 10,559
REMZERAGA Credited to the other comprehensive
income - - - - 389 389
EBREER Currency translation
differences (182) (298) (97) - - (577)
RZB-NETZA=1-H At 31 December 2019 9,219 15,966 5,118 564 683 31,550
BEEMGEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities:
WEXR
MEHBRE BERAR ok
Fair value
Accelerated tax adjustment
depreciation on properties Total
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
}}A_-;—J#Jr A=Z+—H At 31 December 2017 (3,749) (91,484) (95,233)
TAMER MR Charged to the consolidated
income statement (1,722) (1,716) (3,438)
R=E-N\F¥+=A=t+-H At 31 December 2018 (5,471) (93,200) (98,671)
REERER (MKR) /5 A (Charged)/credited to the
consolidated income statement (5,042) 27,454 22,412
EXREER Currency translation differences 58 - 58
R=ZE-h%+=-HA=+-H At 31 December 2019 (10,455) (65,746) (76,201)
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23 ELEFIEHEE (BE) (&)

BEFMSHEEDNERERBEHRBEAN R
A 8835 1B R R FER R B Z IR M gt Fr 48
B RIEERETER - R-T—NF
+ZA=+—8 AKEJHUEHE
RRFBE B RBAHRIEBEEN A
5%#169,668,0007T (ZF— /)\F : B
166,181,0007T) ° B A5 8 % &5 45 5
ZHIEEBEEZ ARERTNBEEZERE
BAREMNENEE TS - BRRBIEE
BERRAELEREELE - FIBERIEBEY
A FE PR BR 45 8E o

Rt TP B MK BB AR/
ROERBFAEOTFENHERIELTR
HAE  WIHBARDRZERDKRE
BFNN#eTs R_E—hF+=A
=+—8  ANEERF R FMA AR
B AE LA #%E%1,155,151,000
7T (ZF— /\F : & %1,010,467,000
TL) Z AR IRAR B FE o Bt B s
YZHBRRFSIRKRE ZERAEM
RENTE5%E10% °

23 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/

(LIABILITIES) (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for
tax loss carry-forwards to the extent that the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2019, the Group has estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$169,668,000 (2018:
HK$166,181,000) available for offsetting against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses as the
realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profit from these tax loss carry-forwards
is not probable. All the tax losses may be carried
forward indefinitely.

No deferred tax liability has been recognised in
respect of the withholding tax on the undistributed
retained profits of certain PRC incorporated
subsidiaries as the distribution of these
undistributed retained earnings is not probable.
As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s PRC
incorporated subsidiaries have approximately
HK$1,155,151,000 (2018: HK$1,010,467,000)
undistributed retained profits in aggregate. The
applicable withholding tax rate on dividend
distributed by PRC incorporated subsidiaries is
ranged from 5% to 10%.
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24 FE& 24 INVENTORIES
—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
R Raw materials 120,596 301,458
RS Work in progress 51,832 43,051
2UAK Gh Finished goods 146,806 156,417
319,234 500,926

25

HE-_Z—hhF+=-_A=+—81
FE 78 2B 27,850,0007T
(ZZ— )\ : B5#8,393,000) R A
AR EGEERERTATAERZIR
B MCHFER ] -

During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision
for inventories amounted to HK$27,850,000 (2018:
HK$8,393,000) was recognised as an expense and
included in ‘raw materials and consumables used’ in
the consolidated income statement.

EERWERE 25 STOCK OF COMPLETED PROPERTIES
—®-hE  —TN\F
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
®n—H—H At 1 January 368,365 369,715
REERBRERE Transfer to investment properties upon
wEWME (M3E16) commencement of lease (Note 16) - (1,350)
EERMERE Sales of stock of completed properties (132,015) -
W+—-—RA=+—H At 31 December 236,350 368,365
ETERIETERSRE Stock of completed properties comprised:
—E-NF —T-N\F
2019 2018
BT BEF T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
EERNEEN Commercial office units 216,000 348,015
B Car parking space 20,350 20,350
236,350 368,365

EXMEFTERTIHMURES -1
—F-NFF+-_A=+—H FHEHE
75 #6236,350,0007T (=& — \F : B
368,365,0007T) Z BT EF EE K
BEAREEER ZEH R (W:E34) -

The stock of completed properties are all located
in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2019, stock
of completed properties with carrying value of
HK$236,350,000 (2018: HK$368,365,000) were
pledged as collateral for the Group’s borrowings
(Note 34).
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26 BWE SR

26 TRADE RECEIVABLES

—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

BETT BEF T

HK$’ 000 HK$’000

FEWE 5 8RR Trade receivables 878,695 943,880
W ERE SRR R ERE Less: allowance for impairment of

trade receivables (2,564) (1,866)

876,131 942,014

AEREETESEFZREHERN
FI0HE1208 1% - B HUEE
FIE o

AEBRAEREEERR - —z‘}xﬁff
R—E2=EAR  BUEFHERSEER
B o NEEBOEER BIBE %UEI%ET{M(
Z FEMOR LMMKTZ?TFL o REE
I 48 i 8 B 5 B SRS aR A B (E () 3R
T%ui%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%hﬂhm BARE
BABTEHmA BRGS  BKB 5K
A TETR e

The credit period allowed by the Group to its trade
customers mainly ranges from 30 days to 120 days
and no interest is charged.

A defined credit policy is maintained within the
Group. The general credit terms range from one to
three months. Each customer has a maximum credit
limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables to minimise its credit
risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

AEBRRKESEREFIZEZHH R Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables by
o invoice date is as follows:

—E-nE —B-N\E
2019 2018
BT T BT I
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
0F60H 0 - 60 days 550,971 614,518
61%90H 61 — 90 days 154,132 186,539
Himo0H Over 90 days 173,592 142,823
878,695 943,880
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26 BWE 5 KRR (E)

REBRKESER T AERERD
mF

26 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements on the Group’s allowance for
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

BT T AT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

n—H—H At 1 January 1,866 -
ERRAEEBE Impairment losses recognised 698 1,866
R+-_A=1+—H At 31 December 2,564 1,866

AEEEBEEMBHREEREISRA
ERMEEEE 2 BEE AR
W S MRFERFRBRERRE - W
A3 A(b)REBETEZ BB ZFE -

FBURESERZEMEERAEE
& -

N B B2 BR (A T3
S EHE

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for
details about the calculation of the allowance.

The carrying amount of trade receivables
approximate their fair values.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
receivables are denominated in the following

currencies:
—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F
2019 2018
BET T BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
ETT United States dollar 499,638 552,405
AR Chinese renminbi 306,516 311,940
ikt Hong Kong dollar 72,541 79,535
878,695 943,880
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27 ENRE T RAEMBERER

27 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

e =
2019 2018
BT T R T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BFEEEIZS Deposits for fixed assets 15,225 7,536
ENFE Prepayments for inventories 5,487 8,231
JEUE B Value added tax receivables 4,207 11,846
B ERES Effective rent receivable 2,539 4,825
EHBENAHREERS Management and utility deposit 5,539 6,071
L EMEZNBITS Initial deposits for disposal of properties - 11,904
HihE W RN R TET NI Other receivables and prepayments 62,398 58,145
95,395 108,558
o IERE B Less: non-current portion (20,537) (13,607)
mENE D Current portion 74,858 94,951
FENFIE e MEMERERK 2 RE The carrying amounts of prepayments, deposits

BT EEHE

and other receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

—ZE-NF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

AR Chinese renminbi 37,398 47 587
ETT United States dollar 4,339 1,670
it Hong Kong dollar 48,858 58,056
H Japanese yen 4,737 1,178
A Others 63 67
95,395 108,558
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NAIRIE

28 AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES

—E-NF —E-N\F

2019 2018

BT T BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

JE W Bt = X B FRIB Amounts due from associates 14 11

EWEE A RIEAEER £ RE
E;EWH ﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁf%@/&ﬁﬁﬁ
*a RZE—NF+ZA=+—8"
%M&Hﬁ%%’& I #) 7% #1,349,0007T
— \4F : ##1,349,0007T) B 1
/)?ME c WARBHSREZHEZEES
%Hﬂ%i@ﬁﬂ%ﬁ%#ﬁiﬁLiﬁttz
2B EEIEHE o FEYEE A RIFRIE
EEETE o

The amounts due from associates are unsecured,
interest-free and without pre-determined repayment
terms. The carrying amounts approximate their fair
values. As at 31 December 2019, amounts due from
associates of approximately HK$1,349,000 (2018:
HK$1,349,000) were impaired. The credit quality of
the balances that are neither past due nor impaired
were assessed by management with reference to
historical information about counter-party default
rates. The amounts due from associates were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

HeRELEEY -~ SHIRTHE 29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
FAEZREEE SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH
—E-NEF —N\F
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FERS Cash on hand 332 402
H|ITFR Cash at bank 542,982 447,335
fﬁ/ﬂé&fﬁ ZEY Cash and cash equivalents 543,314 447,737
RE|HI R EEL 8Bz  Short-term bank deposits with
Liﬁfﬁfﬂ? original maturity over three months 641,886 500,395
PR #I3E & Restricted cash 25,949 14,652
RekBFeZEBYR Cash and cash equivalents and
5 ERERITA AN short-term bank deposits 1,211,149 962,784
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20 HEeERBREEEY SHIR1TFE 29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
MEZRHFREE (&) SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS AND
RESTRICTED CASH (continued)

RBekReFEY BHRTERER
RHREATINEETE

Cash and cash equivalents, short-term bank
deposits and restricted cash were denominated in
the following currencies:

—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

ikt Hong Kong dollar 97,042 73,373
AR Chinese renminbi 254,051 201,932
ETT United States dollar 853,450 679,518
HA Others 6,606 7,961
1,211,149 962,784

BITTFERZNMEFTHERFENR A
3.60% (—Z— )\F : 2.89%) °

RIOTFFRRENEGERITFRNEZ
FE A R BREFS o

& &5 H 17 308 #966,646,0007T
(ZZ— )\F : #B¥744,448,0007T) T}
RABEEE  BETEHINEEIER
TE o ZEEHINEBTITHRTEHTEHER
REOESHRS  TREEFB—K
BB o

R—ZE—-—hAhE+=A=+—8"
5 #05,949,0007T (ZFE— N\F : B
14,652,0007T) (& % #11,580,000
T(ZE—N\F B\ DEARDHEE)
ARRITEEEABE RS MNEBRE
CREBENZREFTRIEAAREE -

The weighted average effective interest rate on
bank deposits was 3.60% (2018: 2.89%) per
annum.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates.

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$966,646,000
(2018: HK$744,448,000) are held in China and
are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide
for restrictions on exporting capital from the
country, other than through normal dividends.

As at 31 December 2019, HK$25,949,000 (2018:
HK$14,652,000), of which HK$11,580,000 (2018:
Nil) is classified under current assets, were
restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for
electricity deposits and custom deposits and are
denominated in Chinese renminbi.
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30 PEARBFHEZHRBEE

31

30 NON-CURRENT ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS

HELD FOR SALE

—®-hE 2N
2019 2018
BETT BET T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
STHRABEHECEE Assets classified as held for sale
—REME - Investment properties - 88,383

RW_E—NE+_A=-+WAHE K&EE
H—RE=FERUEREE HE -
Bt B X R &5 Bl LA 88,383,000
TT N B 149,699,000 LB E X TIRE
MERETKNERE - KESRAEF
BT °

TTEEMIA

TETRERELES HBEMIER
e AW WITET AR LR
- Rlgst THIARBOMOBRH
REE |  AEEEAMIESR T A :

31

On 24 December 2018, the Group entered into
a provisional sale and purchase agreement
with a third party purchaser whereby, the
purchaser agreed to purchase certain investment
properties and stock of completed properties
at the consideration of HK$88,383,000 and
HK$149,699,000 respectively. The transaction was
completed during the year.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivatives are only used for economic hedging
purposes and not as speculative investments.
However, where derivatives do not meet the
hedging criteria, they are classified as ‘held for
trading’ for accounting purposes below. The Group
has the following derivative financial instruments:

—2-nE —z- N\
2019 2018
BE afE BE Bf&E
Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities
BETT B¥Ta BETT BE¥TT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
) = 5 HA Interest rate swaps
—FEEE - held-for-trading 1 - . 19
) = 45 HA Interest rate swaps
—RenEEH - cash flow hedge 75 4,217 - 1,782
76 4,217 - 1,801
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PTEERTIA (&) 31 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)
REFMEBBHEONR=_ZE—NLF+=A The notional principal amount of the outstanding
St+t—BHBzEELr2BERBE interest rate swap contract at 31 December 2019
1,003,450,000T (Z & — )\ F : B was HK$1,003,450,000 (2018: HK$510,350,000).
510,350,0007T) °
METAESEREAALBAETAER Derivatives are classified as financial assets and
NERMEENBBEL UNIE AR EBES liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and
ABHZITAAR  BRIEEEREIFT accounted for at fair value through profit or loss
HBVERER o WoT4E T ATEHNIwEH unless they are designated as hedges. They are
NeTZEARNEE G227 A8R8 presented as current assets or liabilities if they are
BESBE- expected to be settled within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period.
rEBBBRRESREE P2 GFTERS The Group’s accounting policy for its cash flow
REtFE2.11 - BRAEEITETIARRE hedges is set out in Note 2.11. For information
BRAZAERBERFLHEMEIS about the methods and assumptions used in
determining the fair value of derivatives please refer
to Note 3.3.
R E SRR 32 TRADE PAYABLES

AEEERNEIEFREZEH IR
BAMWT :

Ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables by
invoice date is as follows:

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

2019 2018

BT T BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

0%260H 0 - 60 days 520,152 612,395
61290H 61 - 90 days 100,299 98,102
HBiBo0H Over 90 days 53,198 51,378
673,649 761,875
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32 ERNEF RN (&) 32 TRADE PAYABLES (continued)
AEERENESERZEEBENK TS The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
BEEE - payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

—®-hE —T-)\F

2019 2018

BT T BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

ok Hong Kong dollar 165,675 204,227
AR Chinese renminbi 210,545 94,705
ETT United States dollar 267,181 435,165
H Japanese yen 8,350 11,980
B T Euro 21,654 15,665
Hth Others 244 133
673,649 761,875

33 Bt EARAEMEMER 33 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

—E-hE —ET-N\E

2019 2018

BT T BT

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

FEETE B R A AL A Accrued employee benefit costs 97,831 106,999
Hh ET BB Other tax payables 2,814 7,843

JEFTAIE - S REEFEER Accrued freight, delivery and

storage charges 13,510 13,980

JEStAHEEER Accrued utilities charges 1,350 1,774
JEET RIS RS Accrued construction payables 19,158 19,158
Hity Others 69,019 89,025
203,682 238,779

B IEREE D Less: non-current portion (15,844) (11,381)
MBS Current portion 187,838 227,398
AEBEAEARAMEMNERZE The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and
EENA TS E®,E : other payables are denominated in the following

currencies:

—2-hE —T-)N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

AR Chinese renminbi 117,743 105,251
ok Hong Kong dollar 78,601 111,843
ETT United States dollar 5,524 21,313
MEE Vietnam dong 1,264 -
H Japanese yen 246 85
Hith Others 304 287
203,682 238,779
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34 EX 34 BORROWINGS
—ZE-NEF —E—)\F
2019 2018
BT T AT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
SREMURIRTTE S - MK Trust receipt bank loans, unsecured 237,773 307,417
RHIRITE R - A Short-term bank loans, unsecured 320,000 328,000
o RAIBITER - Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FREER  FERF repayment within one year, secured 151,848 92,984
o RAIBITER - Portion of long-term bank loans due for
R—FRER FHEF repayment after one year, secured 1,226,565 1,422,432
RKERITZENIRIBEF - Portion of a mortgage loan from bank
R—FREE \ due for repayment within one year - 6,900
RERITZENIRIBEF - Portion of a mortgage loan from bank
R—FREERES due for repayment after one year which
AEKIFEIE B contains a repayment on demand clause — 3,450
BWE Total borrowings 1,936,186 2,161,183
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FEMRED Non-current 1,226,565 1,422,432
& Current 709,621 738,751
BEX Total borrowings 1,936,186 2,161,183
RZE—NFE+-_A=+—8  x&EE At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings
ERZEEBRAT were repayable as follows:
—E-hE =)\
2019 2018
BT T R
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
1F R Within 1 year 709,621 738,751
1224 Between 1 and 2 years 700,247 512,984
2ZE54F Between 2 and 5 years 526,318 909,448
BER Total borrowings 1,936,186 2,161,183
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34 B (#)

RZEBE—-NFE+_A=1+—08 - LBk
10,350,000t 2 BB EF A A E A
75 #83,903,0007T 2 AN & B £ i & 1
FEB(ZZE—NF &) (H7E15) °

R-ZE—hE+-_HA=+—08 B
1,378,413,000C (=& — )\ F : B
1,515,416,0007T) 2 R HIR 17 B 5K A
TH & IEABIRE

e RZE—NF+Z—A=+—8"
BR M E #)/& #21,499,0007T 2
ME- -BELEKZHE FEHED
7 60,166,000t Z F A EE
= BREELEE2501,100,000
TTZHREMEREBMBELN B
236,350,000t 2 E T W ¥ 15
B - R-_ZE—NF+A
Z+t—H EBEEEHEE
2,474,100,000 2 & & ¥ % -
R M (B %) 75 #368,365,0007T 2
EXRKYEFTERERENEE
88,383,000tz N AKIELE
ZIEMBEE 2

o AKREBERMEE D ETalent Chain
Investments LimitedZ25.7% (==
— )\ :35.7%) 1n 58 2 B L

o ARRA—ZREEEZENBRAM
IR PR A 760,000,0007T 2
IR o

RZTE-—NF+=ZA=+—8 &%
BrzERBARARME 2 BERERE
RA&

B Lt BI85 - REEC R EE TR L
RITHEIN 2 & T B SR B2 4 -

34 BORROWINGS (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, mortgage loan of
approximately HK$10,350,000 was secured by the
land and buildings of the Group with a carrying
amount of HK$83,903,000 (2019: Nil) (Note 15).

As at 31 December 2019, the long-term bank loans
of HK$1,378,413,000 (2018: HK$1,515,416,000)
was secured by the following:

e As at 31 December 2019, charges over
property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately HK$21,499, 000,
right-of-use assets with carrying amount of
approximately HK$60,166,000, investment
properties with carrying amount of
approximately HK$2,501,100,000 and
stock of completed properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$236,350,000.
As at 31 December 2018, charges over
investment properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$2,474,100,000, stock of
completed properties with carrying amount
of approximately HK$368,365,000 and
non-current assets classified as held for
sale with carrying amount of approximately
HK$88,383,000;

e A share charge over the Group’s 25.7% (2018:
35.7%) share of Talent Chain Investments
Limited, a joint venture of the Group;

e A guarantee limited to HK$760,000,000 from
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings
were secured by the corporate guarantee given by
the Company.

In addition to the above, the Group has agreed to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants
imposed by certain banks.
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EX (%)

MEBERZHHARE - HHEKRRE
RAEEREE

<

£

=z

>

FRBERZEEEREEQN A EEM

B DABEDNIBREBIEENRFIEI.32%
—E—)N\F 310%)TRZBEL7T

WERARBEZFRE2MR -

AREBERZEHEENKEEEE-

EFRNBEMRZERFERN RO -

34 BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amounts of the current borrowings
approximate their fair values due to their short
maturities.

The carrying amount of the non-current borrowing
approximates its fair value. The fair value is based
on the cash flow discounted using a rate based on
the borrowing rate of 3.32% (2018: 3.10%) and is
within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The effective annual interest rates of borrowings at
the end of the reporting periods are as follows:

—E-NF —E-N\F
2019 2018
RERITER Long-term bank loan 3.80% — 4.36% 3.45% — 3.97%
=L BUR RITE X Trust receipt bank loans 2.54% - 3.39% 1.91% - 3.52%
2 HISRITE R Short-term bank loans 3.68% — 3.75% 2.75% — 3.44%
ZIBE & Mortgage loan TEA N/A 2.90% — 3.43%
@ 35 SHARE CAPITAL
BHE B HE
Number of Nominal
shares value
BT T
HK$'000
FREEAE0.10T 2 @R Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each
ETERA Authorised:
R=Z-NE—A—A8- At 1 January 2018,
—EZ-NF+ZA=+—HEK 31 December 2018 and
—E-hF+=HA=+-—8 31 December 2019 700,000,000 70,000
EBEITREERA : Issued and fully paid:
R=-ZE—-NE—H—A8" At 1 January 2018,
—E-N\F+ZA=t+—-HRK 31 December 2018 and
—E-NEFE+=A=+—8H 31 December 2019 478,483,794 47 848

FA - ARBREEFMERRRER
B HERBELARRFHER LHES °

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.
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36 f#fE (&)

BfzEa

fizEb

AEBEZBHGBHREARER AN
THEEABARENBARRG ZH
BEHEAR AU # TR 2 HIE
MEZER -

RERMERETA - RRARRFERA
Mo PR SZ R 48 8 2 BT BB R R 2R 9 B — &P
HEBENE(RHEBEFEBER)
E-REAREERRES -

s REEN S RETEEFHEM
FERZEE  HEEREARELLT
EVI0RBREETE—REE - BH
SRR MR AR R 1E A8 5 K Al
HREZER EREEBRENSE
BIEMAEAR250% @ B EEBIEHE
i — 2D - —REETARE
HIBEFEBEIARETARED -

REERRESMS  PEZBSL
THEZSFEE bERERESA

RAREBEEER -

HE-_T-—NAF+-_A=+—ALLF
£ #8#13,617,0007C (ZZ — \ 5 ¢
78 #£21,323,0007T) BN e E — MR HE
RE¥ERES -

36 RESERVES (continued)

Note a:

Note b:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of
the acquired subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the time

of the Group’s reorganisation in 1990.

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in
Mainland China are required to appropriate a portion
of their after - tax profit (after offsetting prior years’
losses) to the general reserve and the enterprise

expansion fund.

For the general reserve, the PRC entities are required
to transfer at least 10% of its net profit, as determined
under the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the
statutory general reserve. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of dividends to
equity owners. When the balance of reserve reaches
50% of each entity’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The general reserve can be
utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for the

issuance of bonus shares.

For the enterprise expansion fund, the percentage of
appropriation is determined annually by the directors.
The enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the

development of business operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
HK$13,617,000 (2018: HK$21,323,000) was
appropriated to the general reserve and the enterprise

expansion fund.
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37 HEHRERER 37 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS
(a) BRITBBAIF HEEEEEN (a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax
ReFE2HERENOT : to net cash generated from operations is
as follows:

—E-AFE ZZE-N\F

2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
EEEE Operating activities
B P15 ¢ B AL E Profit before income tax 304,569 1,473,119
BT ZIEFE Adjustments for:
BEKAN —F58 Finance costs — net 44,873 51,452
JE(h & & 1A HE Share of profits of joint ventures (104,921)  (1,001,980)
fE{E—RE2Z N F]EE  Share of loss of an associate 636 2,227
M BEKEEZ  Depreciation of property, plant and
e equipment 69,204 55,328
ME T Kt Amortisation on leasehold land
12 A 2 85 and land use rights - 602
TR T A2 RAFIHIZE Unrealised gains on financial
instrument (20) (101)
HEWE - BB Gains on disposals of property,
Rz W plant and equipment (288) (140)
BoENE S K Write-back of trade and other
H b FE A BR 5K payables - (2,614)
JEWE ZERZ Impairment losses on trade
B & 1 receivables 698 1,866
KEMEAREBE Fair value gain of investment
Wz properties (28,375) (239,003)
é/\“EfJHIJZ Operating cash flows before
Z«( LHEME changes in working capital 286,376 340,756
7{_%? Inventories 175,279 (19,753)
ExXXMERE Stock of completed properties 132,015 -
FEUE 5 BRR Trade receivables 54,236 (70,521)
ERRIE - fTe Prepayments, deposits and
T E A e AR 3R other receivables 12,354 11,384
FERTE SRR Trade payables (82,504) 89,831
FEEHE A & HE A Accruals and other payables
J& 1 BR X (32,620) 7,553
AHBE Contract liabilities 17,472 9,213
EEBELEMNRSE Cash generated from operations 562,608 368,463
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37 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

b) ERSKRBRA HENE-

(c)

STATEMENTS (continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds

HERZEMRBRELRE: from disposals of property, plant and
equipment comprise:
—E-NEF —E-)N\HF
2019 2018
BET T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
R FE Net book amount 1,768 925
HEME - WE R Gains on disposals of property,
BBz W plant and equipment 288 140
LEWME - BE R Proceeds from disposals of property,
HREMEREOR plant and equipment 2,056 1,065
BEEFELHE (c) Net debt reconciliation

RETEH N &

25| HEERFR

DT RERFEES -

This section sets out an analysis of net debt
and the movements in net debt for each of the

period presented.

—E-hEF —N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

ReRBESEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 543,314 447,737
REIRITIER Short-term bank deposits 641,886 500,395
HEBBE-RD uBT Lease liabilities — current portion (19,756) -
TH 1 —JERBEBD  Lease liabilities—non-current portion (30,583) -
TA— AR — Elﬁféf Borrowings — repayable within one year (709,621) (738,751)
EX—HAR—F1%EE Borrowings - repayable after one year (1,226,565) (1,422,432)
1;-\5‘%@55 Net debt (801,325) (1,213,051)
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37 ZKERERER(E) 37 CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENTS (continued)

(c) ERFHEHKR(E)

(c) Net debt reconciliation (continued)

BfhEE HEED AR
Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
LE CE
ReR it -BR -]
RESEY BER BERE  -FARE  -FARE 4
Cash and Borrowings - Borrowings -
cash Short-term Lease repayable repayable
equivalents  bank deposits liabilities  within one year after one year Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
RZB-tE1ZA=t-B  Netdebtasat
LEHEE 31 December 2017 470457 373,630 - (661658)  (1346446)  (1164017)
Reiig Cash flows 1326 130,532 - 25,862 (178,941) (21,221)
HERS Foreign exchange adjusiments (24,046) (3,767) - - - (27813)
Efr#Be8y Other non-cash movements - - - (102,955) 102,95 -
RZB-NETZA=+-B  Netdebtasat
LEREE 31 December 2018 447,737 500,395 - (138,751 (142432  (1,213,051)
Reiig Cash flows 112,300 146,180 14,222 233,497 (8,500) 497,699
HERE Foreign exchange adjustments (16,723) (4,689) 638 - - (20,774)
RRaERNBREEY Recognised on adoption of
Z163 M (it2.1.1) HKFRS 16 (Note 2.1.1) - - (23,641) - - (23,641)
WERE Acquisition of leases - - (41,558) - - (41,558)
LS E) Other non-cash movements - - - (204,367) 204,367 -
RZE-AETZA=+-B  Netdebtasat
LEREE 31 December 2019 543,314 641,886 (50,339) (100,621)  (1,226,565) (801,325)
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NTIEEz2HBEMRAKREFEHE 38 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
@E’J FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT
—E-hEF —ZE-)N\F
2019 2018
BT T BT
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
kRBEE Non-current asset
WEARMEA  Investmentsinsubsidiaries 563,366 563,366
REBEE Current assets
TEfH A - ET%& Prepayments, deposits and
E{EFH&@E other receivables 307 269
FEUB B~ B3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 392,631 391,781
fﬁi&fﬁu%—rf"i% Cash and cash equivalents 1,726 1,535
TP 394,664 393,585
BEE Total assets 958,030 956,951
X EQUITY
EEREAARERA Equity attributable to
s owners of the Company
7R Share capital 47,848 47,848
H S Other reserves M 3E Note (a) 675,934 675,934
REBAF Retained earnings Bf5E Note (a) 64,841 65,174
i Totalequity 788,623 788,956
=K LIABILITIES
REBEE Current liabilities
JEETE A R H A EMBRF Accruals and other payables 3,333 2,944
RN NGIE S Amounts due to subsidiaries 166,074 165,051
we®| 0 Total liabilites 169,407 167,995
HEZREE Total equity and liabilities 958,030 956,951
REBEEFEE Net current assets 225,257 225,590
HEERRBARG Total assets less current
liabilities 788,623 788,956
MBHEREN _E_TF=A=-_+THA The financial statements were approved and
BEEEREENE  IHTIE authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
ERKREE 25 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:
T AR TEH WONG CHUNG MAT, BEN WONG YIN MAN, ADA
TEFRTHAES 2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Director
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38 RAIEEMBMRRRRHE 38

MisE: ARXFREEED

COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT (continued)

Note: Reserves movement of the Company

BEAEE
RADRE Ci BRER REEF weE
Capital
Share redemption Contributed Retained
premium reserve surplus earnings Total

BETIT BT T BET T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=—Z-N\E—H—A At 1 January 2018 153,025 345 522,564 62,872 738,806
FEFE Profit for the year - - - 38,188 38,188
—E-N\FENRKRE Dividends paid relating to 2018 - - (35,886) (35,886)
R=-Z—N\F+=-HA=+—H At 31 December 2018 153,025 345 522,564 65,174 741,108
FERE Profit for the year - - - 42,731 42,731

—E-NFENKRE Dividends paid relating to 2019 - - - (43,064) (43,064)
R-ZZF—-NE+=-A=+—H8 At31December 2019 153,025 345 522,564 64,841 740,775

KRR 2 BHBMEAEEAR-NNTEF
EARARRMEBHEAREREE
FE 2z BRI (B B R A R gt Uk B 1 3597 AR
MZEEMEZEZRE - RIBAFDERA
RBEVZ AR - KRB ZBEHMBEARA
DI TR -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the difference between the book values of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries acquired by
the Company, and the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the
Group’s reorganisation in 1990. Under the Companies
Act and the Bye-laws of the Company, contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to
the shareholders.
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39 EiE

(a)

ME - BMENMKREZERNKE
LU

39 COMMITMENTS

(a)

Capital commitments in respect of property,
plant and equipment are as follows:

—ZE-NEF —E-)N\F

2019 2018

BT T BT T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

BEIAB R B Contracted but not provided for 14,095 1,569
BERERRITY Authorised but not contracted for = -
14,095 1,569

RZE—-—NF+=-_A=+—8"
AEEREZMHTARMEZHEE
BFREfEeEARTZHERK
MEFERBWOT :

BE-T-NAF-A—HBE X%
EERUSHEERRAERAEE
E-EEHREEEEER
E-—FEAMFL2EME2AAR
BEE17 -

(b)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s future
aggregate minimum lease payments under
various non-cancellable operating lease
agreements in respect of rented premises are
analysed as follows:

From 1 January 2019, the Group has
recognised right-of-use assets for these
leases, except for short-term and low-value
leases, see Note 2.1.1 and Note 17 for further
information.

—E—hEF —ZT-)N\F

2019 2018

BT T BET T

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year = 12,272
F_EZFERF (BIEEREME) In the second to fifth year inclusive = 13,002
- 25,274
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39 A&iE (&)

(c) RZTE—NF+=-_A=+—8"
AEBREBEZOAAIBMEEE
%%W%T ERRERZEEIR

39

COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s future
rental income receivables under various
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

DITWRT rented premises are analysed as follows:
—E-NEF —E-)N\HF
2019 2018
BT T BT T
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
—F RN Within one year 56,136 61,711
F_EERF(REEEMT) In the second to fifth year inclusive 23,434 83,849
79,570 145,560

KERERFIEASEREEE
REWEERzAS HHOKA
SRIFYFEHIFEEMNET
ZE—N\F:23F) -

40 BEANEIXRS

RZZE—NF+ZA=+—8 &R
A2 ERABRRE AT ERKEE (EAARE
i® Salop Investment Limited * & J5
BHEEEARENZAF) -

(a) HEEAL Z&ERR

r‘MﬁzHﬁ%%/AT&/\**ﬁiwﬁx
REEGTBRARK - BBEIERD
A1 & A B 7E28 K220 ©

40

Operating lease receipts represent rentals
receivable by the Group for leasing its
investment properties. Leases and rentals are
negotiated and fixed for an average of 2.3
years (2018: 2.3 years).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the largest shareholder
of the Company was Mr. Wong Chung Mat, Ben
(personally and via Salop Investment Limited, a
Company wholly-owned and controlled by him).

(a) Balances with related parties

The amounts due from associates and joint
ventures are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The terms are
set out in Notes 28 and 20 respectively.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019
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40 BEAEXRS (&)

(b) T

RZE—hhF+-_A=+—8"
AARBREWNB R EROBE
3,104,004,0007T (=& — )\ & :
7 3 231,225,000 ) 2 R 1T @b
B MIRTTIRESEER -

RZTE—NAF+=ZA=+—H"
MEBARMBANBENRBE
1,936,186,0007T (=& — /\ 4 :
7 #2,161,183,0007T) °

(c) TEEE A S HH

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

(b) Guarantee

As at 31 December 2019, the Company
has provided corporate guarantee given to
the banks in respect of banking facilities
of approximately HK$3,104,004,000 (2018:
HK$3,231,225,000) granted to its subsidiaries.

The facilities utilised by the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$1,936,186,000 (2018: HK$2,161,183,000).

(c) Key management compensation

e =

2019 2018

BETT BET T

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

e MoERL Salaries and allowances 15,689 15,195

TE4T Bonus 9,788 4,985
BIRE A Pension costs

— REMKETE — defined contribution schemes 42 54

25,519 20,234
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BBRARBBEREZSEE

BE-Z-_TF-AUK 2RI
BAEBHRES (20198 MREF])
PR IPETEITEHE 2019
BRESRBERSIEABPREM
HAAMBRELREAKER T
—NF+ZA=t—BREEZALL
FEMNP B RE B R

REETFBRMFIBNIR_Z_ZTF7]
ABHRIEMERNERE AEELEK
EEBY HEEHBRBENEILR
M WEEAEERBEE  MEERE
EEETEANBENZZHEERD
BEEEFEKTE - ZRBEFE  AEERK
HAREEN _—_ZE-_EFE-AKR-AH
BHEMSHEEE — T — N F R
#150% ° Lo - BIBEBRBEES TE
MEEMRREXR - BEER KA
EIREMRBERME - BREFKER
N RREAMEEMS -

AN AEBERAABEELNGER
EWE - BET2019E M m SR BB Y
BREMENGHEELRE - £RER
EEEELS(CHEENTE BT
ERAAREBEEEDUFEHAEE

mEE -

41 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE

DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION

Since January 2020, there has been numerous
confirmed cases of Coronavirus (“COVID-19”)
globally and caused disruption in numerous
industries. The COVID-19 outbreak is considered
a non-adjusting subsequent event and its related
financial impact has not been reflected in the
financial statements of the Group as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2019.

In response to the measures of local governments
in China in containing the epidemic in early 2020,
the Group has extended the Chinese New Year
holiday, postponed work resumption after the
Chinese New Year holiday and suspended the
production facilities, which was resumed to normal
level under adequate health and safety measures.
Affected by the outbreak, the Group estimated that
the Group’s EMS sales in the period of January
and February 2020 decreased by approximately
50% compared to the corresponding period in
2019. In addition, the epidemic caused disruption
to the supply chain and limited access to logistics
to move goods. Management will try to source raw
materials globally to ensure adequate inventory
level for production in coming months.

Further, the Group measures its investment
properties using fair value model. The COVID-19
epidemic is expected to have impact to the
valuation of investment properties. At this stage,
management could not quantify the impact to the
valuation but will closely monitor the fair value
change and assess the impact to the Group.

Wong’s International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2019



41

227

e MR M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MBEMRKRBEEZEE2EE 41 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE

(#4&)

—NFE+ZA=+—HHEH
EEEESREBE BN —RIFEAL
BARREET - RZZE_ZFRBEEEY
BREERFEW 2/t T A 5t
EEBER  TEBEE TTILEBESMNE
BUHMARERNBIETEEREER
SAEREMEMBRESNZE -

B ECREEIN  FEEHRIE H%$2;“$;‘%
BB EREMEREZBEERER

BEARSEHRELAFTERZE

$Elﬂyftﬂfﬂﬁf FRE  HHEEE
ETE - BRE L RDAEEERE -

DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION (continued)

The expected credit loss at 31 December 2019 was
estimated based on a range of forecast economic
conditions as at that date. The impact on GDP
and other key indicators will be considered when
determining the severity and likelihood of downside
economic scenarios that will be used to estimate
expected credit loss under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” in 2020.

Apart from disclosed above, the outbreak is
expected to affect the financial results of the Group
and the macro-economic environment globally, the
effect of which cannot be estimated as of the date
of this report.

The Group will closely monitor the development
of the outbreak, perform further assessment of its
impact and take relevant measures

ITREBREEERART 2019 F#F
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Schedule of Principal Properties

R-ZF—HF+=-H=+—H As at31 December 2019

BRAREER
NEERRNE B (FHX) HEREH il HERR  ZAER AKEER
Approximate Gross Lease Stage of Group
Name of property and location Type Floor Areas (sq.m.) Lot Number Purpose Expiry  Completion Interest
HREEZRENF
Investment properties in Hong Kong
BENERRERE 1S
One Harbour Square 9% » 10% ~ 128« ZEMtE
158 161 - 178 - 1812 19208 BAE EEMBRITIN BRE  RA=TH Bk
9th, 10th, 12th, 15th, 16th, 17th, 18th, 19th  Office 12,089 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
and 20th floors, One Harbour Square, Inland Lot No. 173
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BENEERGEBIBIR ZEMcE
One Harbour Square 43{AfE & fi [EEf BEREMNBE173% BE  R~A=TH R
43 car parking spaces, One Harbour Car parking 538 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong,  spaces Inland Lot No. 173
Kowloon, Hong Kong
HREEZERRNERE
Stock of completed properties
in Hong Kong
BENEERGEBIBIR “EMcE
One Harbour Square 71 BAE BRABERIT73H #RrE  ~AZtH B
7th floor, One Harbour Square, ffice 1,354 Kwun Tong Office 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Inland Lot No. 173
Hong Kong
BENEERGEBIBIR “EMcE
One Harbour Square 14 Efi [EEf BEREMNBE173% BE  R~A=TH R
14 car parking spaces, One Harbour Car parking 175 Kwun Tong Parking 30 June 2047 Completed 100%
Square, 181 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong,  spaces Inland Lot No. 173

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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